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SIR JAMES Y. SIMPSON, BART., M.D., &o.

i I venture to dedicate the following pages to you for {wo reasons, viz..—
1st. Because to every unprejudiced persou it must be clear, from what fellows,
that tho Judges were influenced by your high professional sianding, and gave a
weight to your evidence which it did not merit. Anything more at varianes with
just notions of midwifery practice, it is scarcely possible to conceive. If over
evidence established a tale of terrible and faial malpraetice, the witnesses for the
defence established if, in the case of Sharp v. Wilson, with a censistency and foree
rarely paralleled. That you must regret the part you took in this matter, I think
too highly of you as a Christian and a man justly oceupying a high position in the
profesaional world, to doubt. The only excuse for you possible is that, in ignorance
of the real merits at issue, you thoughtlessly lent the weight of your high reputation
in such a way as to make you unconseiously extennate barbarities, the very mention
of which must make your blood run cold.

2d. Because your evidence reveals opinions on practical points in midwifery at
variance with some of its best established doctrines—opinions misleading and highly
dangerous, considering their source, and such as no man of less reputation than
yourself could avow with impunity. Truly, we have come to an age of “meddle-
some midwifery,” if, in your evidence, you but reflected what you teach!

Fertility of resonrce in the diffculties of midwifery practico is invaluable; but
Sangrado shedding the blood of a dying parburient woman, and charging the head
of her half-born babe with a poker [Fig. D], in order to break his way through the
living structures of its mother, that e might wrench its skull to pieces with the
shoemaker’s pincers [Fig. B] you so much took under your protection in Court, is a
picture Dante might have given us asof a gceno in the nether world to stir the con-
sciences of men to a due sense of professional responsibility and duty ; but scarcely

one, a professor of midwifery, would approve as representing a practice justifiabla,
because humane and gkilful,

I am,

BIR,
Yours,

Most respectfully,

JAMES WILSON, L.F.PS. Glasg, & LM,
CuLLes, N.B,, 15th March, 1569,
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TO PRACTITIONERS AND STUDENTS

O

MIDWIFERY,

(GENTLEMEN,

I beg most respectfully to introduce myself
to you as the defender in the case of *Sharp ». Wilson,”
lately decided by the Lords of the First Division of the Inner
House of the Court of Session. |

The case of “Sharp v». Wilson,” is, in reality, known in its
true character but to a very few. It has been noised abroad,
however, to such an extent, in a general way, and so many
applications for copies of the Court evidence ﬂave been made
to me by medical men from almost every part of the kingdom,
that I have finally resolved on issuing the present publication;
and I have the utmost pleasure in being now enabled to
bring the whole case before you in a readable and, I sincerely
trust, profitable form, under the title of

TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW.

For the honour of our profession, it would be well could we
explain away some of the most glaring differences of opinion
expressed in the following pages; but this, I am sorry to say,
appears to me to be quite impossible, and the truly unpreju-
diced mind must, on calm deliberation, regard some of the
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slatements made by men standing in the front rank of our
profession as at once erroneous and absurd.

Regarding the principles of midwifery the great Baudelocgue
says, “ The principles of midwifery are sure, all the operations
of which may be carried on, in a manner, to a geometrical cer-
tainty ;” and on the same subject the late illustrious Velpeau
remarks, “ The principles of obstetrics give to the resources it
employs a degree of precision which causes it often to approach
in certainty to the mathematical sciences,”*

That the matter contained in the following pages may be
intelligible to you, a brief history of past events is requisite.

In 1856, owing to the demise of a resident practitioner, I com-
menced practice in the burgh of Cullen amg adjacent countr
districts on the shores of the Moray Firth., Dr Hugh Sharp,
the pursuer in the present case, was the only other medical
%ractitinner in Cullen, in which he had resided since 1838.

efore I was eighteen months in Cullen, I was appointed
medical officer to the Parochial Boards of Cullen zmc}[J Deslk-
ford, both of which appointments had been.previously held
by the pursuer. On this our former friendship or intimacy
immediately ceased, and all communication or recognition
was at an end, as unfortunately it but too often does in the
country in such circumstances. Notwithstanding what the
pursuer states at page 32, letter C, without making any unne-
cessary boasting of the matter, I gradually made rather serious
inroads on his practice, and was “ employed by Lord Seafield’s
establishment” at the very time the present action was raised
against me at the instance of the pursuer. :

In the month of December, 1856, between seven and eight
o’clock in the morning, a messenger from the village of Port-
knoclde, distant from Cullen about two miles, demanded my
immediate attendance on Mrs George Mair in her confine-
ment. I was, however, engaged with a similar case in the
parish of Deslkford, four miles distant in the opposite direc-
tion. On the evening of the same da.i' above referred to, I
chanced to be in the village of Portlkmockie, and called on Mrs

* The following ave the words of Baudelocque and Velpean:— :

«L'art des Accouchemens est cependant un art de pratique, un art dont Ies prin-
cipes sont certains, et dont toutes les operations pnuwnti étre portees, ponr ainsi
dire, jusqu’ 1 la certitude géométrique” (Baudelocque, L'Art Des Accounchemens,
&o.  Troisieme Kdition. Tome Premier, p. 2. A Paris, 1786).

“ Ses prinei * % % donnent aux ressonrces, qu’ clle emploie un degré de
préecision qui mnpprachent gouvent de la certitudo des stiences mathematigues,
(Velpeau, Traité complet De L’Art Des Acconchemens, &e. Deuxidme HEdition.
Tome Premier, p. 15. A Paris, 1885).



TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW, 3

Wood, the midyife, who had been in attendance on Mrs George
I‘.}Iair,dzmd who had sent for me. Mrs Wood, with a blanched
cheek, recited to me with terrible exactness almost the very
words used by her in her evidence, given in another part of
this publication, viz., that on the pursuer’s arrival at eight in
the morning to attend Mrs George Mair, the head was resting
on the perineum; that the forceps was used for howrs; that
the head of the child was broken open with a poker; that
pieces of the skull were torn away with a shoemaker’s pincers;
that two soup-platefuls of blood were abstracted from the arm
of the mother; that the child was turned; and, finally, forcibly
extracted by means of a strong hempen cord attached to a
wrist and an ankle, or some other parts of the child’s body;
and that the mother was in a dying state,

About the year 1859 I formed the acquaintance of Dr George
Greig, of Portsoy, with whom I was on most friend] y and con-
fidential terms until the month of June, 1864. At that time
an accident of a very serious nature oceurred to an overseer on
the farm of Broom, tenanted by the Messrs Fortune, Dr
Greig, who happened to be on the spot when the accident
took place, volunteered his services, which were accepted until
I, who was the regular medical attendant, should arrive, Dr
Greig was then politely informed that he would be duly re-
compensed for his services, and, if a consultation was found to
be requisite, he should be accordingly a prised. Dr Greig,
however, to the surprise of all, paid several visits to the mjured
man, until it was dlf.:,emed necessary to request him not to re-
geat hig visits, and to hand in his'hill. The bill was Imme-

iately sent in, with a letter to the Messrs Fortune demanding
immediate payment, and with the same post a letter was sent
to me by Dr Greig, in which he requested me, as a mutual
friend, to advise the Messrs Fortune to settle his account,
This, as a mutual friend, I could not, however, conscientiously
do. From this date all correspondence and intimacy between
Dr Greig and me ceased. Tvents, which took place between
the two occwrences now mentioned, it will be necessary to
shortly advert to. Three years.after the melancholy death of
Mrs George Mair, I attendéd in her confinement Mrs Henry.
There were then present Mrs John Duff and Mrs Helen Geddes.
The case was a tedious one, and to while away the long, dark
Lours of a dreary winter night, conversation was freely entered
mto; and, as it is most natural on such occasions for the
minds of women to wander back to the Hme at which the
themselves, young and inexperienced, went through the try-
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ing ordeal of giving birth to their first-born, the confinement
of Mrs Helen Geddes, when she was attended by the pursuer
was described to me with such life-like correctness that one
could not help feeling a chill of horror come over him, and
wondering within himself if such things could be—the lying-in
chamber converted into a pandemonium—the forceps slipping
eight times—the case given up—a proposal made to Ereak
open the head of the infant—a second practitioner rushing to
the rescue, and, by one skilful application of the forceps, suo-
ceeding in relieving the mother of her torments by bringing to
the world a living child, the occiput and inner angle of the
right frontal part of the head presenting frightful wounds,
proving an important point in 1*!:¢]Fa,ti0n to the application and
the frequent slipping of the short forceps—whether a weak or
a powerful instrument—Dby silent but incontrovertible logic.
On several occasions, when attending cases of confinement, the
conversation seemed frequently of its own accord, as it were,
to turn to scenes of horror and distress. Terrible doings have
been related to me by women of sterling and unwavering in-
tegrity as having taken place at Cathie, Gray’s Yards, and in
a house near the Windmill, &e., where it was found necessary
for the accomplishment of delivery that the child should be
either cut into pieces or forcibly extracted by means of a
strong cord; all the mothers dying a few hours after such
treatment !

In November, 1863, Mrs Longmore was attended in her con-
finement by the pursuer. The forceps was used; an attempt
to turn was ma,tfa; a cord was attached, says a reliable wit-
ness, to the child’s leg, and traction made on the cord for the
purpose of effecting delivery ; the pursuer asked for something
to put below his knees; and the woman died undelivered!
1 was intimately acquainted with the deceased Mrs Longmore,
having attended professionally several of her family, and also
herselt during a long and severe attack of typhus.

In February, 1864, Mrs James Wilson, a sister of the late
Mrs Longmore, and wife of Mr James Wilson, farmer, Knowes
of Deskford, was seized with what appeared to be labour
_ pains, and Dr Greig of Portsoy, her usua medical attendant,
" was called to attend on her. That gentleman being in bad
health, however, could not attend, and the pursuer was taken
instead. The alarm, however, was a false one, and the pur-
suer soon left his patient as he found her, no delivery havin
been effected. 'I'an.ug into consideration all that I had hear
from reliable sources regarding the cases of the late Mrs
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Gieorge Mair, Mrs Longmore, &c., I thought I was not only at
liberty, but that it was even 1111y duty, to take some step, if
possible, to prevent questionable practice being adopted, if
such could be done in confidence, and with anything like good
grace. You may well recollect the pointed remarks from j;lle
bench which were made on medical etiquette by the presiding
judge in the case of Pritchard. It was then in vain that Dr
Paterson urged, as an excuse for his not speaking out, that if
he had done so, it would have been a dangerous procedure ;
he might not have been able to prove that Pritchard had been
dealing unfairly with his wife, and that Pritchard might have |
ruined him for saying so. The judge, regarding the matter
now referred to, says—* I care not for professional etiquette
or professional rule. There is a rule of life and a considera-
tion that is far higher than these, and that is, the duty that
every citizen of this country, that every right-minded man
owes to his neighbour, to prevent the destrnetion of human
life m this world.,” My decided opinion, from hearsay evidence,
which is sometimes even stronger, and more to be depended
on than evidence from one on oath—I say, my decided opinion
was, as Lord Ardmillan lately remarked, that the pursuer’s
treatment of certain cases was “ very questionable.” I there-
fore thought it my duty to. write to Dr Greig the follow-
%’g private and confidential note regarding the case of Mrs

lson, that he might have an opportunity of calling on
his quondam patient quietly, regain his place, and see to
her safe delivery. The following is an exact copy of my
note to Dr Greig containing the alleged defamation, and
on which this long, doubtful, and ruinous litigation has been
raised :—

* CuLLes, 12th February, 1864.

“ DEAR SiR,—I understand you were called some time ago to attend Mrs Wilson,
Knowes, in her confinement, but, being in bad health, you could not attend to her.
Her husband then called Sharp, who visited her; but she (Mrs Wilson) has not yet
heen confined. Thig plan of procedure on the part of Wilson I cannot by any means
understand.  Sharp lately attended a sister of Mrs Wilson (a Mrs Longmore, Bauds
of Cullen) in her confinement, who died undelivered? and for Wilson to call Sharp to
his wife after this is a cirenmstance most nnaccountable in my idea. Now, I am the
last man to interfere with another medical man in his profession, neither do I wish
to attend Mrs Wilson; but I most certainly will be very much chagrined to hear of
Sharp attending Mrs Wilson or any other patient of yours or mine in Deskford. If
you have not nil'qadjr dono so, do by all means call and see Mrs Wils:;h; push her
hard about her sister's case. It is too bad to soe a man allowed to attend women
who, I believe, is no more capable of using a pair of forceps than an infunt. This is at
least the third case of the sort that has fallen under his hands since I came to
Cullen. Do be 80 good as let me hear from you soon, and, with compliments to Mra

(Addrossed) “* Dr Greig, pm,’tgn;y' ruly, (Signed) “James WiLsox.”
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The so-called slander m my note is contained in the words
“who, I believe, is no more capable of using a pair of Yorceps
than an infant,” which meant, in reality, that, on aecount ot
what I had heard from reliable authority, I considered that
the pursuer was not particularly adroit in using the forceps,
and that I would be very much chagrined to hear of any of
my own or of Dr Greig’s patients being placed in such a
position as to give one cause to doubt the treatment of the
medical attendant. Dr Greig, on receipt of my note, imme-
diately replied by post, thanking me for my attention, and
descanted pretty freely on the pursuer’s qualifications as an
accoucheur, whether in laudatory terms or otherwise he may
himself, perhaps, remember, as he and I were at one time wont
to express our opinions, in private, to each other, without re-
gtraint, on the capabilities of the pursuer in the obstetrical
branch of the profession. Any one reading the evidence of
Dr Greig, as sworn to by him in court, would naturally sup-
pose that hie was merely on terms of common civility with tﬁe
defender, when he says he never was in my house. This 1s
true, because I am not proprictor of the house in which I
reside. Dr Greig, in his evicﬁmc@, further goes on to say that
he applied to me once for lymph, that he met me once pro-
fessionally, that he had neither friendly nor unfriendly com-
munications with me after he met me at the farm of Broom.
All these I will readily dispose of, seeing that Dr Greig
must be excused by me saying, what Lord Kinloch lately
gaid of a man with hoary locks, “his memory must be
failing him.” The last sentence of my letter to Dr Greig,
in my opinion, would of itself go far to (E[']I‘D:VE that I
was on, at least, easy terms both with Dr Greig and his
family. :

Di Greig in his evidence refers to the late Dr Whyte, of
Banff, whom I have heard express his opinion also quite freely
yegarding the professional, es ecially the obstetrical, feats
which he knew the pursuer to have performed. by 17~

In 1862 several families who used to intrust Dr Greig with
the responsibility of seeing to the alleviation of their T)od]l}r
distresses, transferred that important duty to me, and from
that time till now I have rather encroached on the small prac-
tice of my friend. It is, no doubt, quitein accordance with the
laws of human nature for Dr Grei% to feel annoyed that I, a
mere novice compared to him, who has acted as a general
practitioner in Portsoy for a period of 47 years, should be em-
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loyed by parties whom he one day attcncleq, and that
JL.) EKGI‘LI(]. :Ztt]?and E%IBEE- of midwifery five miles distant from
my own door, and within 500 yards of his dcn::r}l'. _ Still
such is the case, and I hereby challenge Dr Greig, or
any other man living, to assert that I ever hunted after a
yatient.

As I have already explained to you, gentlemen, Dr Greig
and I met at the farm of Broom in June, 1864, the services
of Dr Greig were dispensed with, mine were retained. He
had then in his possession my letter of date 12th February,
'1864; and, by his own evidence, it is shown that, having
retained my private note in his possession for a period
extending over eight months, he only then thought proper
to deliver it up to the pursuer in the month of November,
1864. .

The defails which I have now laid before you will sexve
to show the exact position in which Dr Greig, Dr Shar
(the pursuer), and I stood. It is for you to decide whether
was justified in having written the letter on which this
action has been raised against me; or, in your opinion, ought
I to have been silent, and allowed matters to take their
comse? After a careful perusal of the following pages, you
will be better able to answer the above questions, I trust,
according to conscience.

In the month of May, 1866, I received a summons in an -
action for damages, laic?r at £1000, in the Court of Session, at
the instance of Dr Sharp, the pursuer, for the alleged defama-
tion contained in the letter sent to Dr Greig by me, of date
12th February, 1864.

It was my decided opinion I could prove that the pursuer
had been guilty of malpractice, therefore I spurned at the
idea of tendering a sum of money, offering an apology, and
retracting the letter.

Issue and counter-issue were then adjusted. 1 was told
that if T could prove my counter-issue I would be entitled
to a verdict in my favour, and against the pursuer ; or,
i other words, if I could prove the pursuer to have been
guilty of having treated any of the women mentioned in
the counter-issue unskilfully, that I would gain my case.
I subjoin the issues, and it is for you to judge, after
reading evidence on both sides, if I have made out my
pomt or not. Bear in mind that, by the very nature
of the pursuer’s case, I was challenged, in justification,
to prove him guilty of unskilful midwifery practice.
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The issues on which the action proceeded were as. fol-
lows :—

“FIRST DIVISION—JUNE 20, 1866,

“IBBUES in causn SHARP against WILSON,

-

* Whether, on or about 12th February, 1864, the defender wrote and transmitted,

ov caused to be written and transmitted, to Dr Greig, of Portsoy, the letter, a copy
of which is contained in the Schedule herounto annexed ? Whether the said lettor
is of and concerning the pursuer, and falsely and calumnionsly represents that the
pursuer is incompetent and unskilful in his profession asa practitioner of midwifery,
and that in the practice of said profession he had treated three cases incompetently
and unskilfully, to the loss, injury, and damage of the pursuer? Damages lnid at °
L1000 sterling,

“Or whether, previously to the date of said letter, the pursuer, as a practitioner of
midwifery, attended Mrs Longmore, Bands of Cullen ; Mrs Helen Spence or Geddes ;
Mrs George Mair, ‘Bobin and Mrs John Wilson, Seatown of Cullen, or any of
them, and whether he treated them, or any of them, unskilfully 7

Gentlemen, I have brought the present small volume before
you, I hope, for good. You may have the best of teachers;
vou may read the most approved books on the principles and
practice of midwifery; you may have every opportunity of
making yourselves thorough masters of your favourite study ;
but I will be bold enough to assert that, from a careful perusal
of the following pages, instruction you will receive, and benefit
you will 1'&&1;, never in after-life to be forgotten. I have al-
ways been of opinion that one will profit as much by havin
his attention immediately directed to the blunders committe
by an ignorant man, as by receiving the instruction of the most
erudite and successful preceptor. I have seen the oYeratinn
called lithotomy performed many a time by the late Dr
Buchanan, of Glasgow, with such apparent ease and grace,
every movement being executed with machine-like correct-
ness, that the onlooker was but too apt to be impressed with
the idea that a mere child could perform this nice, but most
dangerous operation. We read of the most inexcusable
blunders being committed during the performance of the
simplest operations, and our thinking powers are, for the first
time, perhaps, fully aroused. We begin to study the whole
case; we gain a vast amount of mstruction; every mlstalge on
the part of the operator is deeply impressed upon our minds;
our attention to the minutest details of the operation is
thoroughly rivetted; and we learn a lesson from another
man’s mistakes never to be furﬁntten._ _ :

1 think, gentlemen—but pardon this liberty—it would be a
great improvement in teaching were professors of midwifery,
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~when examining students, to write out a case ot bungling from
first to last, and ask their students to indicate the blunders,
mark the points they consider questionable, and expatiate,
quoting high authorities, on the parts they decidedly condemn
as llllsiilﬁli, thoroughly sifting each particular point in the
light of principles universally received. Just for a moment
imagine that a college is to be immediately founded in some
remote part of her Majesty's dominions, and that a professor
must be appointed by competitive exammation to the Chair
of Midwiferjr—-candigates of from le‘m{}}lths’ to thirty-six
years’ experience admitted for examination—and that the
questions to be answered are those I have drawn up and ap-

ended to this letter, arranged under Nos. I, 1L, ITI., and IV.

lany of the questions you may regard as absurd enough cer-
tainly ; but if I tell you that I have reen a student of thirty-
six years’ experience floundering among such questions, you
will excuse me for suggesting them.

The obstetrical branch of our profession, gentlemen, I con-
gider, demands our undivided attention. In the practice of
midwifery, we must rely on our own individual knowledge
and skill. We cannot always get assistance to help us through
our difficulties when we would fondly accept of it, as is the
case with the surgeon and the physician. When the hour of
trial, of difficulty, and of danger arrives, the accoucheur has
generally two or more human lives at risk, If he knows his
profession, and if he be possessed of that calm fortitude so
requisite for the successful performance of midwifery opera-
tions, he may reasonably expect to bring matters to a happy
consummation.

The accoucheur must know his profession ; he must be pos-
sessed of imperturbable coolness, firmness, and discretion,
. ready to combat every difficulty, and to grapple with the
most formidable dangers. If, on the other hand, a man be let
loose on society to practise the highly responsible duties of
the accoucheur, ignorant of his profession, of a highly irritable
and excitable temperament, but possessed of a stubborn and
dangerous determination that he must, and will, go through
with his dire work, whatever may be the consequences, the
effects will be appalling.

Timidity is a bad trait in the character of the accoucheur,
80 also is temerity coupled with ignorance.

IuT the practice of midwifery, Art is merely the handmaiden
of Nature. TFor the most part, Nature, unassisted, will do
her own work wisely and well. We cannot always trust



her, however. If we do, she will sometimes deceive us.
We must be ever ready to assist her in her work when re-
quired, but never to interfere, never to attempt to thwart her
in her course, unless for urgent reasons. %’a must know
when to “let well alone,” and when to offer our services,
Nature is sometimes fond of strange freaks, and delights in
curtous and unaccountable doings ; she must then be toyed
with, gently curbed, and kept on the roper path, like a way-
ward and unbroken steed, which, mﬁeaa tenderly reined by
the gentle, but skilful, hand of an experienced horseman, will
occasionally stumble, or altogether start off the common high-
way, bringing destruction both to himself and his rider.

A young practitioner may be pursuing his avoeations in a
sparsely settled country,—in the bush of America, or in the
wilds of Australia, or he may be on board of an emigrant ship,
having the care of hundreds of human beings. Heisa thousand
miles from land,—one of the female assengers 18 seized with
the pains of labour, the accoucheur i?ncls, on his first examina-
tion, that an elongated pouch is presenting ; he makes up hig
mind the presentation 1s not one of the head, and mwardly
prays it may be a foot; as the labour goes on the membranes

lve way, and, to his horror, he feels the hand of a living child
clutching at his exploring finger; he is excited, timid, and
ignorant; he knows not what to do, but,recollects that it is
well to trust to Nature in midwifery practice: that meddle<
some midwifery is to be deprecated; it flashes across his
mind that twrning ought to be performed, and, in his ignorance,
he supposes it will be well to allow the arm and shoulder to
be pushed as far down as possible, so that turning may be
the more easily performed. Many howrs have elapsed; the
accoucheur * screws his courage to the sticking point,” and,
assuming a heroic-like determination, resolves on perform-
ing the operation of turning. To his amazement he finds
1t an almost insurmountable difficulty to get even the arm
removed from the vagina. By dint, however, of tremendous
and desperate exertion, he ultimately succeeds in getting the
arm pushed above the brim, but finds to his surprise that he
has no sooner accomplished this feat than the arm is again in.
its former position. After many hours of fruitless exertion, he
finds that to turn is im]lalnssible; his hand is paralyzed; the
perspiration runs down ia‘fa.f:e, and faint with fatlgu?, fear,
and the self-accusing conviction that he knows nothing of
turning, and that he has been thoroughly baffled in his attempts
to perform the operation, he sinks upon his seat sick with dis-

10 TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW.
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appointment, and horror-struck as the conviction flashes across
Lis bewildered senses that death will toa soon stop for ever
the cries of his fast-sinking patient, and that she will inevit-
ably die undelivered! Amidst the entreaties of the relations,
and the lamentations of his patient, the practitioner is in no
position to collect his scattered thoughts—he has never formed
the acquaintance of Hippocrates, of Hunter, or of Breen.
Embryotomy instruments he has never provided himself with.
May not Nature yet come to his assistance, in the form of
spontaneous evolution, and rescue his patient from the grave
already yawning to receive its unfortunate victim? Vain hope!
Death, with his heavy iron hand, is already knocking at the
door of that man’s conscience, fiercely demanding the lives of
two human beings, sacrificed by a practitioner w%m ought not
~to have been allowed to practise midwifery, and who must

now reap the bitter fruits of his ignorance. For many hours
the unfortunate practitioner waits with a despairing hope that
Nature may yet right herself; but, alas! the golden opportu-
nity for easy, scientific, and successful manipulation has been
allowed to pass! He has now formed an almost frantic
resolution to do something to extricate his patient from
impending dissolution, which, to all present, appears to be
speedily approaching. A long and final effort is made to

ush the arm from its place, and to seize the feet of the child.
All of a sudden something gives way, and, to his unutterable
dismay, the attendant finds that his hand has gone through
a rent of the uterus, that it is in the cavity of the abdomen
and the intestines coiling around it; all uterine contractions
now and for ever cease; the operator is glad to get hold of
one foot, and hastily, for fear of losing it, with a tremblin
hand, attaches a cord, and forcibly drags away a dead infan
from a dying mother!

Let us imagine a case where the patient has been sub-
jected to a course of malpractice arising from temerity and
ll-timed interference on the part of the practitioner. A young
and inexperienced medical man is called to attend a first
labour, On making an examination, he exultingly gives
orders for plenty of warm water to be at hand, the baby-
clothes to be aired, and tape and scissors to be immediately
brought him, _ He imagines the head of the infant to be in the
vagina, and inwardly congratulates himself that he has nar-
rowly escaped being in time to be too late. The uterine
contractions, previous to the arrival of the accoucheur, may
have been going on very slowly, accompanied by a slight
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moaning ; or they may have been almost incessant, with loud
cries. 'They are now, however, entirely suspended; half-an-
hour or more elapses, and the attendant begins to have serious
misgivings in his own mind as to the correctness of the
diagnosis formed and expressed by him ; the head has a strange
and slippery surface, and conveys a peculiar glazed kind of
sensation to the finger; a slight lzflbom pain by and bye comes
on, lasting but a few seconds; the fingeris carried well back-
wards into the hollow of the sacrum, and the attendant finds,
to his inexpressible mortification, that the os is dilated merely
to the size of a shilling; that the uterine contractions
have almost no effect whatever on it further than merely
slightly tightening the parts. Six, eight, or even, per-
haps, twenty-four hours pass away—the os is now dilated
sufficiently to admit two fingers; the attendant ruptures
the membranes, inserts two fingers within the os, and,
on the return of every pain, does his best to assist Nature,
as he thinks, by attempting to forcibly accelerate the
dilating process. The patient is irritable, peevish, de-
sponding, and refuses to be comforted ; she has lost all con-
fidence 1n her medical attendant, who at last proposes to ettect
delivery by the forceps. The patient cannot be retained in a
favourable position for the successful introduction of even one
of the blades of the instrument ; and after persevering for per-
haps two hours in his unsuccessful attempts, he sits down
weary, baffled, and disappointed. The patient and the rela-
tives are now urgent for a consultation ; the husband is forth-
with despatched for the greatest obstetrical authority in town
—perhaps a Erofeaaor of midwifery—who, having obtained on
the way to the residence of the ;])Jatient, thorough mformation
from the husband as to all that has taken place, vesolves, for
the purpose of raising himself, and lowering the other medical
man, in the estimation of the public, on m Ing an astﬂuudjng
display—creating quite a sensation, as it were. The airival
of the great authority is duly announced, who, as if allied to
the feline genus, with a smiling dance-attendance mask on
his face, glides noiselessly into the 1ying-i§1 chamber and
speaks in whispered language ; or, with creaking boots, and a
canting hypocritical demeanour, he makes his appearance,
cold and indifferent, talks in a loud voice, and throws his mid-
wifery instruments on the table, the audible jingle of which

oes to the very heart, and sounds like a deathknell in the ears
of the unfortunate patient. Nature, which in this case has all
along been grievously molested, is yet doomed to be even
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still more thoroughly thwarted in her operations, smr,rl the poor
patient is condemned to undergo renewed torture. The great
authority examines the woman, and easily ascertains that the
use of the forceps would be premature, and comes to the con-
clusion that, in all ﬁ)rﬂb&bﬂlty, he, too, will be foiled in his
attempts to effect delivery by that instrument. He explains
to the bystanders that the case is not one at all suitable for
instrumental delivery, but that manual interference, for the
safety of the mother, is most requisite, and throws out a
cowardly and wicked insinuation that the patient might, and
ought to, have been relieved long ago. |

By a series of ambiguous and equivocal remarks and
answers to queries, matters are pre-arranged in such a way
that, whatever may be the result of the operation about
to be performed to the patient, no blame will be attached
to the operator, so great is the weight of his authority.
The learned doctor immediately proceeds to effect delivery
by turning—that dangerous mode of practice under the
circumstances. The condition of the bladder and rectum
is never thought of. After a long and dogged search

for the feet, the attendant at length succeeds in laying
hold of one, and extracts the body of the child. Both arms

and head still, however, remain to be extracted, and the
accoucheur, in his glorious and triumphant haste, forgets to
execute the nice manceuvre of sweeping the palm of the
infant’s hand across the face; anaudible snap 18 the result, and
both radius and ulna ave fractured an inch from the wrist joint
. —an acaident, in the eyes of some accoucheurs, by no means
ansing from gross carelessness and unpardonable ignorance on
the part of the attendant. This ugly piece of bungling the
aceoucheur shakes himself rid of by expll.s}xining, with profound
gravity, to the astonished relatives that a fracture of the arm
is by no means an uncommon oceurrence in the case of a still-
born child, and is quite likely to take place in the hands of the
most adroit and experienced accoucheur !

The great authority having given a few hurried orders, in a,
patronizing tone, to the other practitioner as to the manage-
ment of the placenta, &e., explains that he has to attend a
most important consultation with regard to a patient, a lady
of rank, at a certain howy, that the time is almost up, and that
he must therefore leave. The great authority either glides or
gtalles out of the room 1 precisely the same manmner as he
entered. The medical attendant first called proceeds to
remove the placenta by using by far too much traction on the
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funis, which at once gives way. The handis now introduced,
the placenta grasped, and the larger half of it removed—the
attendant satisfying himself with the expectation that contrac-
tion will speedily return and effectually empty the uterus of
the remnant of the placenta, and all clofs which it may for the
present retain. L'he ordinary abdominal bandage is applied ;
the practitioner remains for a few minutes without ever think-
ing of examining for the tumour above the pubes, and, havin
given all due directions, he leaves the Elfnuse with by no
means a satisfied or composed mind.

In fifteen or twenty minutes after the departure of the
medical attendant the patient begins to yawn ; the relatives
and nurse think she must be fairly worn out, and that, if
allowed a good refreshing sleep, all will be well; to the
yawning succeeds sobbing; a continual tossing of the head ;
the bedclothes are thrown off, and an urgent demand is made
for fresh air. “Can flooding be going on?” is timorously
asked of the nurse by some of the relations. The bed linens
are scarcely stained. The accoucheur is immediately sent for.
The patient’s voice falters; she feels oppressively weak and
gick ; cold water is eagerlﬁr swallowed ; the perspiration, like
drops of dew, sits upon her brow, now n:}n::ulc%J as marble; the
eyes are dull and glazed ; the respiration is hurried ; death is
fast settling on that pale and anxious face; a terrible con-
vulsion, which shakes the whole body, and even the very bed,
comes on, and dissolution speedily ensues.

The practitioner rushes into the sick-room just in time to
hear the last heavy moan of the woman who has thus been so
slowly and perseveringly sacrificed. The nurse has discovered
that the abdomen feels unusually large for one newly delivered
of a child, and hazards her opinion to the medical attendant
that a second child must surely exist. The medical man
~ places his hand on the abdomen, but when too late, and 1s

thunderstruck., The idea of internal heemorrhage instantly
oceurs to him; and a terrible, a melancholy, and a never-to-be-
forgotten lesson is taught him in language, the dread tenor
of which no pen can deseribe, no mind can imagine.

Thus, then, gentlemen, have I attempted to illustrate by
the two cases now described the great secret of success in
midwifery practice. We must know when and how to assist
Nature ; and we must know when to allow Nature to perform
her duties unmolested.

In the practice of midwifery we must be prepared to en-
counter many hardships, long nights of watching, and scenes

- ’
et o Y
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of distress. Often, in the practice of midwifery, are we
brought, as it were, to fgrapple hand to hand, and face to fagg,
with the grim King of Terrors! If we, as students of mid-
wifery, are to learn it, and become eminent in the art, we
must deny ourselves many pleasures; we must be alone, as 1t
were, in holding communion with Nature, often studying the
mysteries of the parturient state when— -

¢ ()'cr the one half world Nature scems dead,
And wicked dreams abuse the curtained sleep.”

We may be unfortunate as accoucheurs in practice, but if we
can conscientiously assure ourselves that we have done all
that science and a thoroughly educated professional mind can
suggest for the relief and the preservation of our patient, we
must, although grievously disappointed, rest satisfied ; a,nld
being thus conscious of having done our duty, the mens conscia
recti will ever afford a consolation which will solace and sup-
port us through life. Before setting out on a long voyage,
the mariner sees to his vessel being in proper sea-going trim,
that his chronometers, his quadrants, and his compasses can be
safely relied on. So also must the accoucheur, before setting
out on the journey, whether it may be long or short, of his pro-
fessional career, make it his bounden duty to thoroughly study
his profession, and to provide himself with the proper and
requisite instruments for the safe and scientific performance
of the midwifery operations he may be called on to undertalke.
Let no man be so thoroughly culpable and reckless of human
life as to presume to practice midwifery without having first
possessed himself of an efficient set of the necessary instru-
ments. What must be the feelings of the man who, through
ignorance, or a vicious indulgence in meddlesome practice,
has changed a simple case of natural labour into a lingering,
an Instrumental, and, perhaps, even a fatal one, and who may
have.the still, small monitor within telling him, in language
unheard by the world, that his patient was hurried to an early
grave by the ignorance and unskilfulness of her medical atten-
dant? Surely that man, if worthy of being called a man,
must feel ashamed and disgraced. Of such a man, to use the
words of my old master, the talented Dr Paterson, of Glasgow,
I would say, “It is a poor excuse for his crime to assert that
he had no malice in his heart; it is a poor alleviation of his
guilt to say he did the best he could. The laws of our country
may, indeed, acquit him; but his own conscience, if he 18
capable of reflection, must tell him, too plainly to be misunder-
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EXAMINATION PAPERS.

No. L

1st. Explain, if possible, what is meant by the term “ unskil-
tul midwifery practice.”

94, Would you give chloroform in every case of labour,
whether natural, preternatural, lingering, or difficult ?

Would you administer chloroform, in midwifery practice,
only in a certain class of cases, and under peculiar cir-
cumstances ?

Would you give a patient chloroform if she were very
much collapsed ?

Would you dispense with the use of chloroform altogether
in midwifery practice ?

Give the opinions of Meigs, Simpson, and Ramsbotham
on chlnr-::r%]rm in labour.

3d. Is the word * forceps” singular or plural ?

4th. What would be the object of attaching a piece of tape, or
a cord, similar to that represented by Fig. E, to the
foot of an infant during labour ? )

Sth. If a cord is attached to the foot of a child, can any trac-
tion whatever be made on the cord for the purpose of
e}xfcllémg:ting the child without injuring the fgﬂvt of the
child ?

If much force is employed in attempting to extract the
body of the child, what will be the result to the mother ?

Give the opinion of Collins on using muech force in
attem(f:ting to extract the child.

6th. If called to a patient very much collapsed, or in articulo
mortis, and having complete rupture of the uterus,
what would be the eftect of attempting delivery by
turning ?

B
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Tth. If the pelvis is of the natural size; if there is no uterine
or vaginal tumour; if the head of the feetus is in the
proper position, and the first stage of labour completed;
and if the use of the forceps is required, if the operator
fails to accomplish delivery by the forceps, to what do
you attribute his failure ?

8th. Mention the stages of labour, and describe them.

9th. Before applying the forceps tor the purpose of effecting
delivery, i1s it of much importatce té make a correct
diagnosis as to the position of the child’s head ?

10¢h. What celebrated accoucheur says that int the first posi-
tion the face of the child is in the hollow of the sacrum ?

11¢4. If the head is in the first position, in what diameter of
the cavity of the pelvis will the long diameter of the
head be ?

12th. In your opinion, is it of trifling importance, in the appli-
cation of the long forceps at the brim, if the first posi-
tion is mistaken for the second, and wvice versa ?

13th.On making the Ceesarian section, for the purpose of
saving the child after the death of the mother, if the
uterus were ruptured through all its coats, and if the
head had gone through the rent, and found its way
into the abdominal cavity, would it be possible for an
operator, in his gober senses, with a steady hand and a

ood eye, to make a mistake as to whether the head of
the child was in reality in the uterine, or in the abdo-
minal cavity ? .

If it were possible that any doubt could exist as to a
rupture of the uterus, would the operator or an onlooker
be the more liable to be mistaken in his opinion ?

14th. If fatal rupture of the uterus takes place once in every
400 or 500 cases in a man’s practice, wounld you con-
gider that it does so from natural causes, or from the
unskilful manipulations of a bungling operator?

15¢h, If & man has used the forceps twelve times every year
during the thirty-five {rears he has been in practice,
how many women in all is it likely he has attended in
confinement ?
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No. II.

In the case of a natural labour, what effect would be pro-’
duced by your alarming your patient? Quote Rams-
botham on this.

By whom was the operation of shaking a patient in a case
of lingering labour first described? And when did
Hippocrates flourish ? .

By wli\om has the ancient practice of shaking in lingeri_ng

“labour been recently introduced into practice, and with
what result ?

Do you consider that swearing at a patient and at the by-
standers would be a valuable adjunct to the operation of
shaking, in a cage of lingering labour, more eagecially in
the case of a young woman giving birth to her first-born?

Under any circumstances whatever, ought the lying-in
chamber to be converted into a pandemonium ?

Give the professional term for a first-born; and is the
penultima long or short ?

If the short forceps is applied in the long diameter of the
head, and if it slips eight times, would you attribute
the slipping to the weakness of the instrument, or to
the unskilful application of it by the operator ?

If the short forceps is applied in the long diameter of the
head, howeyer powerful the instrument may be, what
will be the inevitable result ?

Would you consider it good or bad practice to persevere
applying a weak forceps for two or three hours, and
that forceps slipping eight times in the course of your
ineffectual attempts to deliver?

A forceps will slip hither and thither if it gets on to
portions of the head which wont allow of a proper hold ;
does a forceps get on of its own accord, or is it put on
by the improper application of the mnstrument, and by
the hands of an unskilful operator ? A

Is a false stitch attributable to the needle, or to the hands
which ply it?

Ifa child is born with terrific wounds on the oceiput, and
near the inmer angle of the right eye, which give out
matter for six weeks after the birth of the chil , would

you consider the short forceps to have been used skil-
tully or unskilfully ?
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No. III.

1st. Would you take twenty or thirty ounces of blood with
the lancet from the arm of a patient in any stage
of labour if she were cnnsideraEIy exhausted, there
being no dread of convulsions or head complica-
tions ?

Would bleeding under such circumstances be a decided
malpractice ?

2d. Did Dr Hamilton, or the late Dr Thatcher, or any Edin-
burgh physician ever bleed women in labour when
exhausted ?

3d. If a woman has been go long in labour as to justify the -
operation of craniotomy ; and after performing cranio-
tomy, the patient being cnnsi&erahﬂr exhaunsted, and
under chloroform, would you consider bleeding to the
extent of twenty or thirty ounces to be unskilful treat-
ment ?

4th. Do you consider it would require the wisdom of a

rofessor of midwifery, a judge, or a fool to give
decided and satisfactory answers to questions 1, 2,
and 37
In your opinion is it possible for a doult to exist in the
mind of any civilised member of society regarding
the propriety or impropriety of such practice as detailed
in questions 1, 2, and 3%

5th. Before applying the forceps, or before proceeding to per-
form the operation of turning, can you tell with cer-
tainty, on examination by the hand, it catheterism 1s
necessary or not for the safety of your patient, and
it a mistake in this were to occur, what would be the

robable result to your patient ?
Wﬁat does Ramsbotham say on catheterism before apply-
-ing the forceps?

Gth. If called to attend a case of lingering labour, your patient
considerably exhausted, the case demanding immediate
interference, the head of the child impacted at the brim,
which is contracted to 3 inches in its antero-posterior
diameter, and which not only prevents the head from
advancing, but which also prevents you from applying
the forceps, will you persevere in your useless and mis-
chievous attempts, for two or three hours, in introduc-



TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW. 210

ine and attempting to forcibly lock the blades of the
Iilmgtmmeut? Emdgwhat mustybe the inevitable conse-
quences of such practice to the mother? e

Is such practice as specified in this question unskilful ?

What does Ghurc:hilf say regarding this ? '

7th. Is the forceps to be introduced during a labour pain, or
in the interval between the pains?

Quote Righy on this. :

8th. In a case in which the pelvis of the mother is contracted
in its antero-posterior diameter to three inches, the
head of the child, of the usual size, presenting, the first
stage of labour completed, and after several hours have
been occupied in your unsuccessful attempts to mtro-
duce and lock the forceps, what is the practice to be
adopted—ecraniotomy or turning ?

Will the latter operation be accomplished with ease o
with difficulty; and is it likely to be attended or fol-
lowed by trifling or most serious results to the mother?

If you succeed in turning the child, and having brought
down the extremities and body, you find that the head
of the child is so much ossified that it cannot be brought
through the contracted part of the pelvis, but remains
above the contracted brim, whatis the practice to be
adopted ?

Oth. In introducing the common scissors-shaped perforator to
the head of the infant, do you guide it along one finger,
or along the groove between two fingers; and state
your reason for go doing ?

10¢%. If you are so culpably reckless and careless of human
life as to be practising the responsible duties of the
accoucheur, without being at the trouble or the expense
of providing yourself with a proper set of instruments
ruitable for the successful per%::rmﬂnce of operations of
vital importance, and in which the safety of one or more
human lives is always involved, would you, under any
circumstances whatsoever, use as a craniotomy forceps,
the tool depicted by Fig. B, the pelvis of the mother
being contracted to three inches in its antero-posterior
diameter, the body of the child turned and occupying
the free space of the pelvis, and the head of the child,
of average size, remaining above the contracted brim ?

From the shape and size of the tool represented by Fig.
I3, 1s 1t possible to thrust it alongside the mass of the
child’s body through the contracted brim, already occu-
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Eie{’_[ 1? the neck of the child, to the cranium Perfbmted
ehind the ear, and to seize and extract portions of the
scalp and bones?

If it is impossible to accomplish what has been already
asked, what would incontrovertibly be the inevitabls
results to the mother from the attempt at a forcible
introduction of such an instrument as represented by
Fig. B?

11th. If called to a case of natural labour which, on your
arrival, all at once assumes the aspect of a lingering
labour, the first stage completed, the head resting on
the perineum, and the scalp tumonr distinctly felt in
the vagina, what is the practice to be adopted ?

12th. If you find yourself to be of so thoroughly an iritable
and excitagla temperament that you arve totally un-
qualified to practise instrumental midwifery, and that
you can “no more handle a forceps than ‘an infant,”
ought you to change your professi on, or ought you to
g0 on in your dire occupation ? i

13¢h. In such a case as described in question 11th, if you ave
unable to lock your forceps on the child’s head, and not
being pnssesaeg of a proper midwifery perforator, you
proceed to destroy the head of the child, still alive,
with a weapon, such as represented by Fig. D, and
being also in want of a crotchet, you have recourse to
the pincers, and thereby extract Eurtinns of the skull;
still failing, however, to remove the whole of the head,
you take blood from the arm to the extent of 30 ounces,
and thereafter make an attempt at turning ; and, fur-
ther, if, in the midst of your excitement and confusion,
mistaking a hand for a foot, you attach a strong cord,
as represented by Fig. E, to a wrist and ankle of the
child, and forcibly deliver, by pulling violently at the
cord; if your patient, the subject of such terrible tor-
ture, lingers on for a few hours, until death cloges the
scene—if such a case is treated by you in the manner
now described, will you, on serious consideration, arrive
at the conclusion that you have performed a feat in
operative midwifery, or that, in truth, you have been
guilty of a double crime ?
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No. IV.

1st. Translate into professional language the following vulgar-
isms :—
¢ Before putting in the forceps, I uniformly put in my
hand.”
¢ It (forceps) uniformly took by the head.”
¢ It (child) always remained in that position with the
leg out.” '
“It (head) stuck there at the brim of the pelvis.”
“ There was very considerable constitutional irmitation.”
2d. In the following precognition of a witness of unquestion-
able integrity, what points of practice pursued by the
accoucheur do you particularly admire or condemn ?
Quote Churehill, Denman, and Collins, in support of your
views. _
3d. 1. M*H. or E.—I am the widow of the late W. E., and re-
side in the village of F., in the parish of F. T am over
forty years of age, and am the mother of geveral of a
family. T recollect of the sixth confinement of my
sister-in-law, M. D, or M*H., wife of A. M*H., who then
lived m the town of C. It is now sixteen years ago
ast, on the night before P. F. market, in the month of
uly. My brother came for me about twelve at night.
I then lived in the parish of D., distant from C. about
two and a-half miles. T arrived at the house of my
sister-in-law between twelve and one o'clock. I went
to the bedside of my sister-in-law, and she spoke to me,
and said she had had labour pains since seven in the
evening; that up to cight she had been sometimes
sitting by the fireside, and sometimes walking about
through the roum. She told me the pains were weak,
and a good while between them. She appeared to be
gomg on safely and naturally. The doctor came into
the house a few minutes after my arvival. After sitting
for a few minutes—perhaps fifteen—he hegan to use
his forceps to deliver the woman. The doctor worked
for about two hours with his forceps trying to deliver
the woman, but the forceps always slipped. I know
what a forceps is. I have seen a forceps used at other
_ confinements. The doctor laid aside his forceps, and
r gaid the child was alive, but that he would require to
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destroy it, in order to save the woman. He then took
a straight piece of iron, of the thickness of my little
finger, about ten or twelve inches in length, with a
screw at one end, and screwed it into the child’s head,
and pulled away pieces of the child’s head. He re-
peated this operation a good many times. I could not
say how many times. The instrument the doctor used
was a single piece of straight iron; it was not like
a scissors ; it was not a hook. The doctor after this
took my brother into a closet, and told him the case
was a very serious one, and sent him off to P., a town
about five and a-half miles from C., for another doctor.
The doctor said to me and to J. D., a sister of M. D. or
M¢H., that the case was a bad one. We were both in
the back of the bed all the time the doctor was workin

with the patient. The doctor told us the after-birth
was coming first. After my brother left C. for P., the
doctor said he would turn the child. He proceeded to
turn, but always brought down the arms of the child.
He put them back, but they always came down again.
After working perhaps an hour or more, he took a
knife, and, with a terrible oath, suid he would never
make such a mistake again, and cut off first one arm
and then another, and threw them into a basin of water.
He then brought down the legs of the child, and asked
for a piece of cord. J.D,, sister of Mrs M‘H., went into

. the garden, and brought a piece of clothes-line (a piece

of cord, or rope, for hanging clothes on). The piece of
line was about one or two yards in length. The doctor
made a hitch on the line, and attached it to the legs of
the child; and at this time the doctor from P. armved,
and both doctors pulled by the line with all their might.
I and the sister of the sick woman, J. D., held down
the patient as well as we could, but the doctors pulled
her down, and almost out of the bed. The doctors
pulled for a while, and then desisted. They assisted
us in getting the patient placed in a proper position,
and then both pulled a second time. One doctor had

his foot sparred against the side of the bed, and the

other doctor had a hold of the cord as well, and both
pulled on the cord, and succeeded in extracting the
child from the mother. By this time the patient, Mrs
M‘H., was very weak; she moaned, and prayed the
doctors to let her die in peace. When the doctor was

. -
1 & *_h -.II—'I
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working with the patient with his instruments, the
blankets were thrown off, and the naked body was ex-
osed, I was in bed along with the patient the whole
time the doctors were attending her. J.D. was also
in the bed the whole time, except when she went into
the garden for the clothes-lime. Mrs MH. was deli-
vered a little past five in the morning of P. F. market
day, and died on the evening of the following day. A
eat deal of blood came from the woman during her
, S-:a]ivery. Both doctors hurried away immediately after
delivering Mrs M<H. 1 thought they did so to avoid
being seen by people on the strcet, as their clothes
were very much stained with blood. The doctor gave
his patient a good deal of chloroform when he was
attending her, but she was never entirely under it.
He swore a good deal when his instruments slipped.
The after-birth came off itself, or the doctor took it
away a few minutes after the woman was delivered
of the child. The child was dead, and all its head
destroyed. '

Mrs M¢H. previous to this had given birth to several living
children. A daughter, of about twenty years of age, is
now alive,

4th. Would you expose the person of a patient in labour when
using instruments, and what object would be accom-
plished by doing so?

5th. In the case of an abortion, what is the management of
retained placenta ?

Gth. Does 9.1; hour-glass contraction of the uterus in reality
exist ?

7th. Do you remove the placenta immediately after the birth
of the child, or do you prefer waiting fifteen minutes,
or even two hours, for a uterine contraction ?

8th. If called in the capacity of a physician to visit a patient,
aged 80, labouring under the following symptoms, what
line of treatment would you adopt ?—Pulse, 130 ; hard
and irregular ; much emaciation ; tongue black; occa-
sional delutum; flushed face; incessant and intolerable
desive to micturate ; wrine scanty, intensely acid, and
mixed with pus and blood ; a fixed, dull heavy pain over
the loins, greatly increased on pressure. Would you
approve of the treatment given in the following page,
which was adopted by a medical man, who has acted as
a general practitioner for nearly 47 years ?
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FIRST DIVISION—JUNE 20, 1866.

IS SRS

I¥ CAUSA
SHARP acainst WILSON,

Whether, on or about 12th February, 1864, the defender wrote and transmitted,
or caused to be written and transmitted, to Dr Greig, cf Portsoy, the letter, a copy of
which is contained in the Schedule hereunto annexed? Whether the said letter is of
and concerning the pursuer, and falsely and calumnionsly represents that the pursuer
is incompetent and unskilful in his profession as a practitioner of midwifery, and
that in the practice of said profession he had treated three cases incompetently and
unskilfully, to the loss, injury, and damage of the pursner? Damages laid at £1000
sterling.

Or whether, previously to the date of said letter, the puraner; as a practitioner of
midwifery, attended Mrs Longmore, Bauds of Cullen ;; Mrs Helen Spence or Geddes ;
Mrs George Mair, “ Bobbin,” and Mrs John Wilson, Seatown of Cullen, or any of
them, and whether he treated them, or any of them, unskilfully ?

(Schedule.)
% CorieN, 12tk February, 1864,

#Dear Sir,—I understand you were called some time ago to attend Mrs Wilson,
% Knowes, in her confinement, but, being in bad health, yon could not attend to her.
# Her husband then called Sharp, who visited her ; but she (Mrs Wilson) has not yot
“ heen confined. This plan of procedure on the part of Wilson I cannot by any
¢ means understand. Sharp lately attended a sister of Mrs Wilson (a Myrs Long-
& more, Bauds of Cullen) in her confinement, who died undelivered! and for Mr Wilson
% {5 call Sharp to his wife after this is a circumstance most unaccountable in my
i jdea. Now, I am the last man to interfere with another medical man in his pro-
 fegsion, neither do I wish to attend Mrs Wilson ; but I most certainly will be very
 much chagrined to hear of Sharp attending Mrs Wilson, or any other patient of
“ yours or mine in Deskford. If you have not already done so, do by all means call
t and see Mrs Wilson ; push her hard about her sister’s case. It is too bad to sce a
# man allowed to attend women who, T believe, is no more capable of using a pair of
b forceps than an infant. This is, at least, the third case of the sort that has fallen
« under his hands since I came to Cullen. Do be so good aslet me hear from you
“ goon ; and, with compliments to Mrs Greig and family, I am, dear sir, yours truly,

(Signed)  “James Wison.”

(Addressed) uDr Groig, Portsoy.”




PURSUER’S PROOT.

[The Parties agreed that the Medical Witnesses should remain in Court during the
leading of the Evidence. ]

THURSDAY, MAY 16.

Dr JAMES WILSON.

I am the defender in this action. (Shown No. 9 of process.) That letter is inmy A
handwriting. (Shown No. 10 of process.) The address on that envelope is in my
handwriting, I sent off the letter enclosed in that envelope to Dr Greig, of Portsoy,
on or about the date it bears—12th February, 1864, I know Dr Sharp, the pursuer

of this action. I never acted along with him in any midwifery case, orin any case
whatever.

Dr GEORGE GREIG.

I reside in Portsoy. Iam a member of the Royal College of Surgeons in Edin- g
burgh. I have acted as a general practitioner in Portsoy for nearly forty-seven years,
Portsoy is about five and a-half miles from Cullen. I know Dr Wilson, the defender,
alittle. T have known him since 1859. I have met him only once professionally. I
was medical attendant to James Wilson, Knowes, Deskford, from 1850 to 1864, and
had attended his wife in at least four of her confinements. I was called to attend
her in her confinement in February, 1864, I was umwell at the time, and forbidden
to go out at night, and I did not go. A few days afterwards I heard that the pur-
suer had been called in. T got that information in a note from defender. (Shown
Nos. 9 and 10 of process.) That is the letter. I received it, enclosed in the enve-
lope mow produced, on the 13th February. I had only received ome letter from
defender previous to that time; it was a letter calling me to a consultation with
reference to that one occasion on which I was professionally engaged with him, to
which I have spoken. That was in 1859. ((l) Did you understand what was
meant by the expression in that letter of 12th February, 1864: “ This plan of pro-
cedure on the part of Wilson I cannot by any means understand (4.) I eonld p
not account for his writing to me on that occasion. I did not understand what was
meant by these words. () Did you understand from the letter that Mrs Wilson
had been badly treated? (A.) I drew no inference of the kind. I did not form any
opinion with regard to the matter. I undoubtedly considered that the letter reflected
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A upon the professional conduct of Dr Sha After T got this id it asi
carefully until I should get the opinion of :E:y friend of glni.‘nl} wlllg:umijaitlﬂflﬁtlrtu:f]iz
to whether or not I should communieate it to Dr Sharp. I consulted with the late
Dr Wiyte, of Banfl, and showed him the lotter. T showed it to no other person, Dr
Whyte said I onght to hand it to Dr Sharp as soon as possible. I said 1 would not
seck out Dr @harp for the express purpose of doing so; but the first time I saw him
I would let him know I had such a document, and I did so. He came to my house

B a short time afterwards and received the document. There was no one present but
Dr Sharp and myself when he received it. I wrote to Dr Wilson in reply to this
letter, but I did enot get any answer from him, T have a rough seroll of the letter
which I sent to him, but I have not got it here. I received the letter in February
1864; and I think it was towards the end of November of the same year that 1
spoke to Dr Sharp about it, and handed it to him. I never was tn Dr Wilson's house.
I never had any conversation with him on the subject of this letter. T do not know

C what object he could have had in writing the letter, unless to lower Dr Sharp in my
opinion.

_Cross-examined—1 was not privately intimate with Dr Wilkon, 1 did not meet
him socially. He occasionally came to my house, but not often, 1 suppose he came

- as a friend ; I took his visits in a friendly manner. I applied to him onee for lymph
for vaccination purposes, and got it; but I applied for lymph wherever I could get
1, whether I knew the persons or not. Imet Dr Wilson once professionally in a con-

D sultation withregard to a patientof hisown, InJ une, 1864, I performed an operation
on the leg of a farm-overseer in the employment of William and Peter Fortune, the
tenants of Broom. When I was called in, the bone was protruding throngh the flesh,
and also through the stocking and the strong country boot that the man wore. I
reduced the fracture. Mr Fortune afterwards sent for Dy Wilson, who was his own
medical attendant, and he not only altered the treatment, but he altered the dressings.
Of course I was not pleased at that. I eannot say that I was actually angry, but I did

E not approve of it. I had neither friendly nor unfriendly communications with Dr
Wilson after that date. 1 had had no connection with him for several years previous
to that date. "It was from the contents of the letter itself that I formed the opinion
that Dr Wilson reflected on Dr Sharp's professional conduct. When I handed the
letter to Dr Whyte, of Banff, I did not know that he and Dr Wilson had anything
more than a common acquaintance. I do not always communieate to friends the
contents of letters that are written to me; but Dr Whyte was a friend in whose

F judgment T reposed great confidence. I had some business in Banff, and I took the
letter with me, and showed it to him, and asked him shether or not I should show it
to the person principally concerned, and he said that T ought todoso. It was in the
course of the summer that I communicated the letter to Dr Whyte. I did not sez
Dr Wilson before communicating the letter to Dr Whyte. I did mot think it was
necessary to ask him whether the lettér was private; it was not marked private. I
Liad no opportunity of asking him, for I did not see him. I did not think of asking

G him by post. T handed a copy of my reply to D Wilson to the loeal agent. So far
as I ean recollect its contents, I stated, in the first place, that I was not aware who
was called in to Mrs Wilson until I received his note. I then mentioned that I re-
commended my colleague, Dr Gardiner, but he was also unwell, and unable to go,
and, of course, I left Mr Wilson at liberty to take whom he chose. Dr Wilson had
made some remark in his letter respecting the treatment of a sister of Mrs Wilson,
who died from ruptured uterus, and I mentioned to him that the treatment which

H was pursued on that oceasion was exactly what the case required, and what I would
bhave done myself. I made no allusion to the other three cases mentioned in Dr
Wilson's letter, beeause I knew nothing about them. I was not present when Mrs
Longmore’s case was treated. It was from statements I heard publicly that I formed
the opinion that the treatment which Dr Sharp had pursue was exactly what it
ought to have been, and according to what is commonly received as the standard
opinion of the profession in cases of the kind. The case was generally talked about

Tamong the public; and Mys Wilson gave me her own statoment of what had taken
place with regavd to her sister. (1) Then, from what yon had heard publicly stated
you formed your opinion of Mrs Longmore’s case, and it was from the opinion g0

= i mm
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thought yourself entitled to send Dr Wilson's letter to Dr Whyte, A
;%tht:thj;na: hiaigihiﬁia on the case, without consulting with Dr Wilson at all?
(4) It 'was not from the opinion I then formed that I did so. It was from tho
opinion I formed as to the contents of the letter that I wished Dr Whyte's opinion,
a5 a confidential friend, as to whether or not I should communicate it to Dr Sharp.

JAMES WILSON.

I am a farmer at Knowes, in the parish of Deskford. I am fifty-one years of age. B
Dr Gréig, of Portsoy, was my medical attendant till lately, and attended my wife in
ehveral of her confinements. She was confined in February, 1864, 1 went for Dr
Grefg on that occnsion, but he did not come ; he sent a message that he was unwell.
I then ealled on Dr Gardiner, but I did not find him ; then I went for Dr Sharp, who
came and delivered my wife, but not that night. I think it was ten days after I
called Dr Sharp before she was delivered. There was no midwife in attendance.
About a twelvemonth after this I saw Dr Sharp in my house. He showed me a g
letter, which I read. (Shown No. 9 of process.) I think t’lufh is the l:ﬂttu_r. Dy
Sherp handed me a copy of it. (Shown No. 16 of process,) I think that is the copy
that was left in my possession. Some time after that, Mr Macleod, late forester ab
Cullen House, in Lord Seafield’s cstate, called at my hounse and asked a sight of tho
letter. He did not say from whom he came. I showed him the copy: He took it
away with him. He did not say what he wanted to do with it. He said he would
return it, but he did not do so. Dr Wilson once attended a daughter of mine ; that T
was several years ago. On the day when Macleod took away the letter, I received a
note from Dr Wilson, asking me to go to Cullen that night to be precognosced by
his agent. I anderstood it to be with reference to the letter. Mis Longmore, Bands
of Cullen, was my wife's sister. She was borm in 1826, and died in November, 1863.
Bhe had five or six children. :
Cross-examined—I once seconded the nomination of Dr Wilson, as medical officer
Jor the Parochial Board of Deskford ; 1 do not recollect in what year it was I did so. |

think Dr Sharp bad previously held the office. So far as I recollect, the reason
why I did so was, becanse the panpers bad more favour Jor Dr Wilson than for Dr
Sharp. When Dr Sharp showed me the letter, there was very little talk about it. I
do not recollect what he said. He certainly did not praise D Wilson. T don’t think
he abused him. He did not, in my hearing, call him a blackguard. I don’t think
Macleod specified any time at which he would return the letter; but just said that
e would return it very soon. I did not lend it to him. I just showed it to him, F
and he pocketed it, and would not give it up again. I afterwards asked him to
return it, and he said he would make Dr Wilson return it. I suspected from this
that it bad passed out of Macleod's possession.

’ MARY BIDDIE or WILSON.

I am the wife of James Wilson, the preceding witness. I am forty-five years of
age. I know Dr Greig, of Portsoy. Up to 1864 he was onur medical attendant. Ho
attended me at five confinemonts. Joan was born in February, 1864. I was @
attended on that occasion by DrSharp.  Dr Greig had been sent for, but did not come.
The first time Dr Sharp called was ten days before my delivery. I think he called
once again between that time and my delivery. I was safely delivered on that
‘oceasion. Mrs Longmore, Bauds of Cullen, was my sister. She died in November,
1863. T heard that she had been attended b}{r Dr Sharp. I have seen Dr Sharp in
& good m_rﬁQ{ midiotfery cases among my neighbours, 1 think he treated me well, and
from what I have seen of his practice in other similar cases, I had great confidence in 1
him. Mrs Tongmore was born in 1826, She was married, I think, in 1 She
had borne nine children ; and it was onher tenth confinement that she died. About
8 twelvemonth after Joan was born, Dr Sharp came to owr house and showed a letter
that Dr Wilson had written to Dr Greig. A copy of it was given to my husband., I
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A did not see that copy taken away. Iread the letter. It conld not produce any im-
pression on my mind, for I had nothing to do with it. Dr Wilson once attended a

daughter of mine ; I donotrecollect how many years it is ago, W
him after that. : (4 = Rl

Dr HUGH SHARP.

B I am the pursuer of this action. I obtained the degree of M.A. at Marischal
College, Abe in 1830. I went through the full ﬁﬂITiGUluJII:. of academic study,
I have a diploma from the Royal College of Surgeons, England ; it was the Royal
College of Surgeons of London when I passed, but the name has since heen changed.
It was in 1882 that I passed. After obtaining my diploma, I began to practise in
New Pitsligo, Aberdeenshire, along with my brother, who was also a medical man,
but who is now dead. I practised there from 1832 till 1837. I then went to China
O as surgeon of an Hast Indiaman. I returned from China in 1838 ; and, after spend-
ing a few months at home, I commenced to practise at Cullen, where I have con-
tinned ever since. I have had a considerable practice at Cullen, including the
principal inhabitants of the district, with Lord Seafield at their head. I have been
employed ﬁﬁnf Seafield's establishment since 1840,
I knew Longmore, Bauds of Cullen, intimately. I was her medical attendant
for a number of years previous to her death. I attended her family. She died in
D childbed in November, 1863. I was called in to see her about four o’clock in the
afternoon of the day in which she died. I think it was about eight o'clock when she
died. I had not seen her before that with reference to that confinement. She had
been attended by a midwife called Flett or Simpson. When I came in at four o'clock
I found Mrs Longmore very much collapsed. I counld not understand the case at first.
She had had no uterine pains—[see pages 87 G, 44 H, 45 G, 56 D, E]—that is, pains of
labour—for a great many hours before L was called.  She was not delivered then. She
E had a severe pain in the bottom of her belly, but no uterine pains. The abdomen
was quite flaceid, and there being no labour pains, I conjectured at first that it was
the death of the child that cansed it. The midwife, I"was told, had urged the hus-
band, as early as five o'clock in the morning, to send for some medical man, not
naming any one particularly, as she did not understand the case, and she continued to
do so repeatedly after that. I sat down and waited to sece if there would be any
alteration, but there was none. I then attempted to apply the long forceps in order
F to extract the child ; but, on making the attempt, the head receded into the uterus
altogether out of reach. There was no presentation to be got. She was slightly
under chloroform at the time. [36 H, 56 I, G.] After that I turned the child and extracted
one of the feet, and made one of the women who were present attach a plece of tape, as 1
uniformly do, round the foot. The object of doing this is, if the foot should happen
to recede, it ean be easily got by it; and another thing is, that when the tape is
round the foot one can get a better hold of it, using proper traction. J could not
@ understand what was retaining the child in utero ; and 1 wnitroduced my hand to examine
it, and found that the head was through a rupture of the wterus. When I ascertained
that the head had gone through that rent I desisted, and ordered them to send to
Buckie, which is about four miles from the place, for some of the medical men there.
Dr Carmichael, of Buckie, came, and he and I sat down in the 114::113-:'1.+ not far from
the patient, while I explained to him the nature of the case. I told him that there
was a rupture of the uterus, and that I was afraid the woman would soon be dead.
H She died in a very short time, probably a few minutes after Dr Carmichael came.
Tmmediately after death, he proposed that there should be a post mortem examination.
I said that such a thing was very repugnant to the feelings of ignorant country
people ; but that, if he wished it, he should go gnd try to get them to aphm:'? to it,
for I did not like to rouse them. He went and tried to gat‘tham to aul:rmr't to it, bat
came back to me and said they would not allow him to do it. He then wished me to
try and see if they would not allow me to do it. I did so, and the husband imume-
I diately said, * Oh, do as you like.” I came and tu}d Dr Carmichael immediately that
I had got permission at once; and he said, You will operate—yon will perform
the examination.” I said I would not do it, but that I would stand by him while he
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i : ] mination ; and as soon as the external walls of the A
nbdummwerzupemi,i e head of the child appear: y &1 L, 1, 1
said, “T see now it 1s what you said.” ,The child was then lifted out of the ‘nt-?ru_n an
given to one of the women who were present, and then we sewed up the nmn;:;:u
He did not go any further, neither did he or I examine the rent of the uterus. hu
thing was done in an instant. The child was just lifted out and given to ono of tho
bystanders, and the incision was sewed up. The child was dead. Isigned the cer-
tificate of the woman's death, (Certificate produced.) The causo 1:;[I death is stated B
to be  rupture of the uterus.” There was nothing in Mrs Longmore’s health or con-
stitution to lead to the accident. She was of weakly constitution, but I am not aware
of any disease she had; she was thin. Zherupture was on the i’q,l'::‘ side at the upper f.’.-:—rd:
of the fundus of theuterus. Itwaus neither on the anterior or posterior surfuce, but exlendea

terally. [58 F, G, 59C, D, 41 C,D.] I could not be absolutely certain whether the

direction of the rupture was horizontal or perpendicular; but I rather think it was E
perpendicular. I am not able to describe it exactly, beeause there was o little atten- C
tion given to it at the time of the examination. When we saw that it was rupture, the
incision was closed up immediately. When I came in, Mrs Longmore told me that
she had a severa pain in the lower part of her abdomen—not an alternating pain like
a uterine pain, but a constant fixed pain. This pain, I was told, had lasted fora good
many hours; and I understood that it was becanse she had no pains of labour that I
was called in. Had there been suflicient pains of labour, the midwife would have
been perfectly able to have done everything that was necessary herself; she had D
been with Mrs Longmore in all her previous confinements, but she said she did not
understand this. The os uteri was perfectly dilated. The head had nearly approached
to the brim of the pelvis. Idid not get even one blade of the forceps introduced. As
goon a8 I was abont to introduce the first blade, the head receded into the uterus,
Before putting in the forceps, I uniformly put in my hand, in order to guard tho
os uteri and the soft parts, and then the blade of the forceps is introduced, along with'
the hand. It was when [ put tn my hand that the head receded, and then I did not B
introduce the forceps. [In iy opinton, the best thing next to be done was to turn the child,
because tinmediate Cglfl-'t?f_l,l' was the thing demanded from the state of collapse in which the

patient was. There are varions courses that might have been adopted ; but the turn-
ing of the child was the best thing in the circumstances, and is recommended by the
highest anthorities, and it is what I have universally practised in such cases. After
turning the child, the next thing to do was to extract it; and, as I have already

eaid, upon getting hold of ono foot, I made an assistant attach a piece of tape round B
the ankle of the child. By presenting the child in that way, I thought it would be
extracted ; but I found that it could not, and, on scarching for the reason, I ascer-
tained that the head of the child was through the uterus. There might have been
other remedica than that of turning the child adopted in other circumstances. For
instance, tho Cmsarian section might have been adopted, but that is a serious opera-
tion, and one that no single medical man will adopt without an asgistant. Besides,

I had no instruments for that; and it wounld have taken an hour at the least to have G
obtained them,

The case of Mys Spence or Geddes occurred in the year 1841 ; and it is so long
ago—twenty-six years—that, perhaps, I do not remember fully about.it. Mrs Geddes
lived at Bauds of Cullen, about two or two and a-half miles from Cullen ; and I was
called in to see her at her confinement. She was under the care of a midwife when
I saw her. T think it was about mid-day when I was ealled in. Her pains were
then inefficient, so that I left her. T called back at three o'clock, and there was no I
alteration upon her. I said I would call back some time in the evening ; but I was
called away to a distance—to a placo, I think, about seven miles farther west. I was
sent for in the evening, and I should think it was about seven o'clock when I camo
back. I attempted to deliver her then by the forceps. The presontation was natural,
and in the firat position, and she was in the second stagoe of labour. On applying my
midwifery forceps, I found it was foo weak. It uniformly took by the head; but it
slipped many times. I made the remark to the people, that if my midwifery foreepa 1
went on slipping in this way, there was ouly one alternative, and that was o breal:
down tke child ; but, previous to that, 4 wished them to send for any wedival man i the

< . R
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A district. [68 B, 0, 61 1] I was a stranger at that timo, and knaw i
in the diulls:rict; but I ordered them to send for one. *].?ﬂuy sont [nrnﬁrm&ﬁzt?;ﬁ:
of Buckie, who eame, and used his own forceps. It did not slip more than onee, but
I rather think it did slip once ; it is so long ago, however, that I do not remember
exactly. The child was delivered. The mother recoverod, and the child survived
and is alive still. Dr Garmichael’s forceps was different from mine—it was sl:rangnr:
and straight. Mine was what is called Hamilton's foreeps, double curve. This was

B not a suitable case for turning the child. It was a first ohild, I did not examine
the state of the fetal heart with the stethoscope ; I do not think it was in uss then.

The case of Mra George Mair, Bobbin, oceurred in December, 1856. I attended -

her for her confinement. She was attended by a midwife before, I really forget what
time of day it was when I was called there, but I think it was about fwelse o'clock.
[60T, 61 A.] On arriving, I found her considerably exhausted, and the ease demanding
tmunediate interforence. I attempted to apply a long forceps, but I could not do so,
C for the best of all rensons—that there was not room to apply it. I tried it various times,
with an interval of perhaps half-an-hour between each attempt ; but I could not get
the forceps applied for want of room. I then said to the husband that, as the case
appeared to be awery difficult one, he had better send to Portsoy, a distaneo of siz
miles or thereby, for Dr Gardiner, or any of the medical men there, to assist me.
There were two medical men there besides Dr Gardiner, A messenger was
accordingly sent, but he returned, and said they were all from home. Seeing, then,
D that the case demanded immediate interference, I commenced myself. I turned the
child, but found that, after all, without the cerebrum and the cerebellum being
evacuated, and the cranium collapsing, Tcould not get her delivered. I applied my
erotchet—an instrument for pulling down the head—but found the head so firmly
ossified, that the crotchet would take no hold of it. I had no craniotomy forceps in
my case ; but there happened to be a shoemaker’s shop almost next door, and [ got
a pair of pincers from him, and applied it to the head of the child, and it answered the
B purpose wonderfully, (Producesinstrument.) I was able to extract the child ; and,
for a day or two, the woman recovered wonderfully well. This was about eight
o'clock on the Saturday night. [69 C.] I called back on the Sunday about twelve
o'clock, and found the patient in a most satisfactory state, with an excellent pulse, and
m:&nkxiniﬂy of notling. I did not see her again, but I afterwards understood that she
died that night. She was in such a state when I saw her on the Sunday that I did
not anticipate a fatal conclusion. [60 F.] The presentation in that case was quite

F natural, in the first position. The reason why the birth was prevented was that the -

pelvis was contracted ; in the antero-posterior dinmeter, so far as I was able to ascer-
tain—[63 E, F]—it was about three inches. That was one cause; and another canse was
the child’s head being so firmly cssified that it did not yield. I preferred the opera-
tion of turning to craniotomy, because I had performed turning several times, accord-
ing to the recommendation of Sir James Simpson, who is the gréatest authority of
the day upon that subject. In performing the turning, you introduce a hand into
G the uterus, and search fora foot. If you get one foot, that is quite sufficient ; we
never search for fwwo—there is no necessity for it. If we get one foot, that is quite
enough ; and, on getting down one foot, we attach a littlo bit of tape to the ankle.
That is all that is done. After getting hold of the dune foot, we use traction to extract
the child, ~ I found it could not be extracted in that way, and then took the perfora-
tor, and perforated the head at the back of the ear to evacuate thu_hrmn. The head
after that generally collapses, and there is little trouble in extracting the child ; but
H in this case, zo strongly was the head of the child ossified, that it did not eontract,

and I could not get my crotchet to take hold of the bone. Then I reflected what I -

would do, and I got these pincers, and an excellent tnstrument it is. This was the
womnn's first ¢hild. She appeared to be a woman of from twenty-two to twenty-thres
years of age. I do not know what was the cause of her death. 1 understood after-
da that the room had been crowded with fisherwomen, after the fashion there at
ch times; that is a thing that is not good for the patient.

I  Asto the case of Mrs John Wilson, Seatown of Oullen, I attended her in her con-
finement in 1860. There was no midwife attending her. So far as I can recollect,
she was talen in labour on the Thursday, and I delivered her by the forceps on the
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wwday. She was for that period of time in labour. Being her first. labour, the A
1?:::;3 1351‘& very stiff and unyielding at first. However, the child's head P“‘-‘E‘iﬁ‘sﬂe“l
till she was in the second stage of labour—that is, when the uterus or os uteri does
not longer obstruct the birth. The child's face was in the hollow of the sacrum,
but quite impacted, and remained so for a good many hours, until considerable c:lrll-
gtitutional irritation began to be produced. I then applied the forceps upon tho
child’s head, and delivered it. Part of the perincum gave way. I never had a case
under my care before in which the perineum gave way. It is said to be a very B
common thing; but that is the only case, either before or sinee, that I ever saw
where the perincum was ruptured. The child and mother both got well. Tho
mother would be about twenty-five years of age then. I treated her extremely little
for the rupture of the perineum, because I was in the anticipation of having it in my
power to recommend her being placed under the care of Dr Keiller, of Edinburgh.
She was to go to her husband at Dunbar, and, as she was to pass through Edinburgh,

1 gave her a letter of rccommendation to Dr Keiller. She came to Edinburgh, C
underwent his treatment, and returned ecured. (Shown H::n_. 15 of process.) That
is a copy of the letter which I sent to Dr Keiller. It contains a true statement of
the case. : A

Towards the end of 18G4, I met Dr Greig, of Portsoy, in the village of Fordyes,
and he said to me, #I have something in my possession that would open your eyes
somewhat with regard to some of your neighbours, and the first time you are in
Portsoy, if you will call, T will give it to you." Accordingly, the first time I was in D
Portsoy, I ealled on Dr Greig, and he handed me a letter. (Shown No. 9 of process.)
That is the letter. I thought it was just on a par with many other things I had
suffered from the same quarter. T was very much hurf in my feelings, and irritated,
that I should be so held up to disgrace. 1 am a married man, and have a large family
dependent upon nie.

Cross-examined—When I got the letier, I showed it to somo of my professional
friends. Iafterwards showed it to others than professional friends. I recollect, on E
one cceasion where I used the forceps, that after I had done so, and finished the case
successfully, I took out the letter and read it, and asked tho people, * What do you
think of thatnow? Do you think I cannot apply the forceps?” That was in Cullen,
soon after I received the letter. I showed it to Mr Brander, the teacher. [ showed
it to all my fiiends. ((Q.) In short, you wished to malke it as public as you eould ?
(4.) I wished to show what abuse I had got; besides, it was trumpeted through the
whole country. r

In the case of Mrs Mair, I tried to apply the forceps, but I was unable to do so.
Before I tried to apply it, I examined her pulse, and the state of her abdomen and
parts, and generally took such means as we always do to ascertain the condition of
a patient. I also made a tactile examination by the hand to ascertain the position of
the child. I did not use the catheter before I tried to apply the forceps, because it
was not requisite. I understood that, by asking the patient what condition her
urine was in. I attempted several times to use the forceps, but failed. I cannotG
Bay how many times I attempted it. I really forget now these triffing things. T might
have had both the blades in, but I could not get them applied. I never made an
attempt to extract by the forceps, because I could not get it locked. ke Jorceps
never sfipped in the course of this birth, I did not tie the forceps. It was not applied,
and, consequently, it was never tied. I suppose I had been engaged several hours in
attempting to use the forceps; I would stop for half an hour, and then try it again.
It was very exhausting, and, besides, it was necessary to give the patient rost, IH
really ean give no idea of the nuniber of times I attempted to introduce the forceps.

L never tried to introduce the forceps during a labour pain.  No sane person would do
anything of the kind; it would be the very worst and most ignorant thing in the world.
48D, 49 G, 49 E, F, 61 B, C, 54 B, 64 A, B, 72 B, C.] Whon I adopted the
course of destroying the child, I had the instruments generally used for that purpoese
—a crotchet and a perforator. We use the perforator first, to make a perforation in
the skull, and through that perforation we evacuate the brain; we then use the I
crotehet. I had no instrument but the perforator for destroying the head; in
general, wo do not use any other instrument, The perforator is a kind of scissors,
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A cutting oulwardly—a sort of converso scissors.  We introduce a finger to the eranium
first, and then guide the porforator along the finger to the craninm. I used the in-
strument as gently as possible in order to effect the pmrpose I had in view; but you
would not eause it to go through a child’s head if you were using it very gently. ~ So
far as I remember I did not in the very slightest injure the parts of the woman in
doing this. Of course, I might have injured her ; but it is the endeavour of every
medical man to do a thi:}glwith the least possible injury. 7 am not aware of any-

B thing I did that could in the slightest have injured the parts of the woman. (Shown No.
53 of process—a poker.) I did not use an instrument like that in the operation, nor
anything at all resembling it. I used nothing but the crotchet and the pincers, I did not
stab at the woman fn any weay, nor did I tear off any of her flesh. I did not tie the arm
of the child. [64C, D, 65 A, B, 67 D, E, 68 E, F.] I caused a piece of tape to be
attached to the foot ; but the obstetrician who counld attach a cord to the body or to
the arm and to the leg of a child, wounld beat the best in Europe—it is simply im-

C possible. In general I use a piece of tape, or the first piece of cord that comes to
hand—anything that will be a mark. I did not try to extract the child by pulling
on the cord. I had the foot to draw by. The arm and the leg were not both down
together. 1 did not biced the woman [6 F, 66 H, I, 67 A, B, 68 F, G]; but I gave
her chloroform every time I attempted the application of the forceps. I do not
rocollect of saying that she was so strong that she must be kept down, and then of
bleeding her. I am satisfied in my own mind that £ did not bleed her. I wasin the

Dhouse for a short time only after the birth of the child—for, perhaps, twenty
mimutes or half an hour. I turned the child in this case because there was a confrac-
tion at the lrim of the pelvis, that not only prevented it from advancing, but that pre-
vented me from applying the forceps. It was approaching the sceond stage of labour
when I turned it. I did not attempt to turn it again. It remained always in that
position with the feg out. The head of the child was easily got at with the scissors,
because it was so jur down. 1 did not shake the woman. I reated her tenderly, as 1

I nlways do persons in that situation. I did not swear at ler. [61 G, H, 62 G, H, 62
C, 62 11.] If I had been guilty of such conduct as that, I could not have forgotten
it. I did not say that the child's head was mortified.

In the case of Mrs Helen Spence or Geddes, I treated the patient with my usual
tenderness. I did not shake her voughly, or swear at her. T havo no recollection of ever
indulging in any such conduct. [ never swear at patients. I applied the forceps a
good, many times in that case, but it always slipped beeaunse it was foo weak, and

T* would not hold. I supposed I had persevered for an four or two, applying it from
time 1o time. I do not recollect of making any diagnosis as to whether the child
wonld bo born alive. I do not reeollect of saying that the child was dead ; but 1t 18
{wonty-six years since ihe thing took place, and it is just possible that I may have
forgotten it. The child was born alive. If I had said, before the child was born,
that it was dead, and it was afterwards born alive, I might remember haying made
such o remark ; but I do not. It is a most difficnlt thing to form a diagnosis of

G whether a child is alive or dead before it is born. [ did not propose to Dr Carmichael
to break up that child befove he delivered it.  [58 A, B.] No medical man would ever
think of anything of the kind without first trying his forceps. I am not awaro that
tho child was injured in any way by my use of the forceps. T saw the child after it
was horn. There was no {:-Efmy upon f.!', eo far as I recollect.  There might have been
some little marks about the head, but nothing serious ; nothing more than would be
expected on a child where the forceps is used. I never said that the eye of the child

II was ont. My failure to deliver Mrs Geddes was entirely due to the want of a forceps
of sufficient strength ; and I got a pair made after that which have never failed. :

In the case of Mrs Longmore, the presentation was a natural one. Inever said to
Mrs Paterson that it was a cross-birth, [ did not in that case, by traction on the cord
which had been placed round the ankle, attempt to deliver the child. }5{5 G.] Ihada
hold of the foot, and did not require the cord for that purpose. [ did not tear mai;
picces of flesh from the woman. [556 I, 57 E.] There was no flow of blood w}mu

I attempted to apply the forceps. Therc was no flooding at that time, There was an
escapoe of a littlo blood, probably 10 oz, after the child was turned ; but not when 1
was attempting to apply the forceps. When Dr Cavmichael opened the body of the
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a - [ &l rufﬂ
. dontls. T was standing besido him, and looked at the body. The rupture
;;f;:: ra:r;l;:t!? :uiz“:;'s’mra at once. I-%"ﬂ’um the walls of the abdomen were laid open, the fead

of the child appeared tnstantly. [58 F, 59 C, 41 C.] .
fﬂy Lord ]iufnlmh—l ﬁuuf practised as an accoucheur since 1882, I have .&m} a;ﬁ;
sion to use the forceps very frequently indeed. 1 should say that, on an average,
used it a dozen times wa? year during the 35 years I have been 1n practice. s
Re-cxamined—I learned midwifery in Aberdeen University, whero I attend S0
lectures of Dr Fraser. A good deal of the midwifery in the district is practised by
midwives ; ab one time it was altogether in their hands. Tt is upwards of 20 years
o since doctors began to be called in from the first to officiate. Sometimes they
ave called in too late, when the person is in articulo mortis. When I speak of ":.;D
cars, I mean the time when the dpatnaﬂ had eharge of the whole case, and not merely
-ore called in for cases of danger. . _
thennrtiu;gaE:l]:lﬂ-—L‘};ﬂﬂiplnmu. from the gﬂoynl College of Surgeons includes mid-

wifery, as well as other branches of the profession. (o]

Dr JAMES GARDINEL.

I am an M.D., and Licentiate of the Royal College of Surgeons, Edinburgh. I
practise in Portsoy, and have done so since 1843, I know Dr Sharp, the pursuer of
this action, and have met him pretty often professionally. I havebeen with him in D
midwifery eases. I have seen him deliver women. I have seen him use the forceps,
and that successfully. In ono case he delivered a patient of mine. My forceps
slipped once or twice, and Dr Sharp delivered her by his forceps. From what Thave
geen of Dr Sharp's professional practice, I believe him to be a thoroughly qualiffed
surgeon in midwifery eases. I have neversecn Dr Sharp apply the forceps during a
labour pain ; that would assuredly not be qood practice. Iy's

Cross-cxamined—I eannot assign any reason for my forceps slipping on that ocea- I
sion when Dr Sharp succeeded in delivering the woman. I did not compare his
forceps and mine together, to see which was the strongest. Ho may have been sne-
cessful in consequence of the superior strength of his foreeps ; bub I could not say.
My forceps does not often slip; but I supposo the best Land will slip sometimes with
the best forceps.

ELIZA COWIE or GEDDES. r

1 am the widow of the late Willinm Geddes, and reside at Bands of Culien. I am
44 years of age. I kuew the late Mrs Longmore, of Bauds of Cullen. I remember
her death, I was in her house on the morning of the day on which she died. I
went there between one and two o'clock. She was then very ill.  There was nobody
with her when I went. The midwife had not come ; she came about an hour after-
wards. When the midwife came, she examined Mrs Longmore, She did not express G
any opinion, so far as I heard, about ber condition, further than by saying that Mra
Longmore was very ill, and was not in a fair way. About eight o'clock in the morn-
ing, 1he midwife, thinking the woman was in an anxious state, wanted a doctor to be
sent for ; but a doctor was not ealled in at that time. It was three o'clock in tho

_afternoon before a doctor was sent for. Mrs Longmore objected to it. Dr Sharp
came between four and five o'clock in the afternoon, and examined Mis Longmore.
She was at that time complaining very much of a fixed pain in the lower part of her IT
belly.  The labowr pains by that time were getting very weak, and Mrs Longmore herscli
was also getting very weak.  There was a cord attached to the JSoot of the child. 1 saw
the foot. I did not see the head. The doctor, after he had examined her, said there
was & rupture, and he seemed very anxious about her. He asked for additional
assistance, and Dr Carmichael was sent for. He came, I think, about seven o'clock.
Mrs Longmore was in a dying state then. I could not be sure how long she lived
after Dr Carmichacl came. I conld mot say, from the confusion there was in the I
house, whether Dr Carmichael examined her or not ; but ho went into the room
where sho was. I was in the room when she died. There was a proposal made for
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A an examination of her body after the woman died. T was nob in the room when thn
examination wasmade. T saw the child after it was taken from the mother, It'was
my impression that Dr Sharp did everything on that oceasion that eould be done for
Mrs Longmore. He seemed very kind and attentive. &

COross-examined—I was in the room a great portion of the time. T saw Dy Sharp
attempt to use the forcops. There was such a confusion in the room, that I could
not be sure whether he tried it repeatedly. I saw him attempt to use it onece at

Dleast. I counld notbo sure what kind of cord or string was tied round the foot of the
child, because I was taking little notice of that. I think Dr Sharp got it out of his
pocket. While Dr Sharp was trying to use the forceps, I did not see more blood
flowing from the person of Mrs Longmore than I would expeet to see in an ordinary
case. [ did mot see any person covering up any blood. 1 saw somo blood—just what
therc would be in a common ease. T did not see whother it was running at the time~
the doctor was working. T was in the room at the time, bat T was not always near

Chim. Iam not sure who it was that proposed the examination of the body after
death.  There were labour pains after Dr Sharp arrived, although the woman was
getting very weak. I did not hear Dr Sharp make any statement as to the child
being dead or alive. I did not examine Mmr%ungmom‘s person myself. I did not
%‘HT;; ].::;1- Sharp say anything about it being a cross birth, or as to what kind of a

irth it was.

D JANE GRANT or SINCLATR.

I am the wife of John Sineclair, carpenter, Cullen. T am 47 vears of age, and have
had ten children. T was present ab a confinement of Mra Wilson, Sentown of Cullen,
in 1860. Tt was her first confinement. I went for Dr Sharp, and he eame imme-
diately. He watched the symptoms for a shovt time. o came once or twiceon the

_fivst day. T was present at the delivery; I was in the bed. Dr Sharp used his

Einstruments. I think he used them at the proper time. The use of them was a
necessity ; the woman was in great distress. I saw no harsh treatment on the part
of Dr Sharp. I saw him in the house next day, and it was mentioned then that thero -
was a rupture, He attended Mrs Wilson till she left for Edinburgh. I have been
with Dr Sharp at various confinements where he used the forceps. In my opinion,
he did so carefully and successiully. He appeared to be kind to his patients, Ho
attended me in three confinements, and he treated me well and snceessinlly.

F Cross-examined—DBefore introdueing the forceps, Dr Sharp told me to get somsn
things ready for him. I got a basin and some water, and he ordered another woman
to be got into the house. I do not recollect now whether that was all the prepara-
tion he made. I do not remember whether Lie used his catheter to draw off the
woman's water. He did not give her an injection, nor did he relieve Ler bowls in
any way that I saw. I was there all the time,

G S JAMES Y. SIMPSON, Bagr.

I am Professor of Midwifery in the University of Edinburgh, I have an extensive
practice in all branches of the medical profession, but especially in that of midwifery.
When Dr Sharp ealled on me two days ago £ did not know lim, and I was very
unwilling to appear in this case ; but I have seen him many years ago.

I have heard the evidenco which has now been given with regard to Mrs Long-

II more’s case. Rupture of the nterus is saied to happen itn 1 tn cvery 400 or 500 labowrs.
I had a student in whose very first case there was rupture of the uterus hefore ho
went to it. It is much more frequent in females who have had large families, and
who have borne children in rapid succession. This woman had had ten children, I
think ; and the-uterus gets more and more weakened, and more liable to rupture
after cach confinement. It is one of the lezions that are more frequent as lifo
alvances, It is move frequent after the age of 35, and becomes still more frequent

I afterwards. ((}) Is it more frequent after the third pregnancy than before? (.)
I don't know that the third pregnancy has any particular influence, but the more
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iy o woman has children, it scems to Do the more likely to oceur. Such a A
;?11;:’:11313 might oceur without any very marked symptoms Wl {illi‘:ﬂst a r_réidmftfﬂi:
attention ; indeed, she would be a very clever midwife who won iscover it s
not always possible to tell what the cause of a.rupture has been, but we some !
know. One of the most common causes 18 o ﬂ:_se:‘:aenl state of the nterus, where
{hat has been going on during pregnaney, rpm’[urmg some part of the uterus mn-m
lncorable than the rest, and the very first pains of I:thur split up that part J:I]I:tﬂ!ll‘}
of opening the month of the womb. (@) Is it more likely to happen to a female of B
weakly habits and constitution? (A4.) I do not know of any sta_tlatma about that

int. I heard Dr Sharp state where he thought the rupture to be a1tuu.tcﬂ——l}ﬂnr the
middle and left side of the uterus, I bave very little doubt, from hearing the .
acconnt, that it took place lower down {han it appeared externally. _If I may state
wlat my impression is, it is simply this: that the uterns was partially ruptured
through all its coats, perhaps, except the last, which {ines the womb externally, and that,
in the act of turning, tho child got through, [77 F.] (@) In tho case of suchag
patient as Mrs Longmore, according to the description you heard, requiring imme-
dinte rolief, and when the sending for instruments would have taken some timo, was
it not the best way to attempt delivery by turning? (A.) It was tho established
yule of practice at the time Dr Sharp was tanght, and perhaps 1t 18 the general rule
of practice yet. There are other modes of delivery, but that is the one followed by,
perhaps, nine men out of ten; I mean that which Dr Sharp deseribed as the mode
which he adopted. ’ : 2 g I

In the case of Mrs Helen:Spence or Geddes, it was said that two different kinds of
forceps were used by the two medical men, Dr Sharp and Dr Carmichael—
Iamilton's forceps and the straight forceps. The one is merely curved round to
the curve of the pelvis, the other is quite straight ; but I do not think the slipping
depended upon the form. These instruments differ much in their power ; they are
of very different strengths. We see slipping less frequently now than we did twenty
years ago; because our instruments are better made. I have seen a forceps slip E
becanse it was too wenk and yielding ; but more frequently becanse it gels on fo
portions of the head which wont allow of a proper hold, and then it slips hither and
thither. This may occur with a very good forceps. The position of the head in the
pelvis regulates that sometimes. (Q.) In a case like that of Mys Geddes, where the
child’s head was firmly impacted in the pelvis, ‘with the face in the hollow of the
gacrum, by which kind of foreeps would delivery be most likely to be effected ? (A.)

I never uso any but the curved forceps, while some men use none but the straight. I
You find in this matter, as in others, that different schools take to different
practices. In the Dublin school, which is one of the largest midwifery schools, they
use almost nothing but+the straight; but here we use the curved. In the absence
of the stethoscope, a mistake might be made with regard to whether the child was
dead; and it might be made with the use of the stethoscope too. A mistake of that
kind would imply no want of skill. (().) Suppose the child had been dead, and the
foreeps had failed, what would have been tho approved praetice to follow? (A.)G
The approved practice would have been to open the head of the child by craniotomy.
gﬂ,’] Do you know the practice in Dublin in such cases as that of Mrs Geddes, as Dr

harp has deseribed it? (4.) In the Dublin hospital they would try to deliver by
the short forceps, because they never use the long forceps there. - They always, in
ense of failure, open the chil®s head ; they never use the long forceps which Dr
Sharp tried in one of the cases; they perforate at once. :

As to the ease of Mrs Mair, Bobbin—Of course, in a case of tedious labour, where IT
there is no precise information as to what has been going on, the practitioner requires
to watch the symptoms of the patient, and the state of the parts. He has to ascer-
tain the present condition of the patient constitutionally and loeally. (Q.) You
heard the case deseribed—was Dr Sharp's practice the safest in the cireumstances ?
(4.) He tried to apply the foreepd, as I understood, and could not get the long
forceps applied. Under these circumstances he turned the child, rmﬁpnq the feet

ent instead of the head. I think that in all our English and Scotch schools that I
as come now to be very much the established practice. (Q) Is it a common
practice to tie a cord round the ankle in tho operation of twrning? (4.) It is with
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A many. 1 have very little doubt that Dr Fraser usod to teach ity because it was much
more taught formerly than it is now. It is o very common practice abroad, but less
80 now in this country. (@Q.) Did you sce anything objectionable in the nse of
pincers, in the circumstances which have been described ? (4.) That was for
another part of the case. The diffieulty was to get the head through an aperture
which was smaller than the head itself, and for that purpose Dr Sharp did what was
very right—what I have done mysell, and what we have all done under the condi.

Btions—he perforated the head. But then he found that the two instruments he had
—the crotehet and the perforator—the erotchet being the instrument then usually
applied—were insufficient; and, as I understodd him, he went in search of. another
instrument to help him, and he got hold of this (showing the pincers produced by Dr
Sharp.) J¢ ts very much in the form which onr instruments have now got, When I
heard of it this morning, I sent for ono of the last American books on the practice of
midwifery, and I find that there is there an instrument very similar for a similar case.

C In these cases, let me sa further, that when one is driven to his wit's end, ho is very
glad to get anything. 1 saw a case in London, of a deformed woman, where thera
were three professors of midwifery, and four or five instruments were tried. We
tried to get other instruments to help us, but we had diffienlty in obtaining them,
although we wero in the heart of London. I should think this instroment wonld
make a very good paur of crofchet forceps. 'The instrument we nse here is very much
like this—it catches in the same way. After such an operation, perfect quiet is

D cssential, as, indeed, it is after all operations. The average mortality of mothers is
1 il:‘]j.'l £ or b after craniotomy, and 1 in 15 after turning, This woman was subjeet to
both.

In the ease of Mrs Wilson, the perinenm was ruptured: the rapturs of the perincum
is not at all wnusual tn first labours. 1 wrotea paper to show that it ocenrred perhaps
more frequently than it did not ocemr ; but its extent varies. It may oceur in the
most skilful hands. I have had it occur in mine, and I think every accoucheur has

I had it. The circumstances in which it occurs vary a good deal. I have known it
occur three successive times in the same patient, under three doectors all very
anxiouns to avoid it, and knowing that it had oeeurred before ; but her bones wero
so formed as to render it apparently extremely apt to oceur in her. It has oecurred
in every confinement with this woman I have now mentioned. In others it occurs
in econsequence of the perineum not being sufficiently dilatable when the forceps is
applied ; but in the case of Mrs Wilson, she appears to have remained two days with-

F out the forceps being applied, and, in that case, I think the delay might have been
too long already. I do not think there was the slightest degree of blame to be
attached to the operation in that case. Chloroform is useful in Inbour, (Q. ) How
do you distinguish between the ordinary labonr pains and other kinds of pains in the
abdomen? (A.) The ordinary labour pains come on intermittently. A woman with
ruptured uterus has continuous pains; and I have no donbt the witnesses here could
not distinguish between labour pains and these, but that the labour pains had

G disappeared, as they usually do, after rupture has ocenrred. I often find it very
difficult to get precise information from nurses and others in attendance on women
inlabour. ((J) In the operation of turning, is there usually much hzmorrhage ?
(4,) No; but there is often a little, and sometimes a good deal. There is that with
all operations. Slight lacerations of the mouth of the uterus frequently oceur. OQur
groat authority, Professor Nicol, of Heidelberg, says ho never saw a ease of turning
without some laceration. Wonnds of the passages—slight lacerations of any kind in

H the passages—may produce hmmorrhage. (().) Might an ignorant woman mistako
the eseape of the liguor amnit for hemorrhage? (4.) Yes; when tho liguor amnii is
a little colonred ; and we have often heard them say that there was a little colouring
when there was none. (@) You have, of course, given your opinion of this caso
simply from what you have heard from Dr Sharp? (d.) I heard about the caso
some time ago from both sides, but I forgot about it entirely until Dr Keiller men-
tioned some of the cirenmstances after we met this morning. S‘,&.& But you aro

I taking into account nothing except what you have heard from Dr Sharp to-day ?
(4.) Yes; I am also taking into account what wo have heard from the other wit-
nesses on the pursuer’s side, (@) Was there anything particular in the statements

s o T el o il
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such as women would have in such cireumstances. ((Q.) But, practically, Yo ars
taking the case and giving your opinion upon it as presented Dr Sﬁm-p’ s evidence?
(A.) Yes; and by Dr Gardiner’s. I heard Dr Gardiner give his evidence as to one
case. ( () What I am speaking of aro the cases of Mrs Longmore, Mrs Geddes, Mra
Mair, and Mrs John Wilson. You are giving your opinion with regard to these casea
upon the statements of Dr Sharp alone? (2.) Not exactly upon these alone, because
Dr Sharp’s statoments wero confirmed exactly by the statements of the women DB
go far as they went. For instance, abont the first of the cases of rupture—tl_mt of
Mrs Longmore—the witnesses wo had spoke about her before Dr Sharp came, and
about her condition. I have no doubt she was death-struck before the doctor ever
cam# near the house. They told about how weak she was, and how the pains were
great local fixed pains; and they gave symptoms that would lead any obstetrician to
believe that the rupture in the womb had already taken place. ((.) Therefore, in
giving your opinion on that case, you nre assuming that there was rupture of theQ
womb before Dr Sharp was actually ealled in?  (A.) I think so—that it had begun.
- (@) I suppose it may be difficult doring labour to detormine that :mth certainty ?
E,-Lg No; I would not say that oxactly. () [67 E, F.] Is it quite eaig- tn a post mortem
examination to determine whether there has been a rupture?  (A.) Yes; it is quite 1m-~
passible to fail in determining that. () Was there any evidence given :hi;lr any person
other than the pursuer with regard to any of the other eases on which you rely?
{.) There was a statement by one of the last examined witnesses as to whether or D
not there was blood escaping from the person of the woman under the use of instra-
ments. She said there was nothing to prove that there was more than the usual
escape of blood. But it is mainly on Dr Sharp’s evidence that I have founded my opinion.
I am assuming that the case presented for my consideration is the case which Dr Sharp
has stated in his evidence. ((1) In what Dr Sharp said about Mrs Mair's case, where
wnstruments were used, and where the child was turned, was there anything that should
account for the woman's parts being very much injured or mangled? (A.) I think they B
are ahways more or less liable to be so, when such a serious double operation as that requires
to be gone through ; but not much. ((L.) Dr Sharp said he did not think she counld havo
been injured in that*way by anything he did—could that have been so ? (4.) Wo
are all apt to canse such injuries; we cannot avoid it more or less. ((.) But Dr
sharp thought that what he did was more snceessful, and that he did not injure her ?
A.) Then he thought himself more successful than cither Dr Keiller or I would be.
Q.; Would there be any reason for tearing away pieces of flesh_from the woman's person? I
A.) No; there was no reason for that at all. (€.) In the case of Mrs Mair, would it
have been right to have bled her in the course of her labour ? A.) Being in the first
labour, if she had been in Edinburgh at that time, I think she might have been bled. My
old master, Dr Thateher, had bled 25 or 26 women in first labours, but we would not
do it now. (@Q.) Has that practice been long exploded ? (4.) It has been going out
gradually, It began to go ont in 1840. (@) Would it be right to bleed in the
second stage? (A.) Dr Thatcher and Dr Hamilton used to inculeate it in the second G
stago, That practice began to go out about the same time. () Would it be right,
if the woman was under chloroform, that that should take place? (A.) I never bled
a woman under chloroform, but I see no objection to it. (€.) Would it be right to take
a large quantity of blood from her ? (.:i.g If you had the belief, which was genoral
before, that it wonld relax the parts, you might. (@) What amount of blood would'
you take? (A.) The old rule was to take as much blood from a patient in Iabour a8
you take from a patient in an acute state of inflammation, and that was enough to H
make them faint—gencrally from 25 to 30 oz (€2.) Would it be right to bleed after
breaking up the head of tho child ? (A.) If it was before the child was extracted,
and if you bad the belief that it would relax the external parts, you might do so,
(@) Would it fie right to extract a child with a cord? (4.) In a case where you
have brought down a foot and fixed n cord upon it, I think those that do are alwaya
in the habit of saying that they do not pull the foot b, pulling upin the cord, I do not
use a cogd. (L) Would not that be o ulnliﬁl'aqtinug (4.) No,"unless it wera done I
to such dn extent as t3 injure the foot of the ehild. Tou might as well pull by, the
cord as by the foot of the child, (&) Still it would not be a judicious way of mﬁiﬁg

of the women whom you have heard examined? (d.) N-:rt.hi:g but a little confusion, A
by
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Aoutachild? (.1.) No, not unless the child had got very Ligh, and you could not
+ reach it with your hand to take it down. ((L)In the case of Mrs Mair, where
craniotomy was employed, do you think that clots of blood might have come away
in the operation? (A.) Yes; of course it would be from injury to the passage.
Cross-examined—( (}.) Would it be right to break up the head of the child befors
evacuating the bladder and reetum of the woman? (.) We do not need to cvacuate
the rectum, except it be full, and that is ascertained by examination. (@) But if
B you have not ascertained that the rectum and the bladder are empty, would it be
right to begin to break up the child? (A4.) I have already answered the one point.
As to the bladder, the general rule is to introduce the catheter at first, but it is not
Jollowed by all, 1f the woman tells yon that she has made water five minutes before,
it is sometimes not done ; but you generally satisfy yourself, before breaking up the
head, that the rectum and bladder are empty. That is usual also before using any
instrument to make the parts as large as possible. -

Dr ALEXANDER EEILLER.

I am a doctor of medicine in Edinburgh, T was formerly one of the physicians of
the Royal Infirmary, and am physician of the Royal Maternity Hospital, and lecturer
on midwifery and dissases of women and childrep at the Medieal School in the Royal

D Collego of Surgeons in Edinburgh, I have been in Court to-day, and have heard
the witnesses who have been examined. T have alsoheard the evidence of Sir James
Simpson, in which I perfectly concur. In June, 1860, I received a letter from Dr
Sharp, (Shown No. 18 of process.) That is a copy of the letter. Mrs Wilson, of
Cullen, who is mentioned in that letter, came to me, and I treated her for laceration
of the perincum, She was cured, She was admitted to the Infirmary under my
care on 18th June, 1860, and was dismissed cured on 13th July. From what I saw

I of Mrs Wilson, I believed the explanation of the cause of the rupture given by Dr
Sharp in that letter to be quite correct. She stated the facts of her own case to me,
as given in the journal of the Infirmary. The entry in the journal is as follows:—
“ Catherine Wilson, @t 27, wife of a cooper in Cullen. Admitted June 18. Always
* anjoyed éood health, up till three months ago, when she was confined of her first
i child, @ was in labour from Thursday night till Safurday morning, when she
“ was delivered by Dr Sharp with the forceps. The child was alive. A few days

1" “ after her confinement she noticed that her frees passed meunm}'ﬂy. She men-
% tioned this to the doctor, who examined her, and found that the perineum had been
¢ ruptured. She kept her bed for about a month, lying on her side, as the doctor
¢ grdered her. At the end of this time she attempted to go about the house, but did
¢ not feel at all comfortable. As she was to change her residence from Cullen to
« Dunbar, she was advised by Dr Sharp to see Dr Keiller, to have an operation per-
¢ formed on her. On examination, the perineum is entirely gone, and the sphit!ntez

G  ani lacorated, there being only a thin partition between the rectum and vagina.
That was the statement of the case. Rupture of the perineum, to a certain extent,
oceurs very often with a first child. T believe that partial rupture of the perineum
occurs in a great majority of such cases, although it may not be detected at the time.
Unless you examine the perineum, the rupture is goldom dptectc& at the j:.m:m, and
i not discovered until the patient feels inconvenience from it. I saw nothing what-
ever to indnce me to suppose that Dr Sharp had treated this woman unskilfully.

§ Cross-examined—((}.) Was the rupture of the perineum in this case to a usual or
unusual extent? (A.)Ttis unusual to extend entirely throngh the sphincter ;n;
into the rectum ; but it did not do so in this case. The rectum was ln.femted,]: '.;

" not the whole, () So far as it did extend, was it an unusual rupture? (A.) It :
not very common, but neither is it very unfrequent. I hm:e a case at this mnmn_nl
in the Maternity Hospital, where the same extent of laceration took place. The gir
is still suffering from the rupture. In that caso no forceps was used, but a;;n:;y

ttention and proper treatment wero given. It was her first confinement, and the

L ineum is ruptured to the same extent asin the case of this Mrs Wilson. (&) You
think that the statement given by Dr Sharp, in tho letter which he sent to you,

F
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affords a quite rational eause for the rupture? (A.) Yes; it was a first confinement, A
the forceps was used, and there was tedious labour. () Suppose the perineum was
not properly supported, that the usual precautions had not been taken beforo the
operation of delivery by the forceps was made, and that injuries had taken Eﬂﬂcﬂ.
could the injuries that did take place be accounted for by such malpractice? (4.)I
am in the habit ¢f teaching that it is a bad practice to snpport the perinenm too
much : and I believe that very often these ruptures take place by supporting the
erinpum. Until the head is down in the perinewm, and until the natural mode of B
dilation takes place, it is wrong to support the perineum; and I believe it very often
causes the laceration instead of preventing it. () If great force had been used,
and the usual and proper precautions not taken, could the appearances ‘Phntr that
woman Wilson presented be compatible with other canses than what are assigned for
the rupture of the perineum? (A.) There was no appearance different from what I
have often seen. ((.) But was the rupture compatible with having been caused by
forco and maltreatment? (A.) Tt may have been so; I conld not say that it was not. O
Re-examined—I coneur in the reasons stated by Sir James Simpson why hemor-
rhage might have been caused in Mrs Longmore's case. Partial separation of the
placenta or after-birth might also have caused hwmorrhage. Tho *clots of blood
might have been mistaken by ignorant persons for portions of the woman's flesh.

Dr LOUIS HAY THATCHER, D

I am a physician in Edinburgh, and have been so since 1843. I graduated in that
year at the Edinburgh University. I have had a large practice in midwifery cases.
Iam also physician of the institution for delivering poor married women at their
own houses; and am a member of various medical societies. I have been in Court
sineo this inguiry began, and have hieard the evidence. I do most decidedly concur in
the opinions expressed by Sir James Simpson and Dr Keiller.

COross-oxamined—Of course, my opinion s formed on the evidence I have heard, which
1 believe to be true. 1 also form my opinion on what one is nceustomed to know of
midwifery cases, and the treatment of them,

ANN ADDISON or FINDLAY.

Iam the widow of William Findlay, and reside in Cullen. T am a midwife, and by
have practised as such for cight years. I know Dr Sharp. He has attended two or
three midwifery cases of mine. I have seen him deliver safely hy means of the
forceps. So far as I could judge, he appeared to do it skilfully and successfully.
His treatment of the patients was kind and gentle.

Pursner’s Counsel puts in Nos. 9, 10, 16, and 18 of process: also depogitions, taken
on commission, of Margaret Flett or Simpson, Margaret Gardiner. or Hay,

Smith or Davidson, Janet Donald or Wilson, and Margaret Mair or Reid ; and five s
certificates under the hand of Dr Greig, of the inability of these persons to attend for
examination, the depositions being as follows :—

At Banff, the eighth day of February one thonsand eight hundred and sixty-seven

il years—In presence of J'nmcna[ Ggrdon, Isq,, commissioner—

re appeared for the pursuer Mr John Adamson Colville, solicitor Portaoy.
for the defender Mr John Forbes, solicitor in Banff, : : i

Compeared Mrs MARGARET FLETT or SIMPSON, midwife in Tindochty, who, T
being solemnly sworn and examined, depones—I am about seventy-cight years of
age. Ihave been forty-six years a midwife in Findochty. I know Mr Sharp, the
pursuer, and have done go for a long time. I have attended midwifery cases along
with tho pursuer. I think I have attended two or three with him, It is the
_ practice in Findochty to employ midwives, bu$ in diffienlt cases medical men aro
called in. Interrogated—Were the cases you have already spoken to, where the [
pursuer and you were in attendance, difficult cases ?

To whiclr it was objected on behalf of the defender. The issue and counter-issue
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Ain the cause contain the only questions which have to be deteymined. Sueh [aots
only can be proved as are fairly embraced by these issues. The question now put
and objected to, in so far as it relates to any other midwifery cases than some one of
the four specified in the counter-issue, is not within the issues. The defender could
not have been prepared to meet or rébut facts referring to other eases, and it would

~ be taking him by surprise were the question allowed, so far as it relates to other
cases. The defender is not entitled to prove any fact not within the counter-issun,

D and not expressly relating to one or other of the four cases therein specified, neither
is the pursuer entitled to prove any fact regarding his professional treatment of
women in midw cases. Under the issue for the pursuer the only points to be
tried are, whether the defender wrote and transmitted the letter libelled—whother it
relates to the pursuer, and represents him as incompetent and unskilful as a mid-
wifery practitioner, and that in his practice he treated three eases incompetently and
unskilfully. That issue relates merely to the import of the lotter, and under it

C there is mo authority whatever to go into any proof of the pursuer’s treatment of
midwifery cases generally, or of any others than those specified in the connter-issue.
In the course of his long practice the pursuer may have, and has, treated hundreds
of cases, and if it is competent to go into an examination of these cases generally, or
any one of them other than those specified in the counter-issue, it is equally com-
petent to go into a full examination of every one of these, and the examination would
thus be interminable; while as they are not condescended on, nor remitted under the

D) issues, the defender would be completely taken by surprise. The defender, there-
fore, objects to the question put, and to the line of examination it points at, so far
a8 not limited to one or other of the four cases specified in the counter-issue, and
craves the Commissioner to disallow it accordingly.

The Commissioner repels the objection.
Against which deliverance the defender appeals to the Lord Ordinary,
And the guestion being repeated, the witness depones—Yes ; they were diflicult

Fcases. The last one was most diffienlt. The three cases were Mrs I, wile of A. F.,
fisherman in Findochty; Mrs H., wife of W. H,, fisherman in Findochty; and
Margaret Biddie or Longmore, wife of Andrew Longmore, residing in Dauds of
Cullen, I do not remember the year or years in which any of these cases occurred.
Mrs I'.'s case was a diffieult case. It was a case of twins. The pursuer delivered
her of both the children, so far as I recollect. I could not deliver the woman myseli,
and that was the reason the pursuer was brought in. I think he gave Mrs F.

F chloroform. He aye * gies” chloroform when there is occasion. He did notuse the
forceps in delivering Mrs I, He was forced to turn the last delivered child. The
pursuer delivered Mys F. successfully, and she came “sweel roun’” Mrs H's case
was a difficult one. It was difficult when wo reguirved the doctor I sent for the
pursucr to attend Mrs H. He came. He required the irons to bring the child
home. By the irons I mean the forceps. It was because I conld not deliver Mrs .
that I sent for the doctor. The delivery was successful. Mrs H. came round fine.

G I never had a case like Mrs Longmore’s. I have been six-and-forty years in practice
as o midwife, and I never had a case like it. I went to Mrs Longmore's between
two and three o'clock in the morning. I very scon saw the difficnlty of the case. 1
told Andrew Longmore to send for the doctor—any doctor. He said that the
pursuer was in the way of attending him, and he would send for the pursuer; and
the pursuer came about four o'clock in the afternoon of that day. Andrew Long-
more was going to Cullen that day, and I told him fo send the pursuer. Longmore

I came back and said he had not asked Dr Sharp to come. I sent h_um m;ntnntl:,r for
the pursuer, and it was after that he came. The pursuer considered about Mrs
Longmore’s case. He attempted to deliver the child by the forceps, but he could
make nothing of that. He then tried to turn the child, and got down one foot. He
then attached a cord to the foot of the child, and attempted to draw it down, which I have
seen him do before. 'The presentation of the child was not natural, She had pain
on the lower part of the abdomen; but that pain neyer would have delivered her.

I The pains she had were not in any way assisting labour,  Dr Carmichael, Buckie, was
then sent for, and he came. Mrs Longmore died shortly after he axie. He did
nothing in the way of attempting to deliver her before she died. She was delivered

i o
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by Dr Carmichael after her death. The pursuer wished Dr Carmichael to open the A
woman, to see the cause of the difficulty of labour and death. He did so. Before
he did so the pursuer said that Mrs Longmore had died from rupture of the womb.
When Dr Carmichael opened the abdomen the womb was rmptured, and the child was
in the abdomen, and not in the womb. After the womb was opannd., t-hD_Pl-H'E-uﬂl'
said, “Isn’t that just as I said?” and Dr Carmichael said, *Just as you said. Dr
Carmtichacl made no further examination of Mrs Longmore. There were a number
of people present at the case. Isa Cowid, a widow, residing at Bauds of Cullen; Jean B
Inglis or Simpson, near Findochty, were present; Bell Chalmers or Simpson, near
Findochty, was, I think, also present. I do not recollect of any other body. I saw
Dr Carmichael take the child from Mrs Longmore. I was in the inside of the bed
holding the candle. He handed the child to the said Jean Inglis or Simpson. Dr
Carmichael sewed up the abdomen after taking the child out. After speaking for
a little the pursuer and Dr Carmichael went away, and I assisted to dress the body.
In my opinion the pursuer did nothing wrong in the treatment of Mrs Liongmore. 1¢
delivered Mys Longmore of four children, but I ecould do nothing for this one. It is
my opinion that the pursuer did everything ho could for Mrs Longmore. From what

I have seen of the uer in his practice, I think him a competent and skilful
practitioner of midwifery, and I also consider him qualified to use the forceps,
becanse I have seen him do it. Iknow the defender. The defender called upon me
about this ease. It was very impudent of Him to do it, and he called at a very im-
proper hour, when I was in my bed. He called between nine and twelve o'clock 4t D
night. :

Examined for the defender, depones—My memory is impaired with regard to
things I have been told, but not so much impaired as regards things I have come
through myself. I had a diploma as a midwife from a doctor in Aberdeen, named
Fraser. My only knowledge of the pursner’s practice is from the three cases I have
* deponed to. He gave chloroform in all the cases I have mentioned. In Mrs F.'s
case he did not use the forceps. The presentation of the second child was not ahead |
presentation. It was the back or some part that was presented. He turmed the
child. Both children were born alive. Mrs H.'s case and Mrs Longmore's case were
the only cases where I saw the pursner use the forceps. The presentation in Mrs
H.’s case was a natural presentation, but stiff. When I went to Mrs H.’s she was in
a slow state of labour. The pursuer came in the afterncon of that day. I was there
about half-a-dozen of hours before the pursuer. It may have been about half-an-
hour after he came that the pursuer used the forceps, and after waiting to see how T
the woman was doing. The pains of labour were going on at that time, but they
were doing no good. He infroduced the forceps during an interval between pains.

I understood when I went to Mrs Longmore’s case that it was a head presentation.

I bad an idea that I felt the head. When the pursuer came it was just “ glimpslie”
that I felt the head. It was a while after the pursuer came that he used the forceps.

~ I connot say how long. The mouth of the womb was open. When the pursuer
introduced the forceps he could do no good. I eannot say how long the pursuer 3
wronght with the forceps. He might have wronght a quarter of an honr. 1 cannot
sny if he wrought more than a quarter of an hour with the forceps. He could not
have used the foreeps if the presentation had not been tho head. While he was using
the forceps the labour pains continued now and then. The labour pains did not con-
tinue down to the time of Mrd Longmore’s death. After the pursuer failed with tho
forceps he turned the child, but I cannot say how long after. It was not a gquarter
of an hour after he stopped using the foreeps that he turned the child, Mrs Long- IT
more was in a weakly state of health. It was a piece of tape that the pursuer
attached to the child’s leg. I do not know where ho got the tape. He tied t]J]m ta
round the leg “to keep the leg, to see if he could get the ldve of it.” He nttachﬂ&
the tape to the child’s ankle, I did not see the pursuer pull the child by the leg, or
seck to doit. Mrs Longmore had no flooding during her illness. There was a dis-
charge from Mrs Longmore, and a mixture of blood in it. Part of it ran down the
bed on to the floor. 1 did not see a woman put a eloth over the discharge that fell T
fl'Dl.'Il Mrs Longmore on the floor. T do not recollect if the pursuer was on his knoeoes
at the bedside. I have a perfect recollection of the conversation between the pur-
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Asuer and Dr Carmichael. I have no other reason for thinking the pursuer ean
gkilfully nse the forceps, except from seeing him use it on the two oceasions before
deponed to. Mrs f.{u::?mﬁm had some labowr pains after the pursuer turned the child in
the womb.—All which I depone to be truth, as I shall answer to God; and T depone I
cannot write. Beven words delete. (Signed) James Goroox, Comr,

Fraxcis Geonog, Clk.

B Compeared, Mrs MARGARET GARDINER or HAY, midwife in the Seatown
of Cullen, who, being solemnly sworn and examined, depauuar--:[ am sixty-four yoars
of age. I have practised for thirty-seven years as a midwife in Cullen. T know the
pursuer, and have known him ever since he came to Cullen. I have been several
times m attendance with him at midwifery cases, half-n-dozen times and more. I
cannot say how many. Interrogated, Did you ever see him use the forceps ?

‘To which guestion, in so far as the cases may not be one or other of the four cases

C specified in the counter issue, and to any line of examination baving reference to
any cases other than these, or the pursuer’s general midwifery practice, the defender
r%peutﬁél the objections stated to the question put to the preceding witness, and
objected to. ;

Which objection the Commissioner repelled, and against this deliverance the
defender appealed to the Lord Ordinary. .
And the question being repeated, the witness d es—I have seen the pursuer

D use the forceps. DMost of the midwifery practice in Cullen is in the hands of the
midwives, and it is generally in difficult cases that a medical man is called. Some
of the cases the pursuer attended with me were diffienlt cases. I remember the caso
of Mrs F,, wife of W, F., in the Seatown of Cullen. The case was somewhat stiff,
and the pursuer used the forceps, and with the use of the forceps he delivered the
woman safely of the child. I do not recollect if Mrs F. was under chloroform. Mrs
. had a good recovery. DBoth she and the child are still alive. I remember tho

I’ case of Mrs F., wife of W. I, in the Secatown of Cullen. Mrs F. took hysteric
fits. The pursuer was called in to attend her. I do nof recollect if he adminisiored
chloroform to her, He gave her something to allay the fits. I remember now, it
was chloroform he gave her. It had the cffect of allaying the fits. I do not recol-
lact if he used the forceps in delivering her. I do not recollect if he removed the
placenta while she was under the influence of chloroform. He delivered her
successfully, and she hiad a good recovery. This case took place some years ago. I

TF remember the case of Mra H., wife of J. H,, in the Seatown of Cullen. It was rather
a stiff case. The pursuer was in attendance. The first thing he did was to take
water off. He did so because the water would not come till he drew it off. After
he drew the water off, the labour progressed. Ho delivered her by the forceps.
Her delivery was suceessful, She was under chloroform. She had a good recovery.
She and the child arve both alive now. I remember the case of Mrs R., wife of
W. R, Seatown of Cullen. The pursuer was in attendance on her while in labour.

G Mis R.’s was a difficult case. She was very weakly at the time, and she had not
strong pains to take the child forward- The presentation was naturul. The pursuer

ave her chiloroform. She had mot strony pains, and he put back the head and took
own the feet. Mrs R. had been weakened by previous disease. She could not
have been delivered unless the child had been turned. She was safely delivered.
Both she and the child are still alive. I remember the case of Mrs S., wife of J. 5,
Lintmill, Cullen. The pursuer was in attendance along with me at that case. Tt

T was o stiff case. It was a big child. The presentation was natural. The pursuer
nsed the forceps, and the delivery was successful. She was under chloroform at the
timo of delivery. She and the child are still living. I remember tho case of Mrs
J. T., Cullen. The pursuer was in attendance with me on her, It wns a case of
twins. I delivered her of the first one. That was before the pursuer was called.
Her labour pains left her, and the pursuer was then sent for. When he came ha
broke the water, and tool down the child without pains. In this case I suppose tho

I breaking of the water was difficult. I could not have done it—it was too far away.
The pursuer delivered her safely of the second child. The mother is alive, and both
childven were alive for some time after the birth. One of the children lived for
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2O I cannot say how long the other one lived. Mrs T. was not und?rh
t:h.lne:~r«;h¥::nﬂ:;:l:-|EL at the time of gali?ﬂry. I remember the case of Mrs C,, wife of W. C,, IIH
the Seatown of Cullen. The pursuer was in attendance with me on that case. ;
was o very diffienlt case. It was & caso of twins, and the presentation wWas the fﬁ.
of one child, and the hand of another. Mrs (. had previously been in bad heal
Before her delivery he sent for another—I think Dr Carmichael, Bm:kge. He .ﬂﬂmﬁ-
After he eame, the pursuer delivered the woman. I do not recollect if he delivered
her of both children or not. The pursuer did not use forceps in the delivery. Both B
children were still-born. Mrs C. had & middling recovery. I know that she died
months after. I cannot tell what was the cause of death. She had not been well
since conception. Her death was not in consequence of her delivery. I remgmber
the case of Mrs W. M., Cullen. The pursuer was in attendance with moon her. Tt
wos rather a stiff case. The pursuer delivered her, and nsed the forceps. The
delivery was suecessful, Mrs M. had a good recovery, and she and the child are both
alive. Mrs M. was under chloroform when delivered. I remember attending Mrs O
M., wife of J. M., D., at two of her confineménts. The pursuer was there on both.
oceasions. On the first occasion, the pursuer delivered Mrs M. There was a flooding
took place after her delivery. e did not nse the forceps on that occasion. Mrs M.
had & very good recovery. On the second occasion I delivered Mrs M. hefore the
pursner arrived. She took a flooding on the second oceasion. Her recovery was o
fair recovery. 1 remember the case of Mrs M., wife of J. M., Cullen. The pursuer
was in attendance with me on her. It was a very stiff case. The pursner delivered I
her. He gave her chloroform. I do not recollect if he used the forceps. She hada
good recovery. I remember attending Mrs T. on two of her confinements. The
ursuer was in attendance on both oceasions. In both caseshe gave her chloroform,
and in both cases ho used the forceps. In both cases he delivered her successfully,
Mrs T. and the children are all alive. I have been with the pursuer at all the con-
finements of Mrs W. in Cullen—five or six. Her labounr at her first confinement was
tedions. The pursuer delivered her on that occasion, as well as on all the other E
occasions. They were all successful. He never gave Mrs W. chloroform, nor did
he ever use the forceps. At her first confinement, Dr Milne, of Banif, was also in
attendance. I remember the case of Mrs G. F., Seatown of Cullen. That was acaso
of twins, Pursuer was in attendance, along with me, there. Heo was called in after
the first child was born, becanse her pains had left her. He gave her something to
try to increase the pains. The pains increased a little, and he delivered her, He
turned the child in the womb, BShe was delivered safely. She got chloroform, She
had a flooding after the birth, but had a goed recovery. She and the child are still
alive. I know the case of Mrs F., wife of J. I, Scatown of Cullen. The pursuer
and I were in attendance on her. The presentation was a knee. The pursuer took
down the feet, The delivery was successful, and she recovered very well. The
child was still-born. He did not use the forceps, nor chloroform. Mrys I, is still
alive. I remember tho case of Mrs W. 8, in Cullen. The pursuer and I were in
attendance ; it was a fair delivery. The pursuer delivered her. No chloroform was G
used, nor did he use the forceps. I attended with the pursuer on her a second time.
He gavo her chloroform, but did not use the forceps. The delivery was “fine " and
the recovery good. I attended, along with the pursuer, on Mrs M., Seatown of
Cullen. It was a hand presentation. I think Dr Milne was present; and I do not
recollect if he or the pursner delivered her. Dr Gardiner, of Portsoy, was also there,
All three medical men attempted in turn to turn the child. One of them succeeded,
but I cannot say which of them. Mrs M. was under chloroform. I think both Dr H
Milne and the pursuer gave her chloroform. Bhe had a good recovery. The child
was still-born. I remember Mrs T. F.'s caze. The pursuer and I attended her. Tt
was rather a stiff case. The pursuer took off the water. The pursuer delivered
her, nsing both chloroform and the forceps., Both mother and child ave alive. In -
the great proportion of these cases I called in the pursuer, beeanse I counld not deliver
them myself. I never saw the pursuer fail in using the forceps, I never saw him
injure any woman in the use of the forceps ; nor did I ever see him use any patient I
harshly. I never attended with the pursuer at any case where the mother died at
delivery, I think the pursuer ia qualified to practise as a midwifery sargeon, I
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A congider him a competent and skilful acconchenr. and auj

forceps. I hold a diploma from the Medical Eae.iuéy of Aqunrtﬁegltlnm iﬂ:dmt?ﬂm th?
still practise.—All which T depone to be truth, as T shall answer to God : and T ﬂel;nm

I cannot write. Ten words delete. (Signed) JAMES GORDON Comr.

Sedt. 6 hours. (Intd.) J. G.; Comr, Fraxcis Geonce, CIk,
The Commissioner of consent adjourns the dict for proceeding with this com-
mission till to-morrow at eleven o'clock forenoon, for further examination of Mrs
B Hay, and for the examination of Margaret Mair or Reid, Mary Smith or Davidson,

Enid ti““ Donald or Wilson, all of whom are in attendance bere to-day. Two words
elote.

(Signed) JaMES Gomrpoxw, Comr.

At Banff, the ninth day of Febroary, one thousand eight hundred and sixty-seven
years. In the presence of the said James Gordon, Esquire, Commissioner.
0 Present—Agents as before.

Compeared the said Mrs MARGARET GARDINER or HAY, who being again
solemnly sworn and examined for the defender, depones—I think it is about eight
years ago, I am certain it is not more, since I attended at the case of Mrs F., wife of
the said W. F. I mean by her case being a stiff case that the labour was slow. The
presentation was a natural head presentation. It was her first child. The month
of the womb and other parts were of the usual form and size. The child was about

D the usual size. I do not recollect how long I was in attendance before the pursuer
was sent for. He was in attendance at least an hour before he used the foree
The labour pains were going on slowly at that time. He did nothing to Mrs F.
before applying the forceps. [He introduced the forceps during a labour pain. He
delivered the woman immediately. I think the case of Mrs W. F. was about ten
years ago. The pursuner was sent for to see her because of the fits she took. She
was suffering from hysteria at the time. There was nothing peculiar about the

E case except the hysteria, No instruments wereused. Mrs H.’s case occurred about
eight or nine years ago. I mean by this case being a stiff case that the labour was
slow, and, in the other cases T call stiff eases, T just mean that the labour was slow.
I had been in attendance upon her between twelve and twenty hours before. tho
pursner came, The water he drew off was urine. Taking off the water is no great
difficulty for a doctor to do, but I counld not do it. Myrs H. was under chloroform
when the pursuer delivered her with the forceps. I have read no books upon the

I" subject of chloroform, nor ils use. I cannot say whether it is skilful or unskilful to
deliver a woman by the forceps while she is under the influence of chloroform. I
suppose Mrs H. was rendered unconscious by the chloroform. I attended Mrs R.,
along with the pursuer, abont sixteen or seventeen years ago. Her weakness and
slowness of labour were the only peculiarities of her case. [t is not an ordi
thing in the case of a watural presentation, as this was, to turn the child. T never
saw it done before. 1 have seen it dome stnce by the purswer. I never saw it done

G by any other person. The other case in which I have scen it done by the pursuer,
was in the case of Mrs G. F., deponed to by me in my examination in chief. In the
ease of Mrs R., tho pursuer attached to the foot of the child either a piece of tape or
a handkerchief, T do not remember which. This was done, not to draw the child,
but to hold the child until he got the rest of it down. He did not nse the forceps.
The case of Mrs J. S, Lintmill, of Cullen, occurred about eleven or twelve years ago.
She was a stont woman, and the child was a big child, but there was nothing unnatural

H in the case. I had been in attendance upon her twenty or twenty-four hours beforo
the pursuer came. I suppose the pursuer was in atiendance about two or three
hours before the child was born. T attended Mrs T.'s case about ten or twelve years
ago, but I cannot exactly say. The pursner was sent for about eight or ten hours
‘after the birth of the twin I delivered her of. Labour had ceased. I think the
presentation was natural in the second twin. Ho did not nse chloroform nor the
forceps in delivering her. I cannot say if it was the child I delivered her of that

I lived some years. LThe other child lived o month or two. Both children were quito®
well after birth. I do not know how long the child that died in a month or two
continuned well. I eannot say what was the cause of its death, T attended Mrs Cs
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case, with the pursner, npwards of twenty years ago. T suppose I was between A
twelve and twenty hours in attendance on her haf::-r‘u the pursuer came, I can some-
times tell, and sometimes not, if the child be living before the birth. From the
position the children were in I did not think them alive. Their ‘;I':Ilf d‘hﬂng :,l 3
proper posture, I thought both children were dead. I never saw a cht ri alive
where an arm was presented. There may be cases, but I do not know of them.
There are cases where children are born alive with a foot presentation. My reason
for thinking that in this case the presentation was the foot of one child and the hand n
of the other, was that the foot of the one child and the hand of the other were blue
after the children were delivered. Mrs C. was able to go between the bed and the
fireside after the delivery, but I do not think she went beyond that. She never
recovered right owing to her weak state and previons state of health. I cannot say
if her delivery was, or was not, connected with the canse of her death. She was nct
put under chloroform. I attended Mra W. M.’s case about seventeen years ago. I had
been in attendance upon her between eight and ten hours before the pursuer came. C
The presentation was natural. The only peculiarity about the case was that the
labour was slow. The forceps were introduced during a labour pain. He used the
foreeps within an hour or two after he came, and the child was born within half-an-
hour or twenty minutes thereafter. I attended Mrs M.'s first case about seven or
eight years ago. She had given birth to several living children before that, but I
attended her on none of these oceasions. The first one I attended her for was a very
natural and easy delivery. There was no peculiarity about it save the after-flooding, 23
It was not in consequence of any difficulty in the case that the pursuer was there.
On the second ocecasion I delivered her with perfect ease. I attended Mrs M.'s case,
with the pursuer, about fifteen or sixteen years ago. It was a natural presentation.
I suppose the slowness was the only peculiarity about the case. That was her first
child. She has never had another. I never heard that Mrs M.’s perinenm was ruptured
upon that occasion. The first of Mrs T.'s confinements I attonded was fifteen or sixteen
yearsago. It washer first child. I was a few hoursin attendance before the pursuer Il
came. Everything was natural about the case. The labour was slow. The pursuer
introduced the forceps during a labowr pain. 1 think Mrs T. was under the influence of
chloroform when she was delivered. She was delivered in about twenty minutes or
half an hour after the forceps were introducell. Mrs T.'s sccond case was about six
years ago. It was a matural case, only the labour was very slow. She was in labour,

I think, six or eight hours before the forceps were introduced. It was during a labour
pain they were introduced, and while Mrs T. was under the influence of chloroform. I'
She was delivered a few minutes after the pursuer used the forceps. Mrs T. was a
healthy person then, and still is, and she was strong at the time. She had no con-
vulsions or flooding. In introducing the forceps, Mrs T.'s person was not exposed.

I do not recollect of any of the persons I attended with the pursuer being exposed.

I think the pursuer delivered Mrs D. W. on the first oceasion deponed to where I
and the pursuer attended her. Dr Milne was there at the time of delivery, and I am
not sure which of them delivered Mrs W. I suppose she had been twenty-four G
hours in labour before Dr Milne eame. She was delivered about four or six hours
after Dr Milne came. I was present at thoe time of delivery. I did not hear Mra
Henderson, the minister’s wife, suggest that Dr Milne should be sent for, and I
cannot say who proposed that he should be sent for. It was a natural presentation,
and I suppose the slowness of the labour was the only peculiarity about it. In Mrs
W.s other confinements they were all natural. I attended the case of Mrs (3 B
Seatown of Cullen, about eighteen months ago, There was no difficulty in giving I
birth to the twin of which I delivered her, The presentation of the other child was

a natural presentation. The pursuer was sent for two or three hours after the birth
of the first child, becanse the labowr pains had ceased. She was a yOUng woman,
but weakly. She had a flooding, but no convulsions, The flooding was a little after
the birth of the second child. There was no flooding after the birth of the first
child. Mrs F. was very much the same after the child was turned as she was before,
There was no peculicrity about the case, ercept that the labour was slow., There 1
was nothing alarming before the child was turned. That, and the case of Mrs R.
wore the only cascs where I saw the child turned by any one, The pursuer nsed m;

D
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A instruments on that oceasion. It is abont two yenrs ago since I attended M .
case. I had been there two or three honrs huigm the %muﬂr came, I duhnr:tilﬁw:
whether or not the child was alive when I went, or when the pursuer came, Trom
the appearance of the child after the woman was delivered, my opinion is, that the
child was not long dead, but I cannot say how long. Muys M.'s case was about fifteen
or sixteen years ango. I did not know, from the appearance of the child, how long it
had been dead. I do not think it was alive when I went. My reason for thinking

Bso was because the hand was presented. I have no other reason. I never learned
to write. I have not read much on the subject of midwifery since I got my diploma.

Re-examined for the pursuer—Depones, I do not think the oceasions on which the
pursuer used the forceps were in the interval between Iabour and pains.—All which
I depone to be truth, as I shall answer to God. Ten words delete.

- (Signed) James Gorpox, Comr.
Fraxcis Georee, Clk.

Compeared Mrs SMITH or DAVIDSON, midwife in Cullen, who, being solemnly
sworn and examined, depones—I am seventy-eight years of age. I have practised
as a midwife in Cullen for nearly forty years. I have known the pursuer ever since
he came to Cullen. The doctors are generally called in in difficult eases, but the
practice of midwifery is in the hands of the midwives. I remember the case of Mra
P., wifa of Mr P., Cullen.

D The defender objected to the guestions now put, and answers given, and to any
question being put to this witness about any case or cases other than those specified
in the counter issue. :

The Commissioner repelled the objection, and allowed the examination to proceed,
against which judgment the defender appealed to the Lord Ordinary.

The pursuer was called to attend that case, which happened about sixteen or seven-
teen years ago, and I was called in to assist. Mrs P. had a large family previous o

T the confinement above deponed to, but I cannot say how many. It was about six o'clock
at night I went to her. The pursuer was with her when I went. I found that the
child was big. I did not know when I went what the presentation was. The child was
delivered about ten o'clock same night. The pursuer delivered her, and I was present.
I do not remember if the pursuer used the forceps or not. The child was born with a
head presentation. I think the pursuer turned the child. I donot exactly know what
part of the child was presented. I was only there as an assistant, and I did not

T think I would be called upon to mind. The ehild was not alive when born. There was
no breath in it ; but the pursuer, by great exertion, brought it to life again. He gave
Mirs P. chloroform, and delivered her under its influence. The child was extra big
—1 never saw one so big, neither before nor since. The child was weighed, but I
do not remember the weight of it. Mrs P. had a good recovery, and she and the.
child are both living. The case was a bad case in many respects, arising from the
bigness of the child, but nothing else. I remember the case of A. L.'s danghter. I

G attended that case with the pursuer. [ was thero first. I went there at threo
o'elock in the morning. The pursuer came between twelve and one o’clock the same
day. He was sent for becanse I could not deliver her. It was a lingering labour
ease, and no pain. The pursuer delivered the woman an hour after he came. He
used the forceps, and he gave her chloroform. The delivery was very successful.
The woman had a good recovery, and the mother and child are both alive. It was
during labour pain the forceps was used. He used the forceps for about a quarter of

H an hour or twenty minutes, This case wns about four years ago. I remember the
case of Mrs R, wife of J. R, Cullen. The pursuer was in attendance with me on
that case. I was there firat. About twenty minutes after I went I sent for the
pursuer, and he came in about a quarter of an hour after he was ealled. 1 sent for
him because I saw it was a case I could not manage. It was a case of twins, and
tho extremities were so entangled through other that I could do nothing with it. ;t
was a foot presentation. Neither of the children were horn before he came. Ile did

I not use the forceps, but he gave her chloroform. He turned the second child, but
not the first. Her pains were strong at the time the pursuer was sent for, and tlu;j
continned 8o until she was delivered. She had a good recovery. She and the chil-

c
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il alive. I remember the case of Mrs L. The pursuer and I were in A
S’:EL;&I:{::T uTha pursuer was there first. We were both sent for at one time. It
was a bad kind of a case. I do not recollect now why it was a bad easo. It wasa
log presentation. The pursuer delivered her. T do not think he used the forceps. °
I do mot remember if he used chloroform. I do not think he did. T‘hq delivery
was successful, and the woman had a good recovery. The mother is living, but I
do not think the child is living. This case was about eighteen or nineteen years
ago. I remember the case of L M. The pursucr and I attended that case. I was I
there about twelve hours before the pursuer was called. He was called because 1
saw it was a case I could not do. It was a big child, The pursuer delivered her
about half an hour after he came. Ho used the forceps and chloroform. It wasa
head presentation. He introduced the fmqm during a pain. He fizxed the foreeps,
when he got them pliable, to the child’s head. Lhe fixing of the forceps took place
during a labour pain; and during a labour pain he attempted to extract the child by
the forceps. e delivery was successful. Both mother and child are alive. She C
had a good recovery. Before the pursuer came, another medical man was called,
but he was not at home. Dr Wilson, the defender, called before the pursuer. The
defondor was the medical man that was sent for. The defender said he was going
from home, but would be back in time. He was not back in time; the woman was
delivered before he came. This case occurred about two or three years ago. I
remember the case of the daughter of W. 8. That case occurred about two years
ago, or rather more. The pursuer and I were there. I was a whole day there before I
he was sent for. It was o case of lingering labour, and I wished him to be present.
1t was a head presentation. The pursuer delivered the woman abont two hours
after he came. I cannot say if he used the forceps, but he used chloroform. She
had a good recovery for some time. YWhen the pursuer came she had some pains—

a little, He lot off the water from the womb, and after that the pains increased.
There was flooding after the birth—a good deal. The mother and child- are both
alive. A few days after her confinement she took ill. I attended her, but I do not It
know what was the matter with her. She continued a good while poorly. 1 do not
attribute that illness to anything that took place at her confinement. She was safely
delivered. T have been at other cases of midwifery with the pursuer, but I cannot
tell how often. I never saw him fail in using the forceps in any case—he was
always successful. I never saw him hurt any of his patients, or treat any of them
harshly. He appeared to me to treat them, very kindly. 1 consider he is guite
qualified to use the forceps. I consider him a competent and skilful practitioner of '
midwifery. I would have no hesitation in calling him in to operate in a difficult
midwifery ease. I have had no fatal midwifery cases in my practice during the last
fen years.

Examined for the defender, deponee—I am still in practice. Of late years it is
quite common to c¢all a medical man withont a midwife. T did not see Mrs P.'s
child turned. I can give no reason for saying that the child was turned. I do not
know, from my own knowledge, if it was anything but a head presentation all along. Gt
There was nothing in particular about the case except that the child was large, so
far as I recollect. There was nothing alarming before birth but the big child.
There was no flooding or convulsions before birth. She was in good health beforo
her delivery. There was nothing peculiar about Mrs I.'s case except slow labonr,
She was a young, healthy woman. There was no flooding or convulsions before tho
birth. Tn Mrs R.’s case there was nothing but a foot presented. I knew that the
extremities of the child were entangled when I examined the woman and felt her. I
I felt that the extremities of both children were down to the pelvis and entangled.
My reason for thinking that the child was entangled was becaunse of‘the strong pains,
and I thomght the one child could not get past the other, The foot and the breech,
w'l::it'.h I also felt, belonged to the same child. I knew that there was another
child there, but I did not reach it with my hand. It was the child I felt that the
pursuer first Elﬁliwmd the woman of, 1 do not know what was the presentation of
the second child. There was no flooding or convulsions before or after the birth of T
either of t]_m children, so far as T recollect. T do not know whether or not Mrs R.'s
second child was turmed,  Tn Mrs L.'s case I felt that it was a leg presentation. I
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A do not know if the child was turned before the birth, T do not know how long M
L.s child lived. The only peculiarity in I. M.'s case was that it was slow lnh-mﬁ- nnr-l;
a big child. There were a few people in the house at the birth, Mrs I, Mrs M.
and I. M.s mother were the only people present. 1 heard on that occasion the
pursuer vead a letter said to be from the defender to Dr Greig, Fortsoy. The
parties present when he read the letter were I M., her mother, and me, 1 did not
on that occasion hear the pursuer call the defender by any name. While I was

Battending I. M, T heard the defender say that he was going to the country, but
would be back in time to attend at the delivery. T was in the way of seeing I. M.
after her confinement. I saw nothing the matter with her after her delivery. She
said nothing to me. There was nothing peculiar about Mrs S’s case except slow
Inbour. Letting off the water from the womb is an operation of difficulty sometimes.
It is often difficult when the water cannot be reached. T consider that in some
cnses, when the water cannot be reached, it is necessary to take it off, becanse the

Cchild cannot get past it. I cannot say how long she was ill after her confinement.
She was in an ordinary way on the third day after her confinement. I heard that
she was removed to Banff. She ealled for me some time ago, and told me that she
was still weakly, but in much better health. I was not at the confinement of the
wife of A. M. [ do not remember seeing any medical practitioner twrn a child in
the wonb ez:cgpt Dr Sharp. All which I depone to be truth, as T shall answer to
God ; and I depone I cannot write, Ten words delete.

I (Signed) James Gorpow, Comr.

Fraxeis Georee, Clk.

Compeared Mrs JANET DONATLD or WILSON, relict of John Wilson. erofter
in Portknockie, who, being solemnly sworn and examined, depones—I am sixty-six
years of age. I have known the pursuer for at least twenty-six years. I know Mrs
Spence or Geddes, wife of John Geddes, innkeeper, Portknockie. I was present at

T her first confinement. It was twenty-six years ago come April. The pursuer was
there. She lived at the Bauds of Cullen at that time. Before I went to the case,
Mys Bharp, a midwife, was there. Bhe is now dead. The pursuer had not come
when I went there. I do not remember how long I was there before the pursuer
came. Mrs Geddes was taken ill on a Tuesday, and she was not delivered till the
Friday following, I cannot say at what hour. [ saw the purswer try to deliver Rer.

He did not manage to deliver her, In tryping to deliver her he used the forceps. When

T le failed to deliver her, Mrs Geddes’ fatﬁr suggested that another doctor should le got,
and the pursuer told them o %1 any doctor they pleased. Dy Carmichael, from Buclie,
was sent for, and he came. Dy Carmichael, when he came, delivered Mys Geddes, He
used the forceps. D Carmichael used his own forveeps, I think. Dr Carmichael suc-
ceeded at fivst in extracting the child. I think Dr Carmichael’s forceps slipped once.
The delivery was suceessiul, I did not see the pursuer do anything that I con-
sidered improper in the treatment of Mrs Geddes. I think the pursuer did all he

G could for Mrs Geddes. It is so long since I cannot recollect whether the pursuer
treated Mrs Geddes kindly or not. The woman and child both lived. Interrogaced:
Have you ever attended any other midwifery case wheve the pursuer was present?

The defender’s procurator objected to the question, and to any question being put
to the witness about any case or cases other than those specified in the connter-
issue,

The Commissioner repelled the objection, and allowed the examination to proceed,

H against which judgment the defender appealed to the Lord Ordinary.

And the question being repeated, the witness depones—I was present at the case
of A. 5., where the pursuer was. Mrs Wright, a midwife, was also present. When [
went to A. 8.'s house, Mrs Wright was there, and the pursuer was sent for. He way
gent for some honrs after I went there, but I do not remember how many. He came
and delivered A. 8. He nsed the forceps, and gave her chloroform. The pursuer
was sont for beeause Mrs Wright could not deliver A. 5.  The delivery was successiul.

I I do not know why Mrs Wright could not deliver her, She had a good recovery.
Both she and tho child are still living. I was present with the pursuer at the caso
of i, L. She thenlived at Portknockie. She now lives near Portsoy.  The pursuer
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nt. He delivered her. He used the forceps, and gave her A
:ﬂlﬂiﬂf hgﬂulhs‘xxd? a good recovery, and ahﬂfn.nd the child are still hﬂl}ig.f From
what I have seen of the purauclz’frgllmn{:n } ﬂll{lik };:m capable of nsing the forceps.

i i nt and skilful midwifery doctor. ¢

1tE:i{ml;LTdﬂfgﬁThIftlﬂefnudur—Depnncs, I am not a midwi}‘a. In Mrs Geddes cn;ﬁ
I saw the pursuer use the forceps repeatedly without dﬁh:mrmg_ﬂm WOINAL. I‘ 0
not recollect if the pursner said, previous to Dr Carmichael’s coming, t_h?,t ﬂ.'llﬂ chll{l

was dead. The pursuer said, when the child was born, “ The Lttle r.'gm.! ts alive yet.” I3
After the child was born the pursuer swore at me, and threatened to kick me out at the
window. T did not hear him swear at Mrs Geddes. Mrs Geddes' futher proposed that
another doctor should be sent for. After Dr Carmichacl came the pursuer tried to
deliver Mrs Geddes with the forceps. I do not know if he tried more than once.
After Dr Carmichael was sent for tho pursuer continued to use the forceps. Dr
Carmichael delivered the woman in fifteen minutes or halfan hour after he came. I

gaw the child after it was born; the back of its head and brow were cut. Dr QY
Carmichael seemed to have no difficulty in delivering the woman. There were other
people present at Mrs Geddes’ confinement. Dell Donaldson, now wife of William
Lobban, near Portknockie, Ann Badenoch, now wife of John Duff, at Cruats, and
Mrs Kemp, wife of John Kemp, then at Bauds of Cullen, now at Whyntie, were
present at Mrs Geddes® confinement. Mys Goddes’ hmsband and }'nther were also
present. I saw Ann Smith's ehild born; it was a head presentation, Ann E-u_uth

had no convualsions or flooding. She was a healthy woman. Everything was right D
aliout the case to my knowledge, except that the labour was slow. In the case of
Elizabeth Legg the child’s head was presented. There was no flooding or convulsions
in her case. I considered the pursuer not so suceessful, in the ease of Mrs Geddes,
as Dr Carmichael, beeause Dr Carmichael delivered her, All which I depone to be
truth, as I shall answer to God ; and I depone I cannot write. Right words delete.

(Signed) Jayms Gomrpox, Comr.
Francis Geongg, Clk. B

Compeared MARGARET MARR or REID, midwife in Fordyce, who, being
solemnly sworn and examined, depones—I am sixty-eight years of age. I have
practised as a midwife for the last thirty-nine years. In Fordyce the midwife is
called, except in difficult cases. I have known the pursuer since a very short time
after he came to Cullen. Interrogated—Do yeu remember the case of Mrs M.?

The defender's procurator objected to the question, and to any question being put I
to this witness about any case or cases other than those specified in the counter-i1ssue.

The Commissioner repelled the objection, and allowed the examination to proceed,
agninst which judgment the defender appealed to the Lord Ordinary.

And the question being repeated, the witness depones—I remember the case of
Mrs M. about twenty-four to twenty-six years ago. I attended at her confinement.
It was her first confinement. The pursuer -was sent for some hours after [ got there.

I saw it was a big child, and I had no speedy way of relieving Mrs M., and so I G
gent for the pursner. He came. He used the forceps within an hour after he came.
He delivered the child. It was a natural presentation. She had a good recovery.
She and the child did well. There was nothing peculiar about the case except that it
was a big child, and I could not deliver her. Mrs M. had no flooding. I remember
the case of Mrs 0., wife of J. 0. I attended her. Dr Klingner was sent for, but he
did not come. Dr Gardiner, Portsoy, was sent for, and he came. Dr Gardiner
wished the pursuer to attend. He was sent for, and he camo. The pursuer delivered H
the child very soon after he came with the forceps. Befora the pursuer came Dr
Gardiner had repeatedly tried to deliver the child with the forceps, buf fuiled. I
rather think the pursuer brought forceps with him, but I am not sure. I cannot
say whether he used his own or Dr Gardiner’s forceps. I think it was pursuer's own
forceps he used, but I am not sure. The pursuer extracted the child at the first
attempt he made. The reason for sending for a medical man was that the child was
large, and the woman not well formed. The woman had a good recovery. There T
was no flooding. Chloroform was not used. I think this case was fifteen or sixteen
years ago. The woman and child are both alive. Mrs 0. was a broad woman, with






DEFENDER'S PROOT.

Mns JANET EEMP on LONGMORE.

I reside at Loanhead, in the parish of Rathven. Tam married, and have had A
five children. T was present at the confinement of the late Mrs Andrew Longmore,
in which sho died. I think she was taken ill about twelve o’clock at night. T went
to the house about seven o'clock on the following evening. Mrs Simpson, the mid-
wife, was there when I went. I did not hear her say anything about the presentation
of the child. I do not think I heard her say that the head of the child was prescat-
ing naturally. Dr Sharp was there before I went. He was using instruments when
I went in. Ho continued to do so for about a quarter of an hour afterwards, I tied B
a cord round the child’s ankle by Dr Sharp's divection. It was a thin piece of cord
like #wine; it was not tape or ribend.  After the cord was tied round the ankle, the
doctor tried to bring forward the child. He pulled very hard, as I thought, to do so.

I cannot say whether it was at the cord or the leg that he pulled. He said he could
make nothing of it. Then, after a short time, he said he would put the child back ;
that if it would not come the one way, it would have to go the other, While this
operation was going on, I saw a great deal of blood coming from the woman. I1C
thought it was an nnusual quantity of blood. Dr Carmichael, Buckie, was then sent
for. I think Mrs Longmore died betwixt nine and ten o’clock at night. I was there
when Dr Carmichael arvived ; Mrs Longmore was just dying., After she was dead,
he proposed that the body should be opened. I think Dr Sharp said that there was
no use for it—that it would do no good. I know what labour pains are. I thought
Mrs Longmore had lalour pains after Dr Sharp began to use the forceps. (€) Did
these labonr pains display tﬁe usnal appearances? (A.) I conld not exaetly say; he D
was using the forceps when I thought she had the Iabour pains, (&) Were the
pains that Mrs Longmore bad when you and Dr Sharp were in the room like the
pains you have had yourself when you were confined? (4.) I thonght so. I thought
Dy Sharp handled Mrs Longmore very roughly. He did not shake her, but T thought
he pulled her very roughly. T thought he acted roughly in the way in which he tried
to push back the child; he put his hand in and put it back. ly&un’t think I saw
anything peculiar in the bed when I was looking at it after the delivery was over. ©
I did not see bits of flesh in the bed ; but I saw what I thought were bits of flesh in a
tub amongst water, There were two bits; they seemed to be about two inches long,
but the one was a little longer than the other. I don’t think T was mistaken in
thinking they were bits of flesh ; they were like bits of raw flesh. 1 did not see Dr
Sharp make any examination of the woman while T was in the room. I cannot say
that I examined her person either before or aftcr she was dead.

Urﬂ_ﬂs-exammc{l—-—llr Wilson is our nsual family doctor. We have no other doctor 13,
but him. There were two women in the room besides Dr Sharp and myself with
Mrs Longmore—Mrs Eliza Cowie or Geddes, and Mrs Ann Lobban or Paterson, 1
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A think I was in the room the whole time, There are two apartm i
I wont “ben” for the woman's husband. I think that was {jlq:ﬁ ouﬁgt:-in?aﬂlliawgﬁﬂ:ff:
of the room whore Mrs Longmore was. It was a very distressing scene, and wo
were considerably agitated. When Dr Sharp was endeavouring to make the child
come away, ho had his coat off. Mys Longmore was partly under the bed-clothes,
The tub inwhich L saw what T took to be bits of flesh was standing outside—in the barn
1 think, Some one had taken out the clothes and put them into it. It was the
B following day when I saw it. T was washing the clothes, and T came upon the bits
. of flesh, as T thought they were. I did not see any bits of raw flesh in the room.
I thought those I saw in the tub had come from Mys Longmore, because they wero
among the clothes that had been about her when she died. 1 left them in the tub. [
could not say whether Mrs Longmore's pains were constant or intermittent, because
she did not live very long after I came in. I could not say whether the bits of flesh
were dark in eolour; they seemed to have blood upon them,

Mrs ANN LOBBAN or PATERSON.

I am the wife of Alexander Paterson, and live at Bauds of Cullen. T have eight
children. T recollect the Cullen market day in November, 1863 ; I went to Mrs
Longmore's confinement on that day. There was a midwife, Mrs Simpson, there

D when I went. It was between four and five o'clock, Mrs Longmore was in bed ;
sho was suffering pain. The labour pains were going on, Mrs Simpson said she
knew her labour would be slow, but that everything was in a fair way., Dr Sharp
was not there then; he came after night drew on. (L) Did the labour pains go
on after Dy Sharp arrived? (A.) Yes, she had pains. (Q.) Were they labour patns ?
(A.) She just had pains, so far as I recollect. (().) Did they come at intervals, with a
pause between, or was it @ constant pain? (A.) There was a pause between them.

E(Q.) They were just ordinary labour pains® (I -) Yes; these pains continued after Dr

sharp came, T do not recollect if they entire ¥ ceased before her death or not. I do
not recollect how long they continued after Dr Sharp came. I saw blood in the room
—TI could not say how much. I saw it on the floor at the bedside. It was coming
from the woman. (@.) Did you do anything when you saw this blood ? (A.) Thera
was nothing done till after the woman was dead; the clothes were lifted then. The
clothes were put down when Dr Sharp was working with her: it was Mrs Geddes

F who put them down. Dr Sharp asked for something to put below fiis knees. The blood
was partly on the floor and partly on the bed. After the woman died, I heard Dr
Sharp say that there was a rupture in the womb, and that it was a cross birth. Dr
Carmichael said that after death it was common that there was a scparation—that
the child should be taken ont. Dr Sharp said there was no use for it. When Dr
Sharp was trying to deliver the child, he put up his hand and took hold of one of its

G feet.  He then asked for his bag, and took out a picce of cord that was in the bottom of
it, and Mys Janet Longmore tied it yound the ehild's leg by his orders. After the cord
was tied, Dy Sharp puiled by it. (Q.) Did he pull gently or bardly? (4.) Just
between the two. % am sure he pulled by the cord, and not by the leg.” The cord was
like a piece of thick twine; it wasnol tape. [32 T, G.] '

Cross-examined—Dr Sharp has been the medical man who attended us for any
ill health in our family. We have not required any doctor lately. Dr Wilson has
neyer attended owr family. It was between four and five o'clock in the morning

H when I went to Mrs Longmore’s. I went back to my own house occasionally during
the day, but I returned to Mrs Longmore's. My house is distant about a quarter of
a mile. I might have remained for about two hours when I first went to Mrs Long-
more’s, I then went away; I could not say how long I was absent, but I was back
ngain in the forenoon before dinner. (@) Did you go to your own lLouse again ?
(A.) I went at times to see what wans doing, and came back when I could get. I
spoke to Mrs Longmore after Dr Sharp came. She did not complain to me of any

I particular pain. She was then growing weaker. She had the appearance ¢f being
a weakly constituted woman. I don't recollect whether or not she vomited. There
might have been something said about the rnpture before she died, but I do not
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recolloct. I was a good deal agitated, and there was reason to be so. She was A
always getting weu'kgg and weaker after Dr Sharp arrived, I could not say that she
remained sensible down to the very time of death, but after Dr Sharp was done with
her, she knew me, and spoke sensibly enough to me. I do not think the pains con-
tinued down to the very time of death, for she was lying quite quiet before she died.

I conld not say how long before her death the pains had ceascd.

Re-examined—Dr Sharp administered chloroform to her before he used the for-
ceps. Ho was in the honse some time hefore he administered the chloroform. IdoB
not think he was there two hours befors doing so, but it might have been three
quarters of an hour, or an hour.” He did not touch her for a time after he came. I
did not notice how often he applied the forceps. I don't think he applied it so often
as four times. I don't think he tried it more than once. He tried it to no purpose.
(€.) How long was he employed in using it to no purpose? (A.) He was not long
—some minutes, perhaps. I don’t think he tried it a second time. B

Dr DUNCAN CARMICHAEL.

I am a surgeon and M.D., and practise in Buckie. On 16th November, 1863, 1
was called to see Mrs Longmore, Bauds of Oullen. When I arrived, she was speech-
less, senseless, dying. She died in about a quarter of an hour or twenty minutes
after I arrived. After death, I performed the Cmsarian section to extract the child. D
The intention was to see if the child was alive, but we found that it was dead. The
child was in the uterus. T saw no rupture in the uterus, and no trace of one; but I may
mention, that in performing the operation I did not look for anything of the kind.

I performed the operation exaetly as if the individual had been alive. It was about
o quarter of an hour or twenty minutes after death. I made no searching incisions.
I saw the nterns—that side of it which was next the fore part of the abdomen. I
took care not to be very rough in my incision. [ did not cut off any bits of flesh from B
the woman’s person. The placenta was adherent. I would not say that it was wholly
adherent, but it was mostly so. I could not detect any flooding while I was there,
but I believe there was a flooding previously. 1 saw some appearances about the honse
to indicate #hat there had leen a flooding; I saw blood, but I cannot say to what
extent or in what quantity. It wes from having seen the blood that I formed the
iden ihat there had been a flocding. ¥le head of the futus was entively within the g
wlerus. 1t was nol thrust through any ruptwre of the uferus, nor through any part of
it, until I made the incision, and then the bead was taken through the ineision.
[#3 A.] I did not examine the woman's private parts before 1 performed the
Cesarian section. I found no tumour in the uterns, or in the regions of the uterus.
I found no growths in the bowels. Of course there were the child and the placenta.
I did not examine the woman's pelvis, and therefore cannot say whethier there was
anything peculiar in ita formation. I saw no deformity. Sho had the appearance
of being well formed. There were appearances as if the child had been turned ; at G
least the child was not exaetly in the nsual position in which we find it. The feet
were down ; that is the appearance we might expect after the child bad been turned.
There was a string or something tied upon one of the legs of the child. Dr Sharp
told me so much, at least, of what he had done; but I cannot say that T remember
exactly all that he said. He said he believed the woman’s death had been eaused
by rupture of the uterus. It was I who proposed that the Csavian seefion shonld
bo performed. I think that at first Dr Sharp did not scem to have any anxiety H
about, assisting at it, but he consented very readily. I do not recolleet him saying
that he daven't do it; and that the people in the country-side would not submit to
it. I sent some person to get the permission of the people of the house; T do not
1{;:;\: ]r.'hum Ieont; I ht.hinkhi: Embﬂnfl_ of ]':che women, but I am not sure. I know
here was a scarch for t ushan did not perceive any particular clots of
blood in the womb. There was blood, but the quantity was nn:l:F Euticnnhlu. I did
not contradict Dr Sharp when ho stated that the worhan had died from rupture of 1
the uterus. It was a matter of opinion, and I thought he had a right o his opinion,
He oxpressed that opinion both before and after the Cesarian section had been per-
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A formed. I did not partienlarly examine the cord that was tied to the child; but, as
wo might expect in a caso of the kind, it was red and bloody. I did not form any
decided opinion as to what was the cause of the woman’s death. I do not know what
was the cause of her death.

In 1841, I was called to the case of o Mrs Helen Spence or Geddes. Dr Sharp
was there when I arrived, and he informed me that he had attempted to extract the
child by the forceps, but that he had been unsuccessful. e suggested some other

B mode of operation ; 1 cannot say decidedly just now whether it was eraniotony, or what
it was ; but I objected to it, because I thought it would be dangerous or fatal to the child.
After I arrived, Dr Sharp again tried the forceps in my presence, but was still unsue-
cessful. 1 was then asked to try it, and succeeded in bringing a living child into the
world. The mother and child ave still alive. I succeeded at the first attempt I made,
I don’t think I injured the child’s head in that operation. I took hold of the child
once only, and it was successful. ((}) What jou mean is this, that when an attempt

@ with the foreeps is successful, the head is generally uninjured, and therefore you
think it was so in this case? (A.) Yes. There were some marks of injuries on the
back of the child’s head, and also on the cheek., It iz not unusunal, however, for marks
to be there when the foreeps is used, even when the child is delivered alive and well.
I applied the forceps in the nusual way—laterally, towards the side of the head. My
usual practice is to take a hold of the head by the side; I thereiore think—as m
first attempt was successful—that I could not have injured the firont nor the Eiw:i

D part of the child’s head. If I had inflicted amy injury, the mark of it wonld have
been on the side. (€.) Did any labour pains intervene between the unsuccessful
attempts made by Dr Sharp in your presence and your successful attempt? (4.) The
labour pains were very moderate, alimost tmperceptible ; at least I cannot say that they
were more than scarcely perceptible—I mean perceptible to me. I have still in my
1.[ausms.ic:n the foreeps which I then used. It was a forceps with a lateral curve; and

think Dr Sharp's was what is called the straight forceps, which is fully more in

L use. I cannot say whether the straight forceps or the forceps which I used is the
most liable to slip. I use the one with the lateral curve, and I find it handy. The
straight forceps is a good instrument too; but I have a partiality for the other, with
which I am best acquainted. (Produces forceps.) This is what is generally called
the short forceps; the long forceps is some inches longer. I could not say whether
Dr Sharp's was longer than this ; but I think it was the straight forceps.

Cross-examined—1I have known many other instances where a medical man has

T succeeded in extracting a child after a professional brother has failed. It was not
an unusnal circumstance that Dr Sharp should have failed, and that I should have
succeeded. ((.) You say you made the Cwmsarian section as if you were making it
upon a living person, and did not look for rupture—might there have been a rup-
ture, although you did not see it? (A.) The tnner coats of the uterus might have been
ruptured; but it was not ruptured through and through. If that had been the case, I would
have known it, because the child would have protruded through. It would have been in

G the cavity of the abdomen, and there would haye been blood there. Now, there was no
blood there. Any flooding was in the inside of the uterus. Iam aware that the
certificate of registration given by Dr Sharp stated the cause of death to have been
rupture of the uterus. I said nothing about that. I had a different opimion, bub I
did not express it divectly. I am not very sure, but I may have done 1t indirectly.
I can give no opinion now as to what was the canse of death. () What prevented
delivery when the foot was down, and you were able to use extracting force, in Mrs

T Longmore’s case? (A.) Idid not use extracting foree in Mrs Longmore’s case, The
child was delivered, not by the natural passages, but by incisions in the belly.
(Q.) But why did you not use extracting force when the foot was down? (.) Be-
eause the child could not have been born alive in that way. The mother was dead
for about a quarter of an hour or twenty minutés before I performed this section.
(@) Would it have required a good deal of trouble to have delivered the child by
the natural passage? (d.) It would have been very troublesoms to the child to have

I delivered it by tho natural pmssage; and it is customary in theso cases to deliver
through the abdomen. When we got the child out, we made no further examination
of the woman. Our object was merely to get the child out.
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By Lord Ovdinary—When I came, the woman was moribund, and ineapable of A
undergoing any operation. I did not try to do anything with her.

Cross-examination continued—{((}.) Was thers anything to have prevented you
from delivering the child in the ordinary way? (4.) The thing that prevented me
was that I know that the woman was moribund when I went there; and I knew that
it was the only chance of getting a living child, and that the woman would die
before there was any other attempt at delivery. I saw it was hopeless to attempt to
save the woman. ((J.) Could you have performed the operation upon a living B
woman? (A.) It could have been done. It bas been done, but I have neyer done
it. However, [ performed the operation as it would bave been performed upon a
living woman. She was so lately dead, that there was no dissection, and no search-
ing examination.

Re-examined—I cannot tell whether there could have been a fatal rupture—a
rupture which would have been necessarily fatal to the woman—ithout my having
seen it on the examination which I made. EIQ..} But you said that the child would C
have protruded through the uterns if there had been any serious rupture ? (A.)I
don't know that it would have protruded; it might bave intruded. It would have
gone out of the eavity of the nterus and gone into the cavity of the belly ; but it did
not do so. There was no rupture through the uterus. (Q.) Can thero be such a thing
as a fatal rupture when only the inner coats are ruptured? (d.) There may; a
person might lose so much blood by the large arteries as to cause death. {Q‘% Did
you sea any signs of blood to account for a fatal rupture of the uterus? (A.) There D
was some blood in the eavity of the uterus, and there.were some appearances of blood
about the house to indicate that there had been a flooding. DBut I did not suspect
that that was the cause of death. I did not see much blood, but there may have
been. I saw nothing that led me to suppese that the woman had died from rupture
of the uterns. ((.) Was it your opinion that she died of rupture of the uterus?
(A.) That depends upon what you mean by rupture of the uterus. If you mean
rupture of the whole coats, I did not see any signs of that, so that I do not think that I
was the cause of death. DBut I cannot say whether or not she died of rupture of the
internal coats. (().) Did you see enough of blood to account for a rupture of tho
inner coats which would have been necessarily fatal? (A4.) No, I did not see much
blood. (Adjournment.)

FTRIDAY, MAY 17.

Dr SHARP, the pursuer, recalled.

Adimissibility of this reeall objected to.
Objection repelled.
Fraser, for the pursuer, excepted.
. (Q) First, as to Mrs Longmore's case, are you aware of three different positions
in which the head of thechild can be? (4.) Thers are four positions. ((0.) fnwhich
of these four positions was the head of the child? (A.) I really don’t vemenber. I don't
eep an account of these trifiing matlers. It is quite unimporiant whether it be in the first, yp

second, third, or fourth pesition, [70 0, D, 78 H, 80 B.] I cannot, from memory say
which of the positions it was in.  The waters had escaped before I | roceeded to the
patient. I do not know how long they had escaped; I never inquired as to the
particular time—at least T do not recollect of having done so. The head of the child
did not recede until I attempted to apply one blade of the forceps. I should BAY
that Mrs Longmore was just approaching to the second stage of lubour—that is, the
os utert not entirely dilated, but flaceid and dilatable; had there been any paiuns, it I
was giving no resistance to these pains bringing forth the child. The labour was

still in the first stage, but just approaching to the second stago. I don't know—at

.
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A lenst I forget—how long she had been in that firct stage of labour. I conld only
learn that by being told; she was under the care of a midwife. I just inquired how
Iong ehe had been in labour; and the midwife said she had been there sincs very
early in the morning—I think from five o’clock. That was my only source of infor-
mation. Ihad no other means of satisfying myself that that was the case. The
midwife is tho principal person on an oceasion of the kind.

In the case of Mrs Geddes I did not nse the eatheter. It was not required, because

I there was no water in the bladder. 1 could feel externally if there was any quantity requir-
ing the application of the catheter, 1 liad used before tﬂe forceps which I used in this
case. I had no others at that time; I was only begun in practice. I had succeeded
with it in somo previous cases. (L) You told us yesterday that the forceps slipped in
this caso as nsual—what did you mean by that? (.) I mean by that, that it slipped
many times—.JI could not say the number. When I applied it first it slipped, the second
time it slipped, the third time it slipped, and on each attempt, I say, as usunal it

@ slipped. I really could not say what was the position of the child's head in this case,
because I did not keep an account of it. Jft is a very trifling matter, and I do not
record the positions; besides, it is twenty-six years ago. ((J.) In this case, as in
Mrs Longmore's, you think the position of the head was immaterial? (4.) Yes; it
was natural. () What do you mean by natural? (4.) The position that is most
commonly adopted by Nature in bringing forward a child, () Which is that posi-
tion? (A.) There are four positions. (L) Which of these four? (A4.) Well, the

D first. (()) In what diameter of the cavity of the pelvis did the long diameter of the
child’s head lie? (..) At that period, immediately before labour, the face was
situated in the hollow of the sacrum—that is, in the longest diameter of the outlet of
the pelvis. I always use Hamilton's forceps. In this case it was the common short
Sorceps. T introduced my forceps in the axes of the pelvis—not of the outlet of the
pelvis. I felt the ear of the child before I introduced the forceps; that is the part
to be scized upon. The head remained resting on the perinenm for a good many

T, hours, I do not now recollect how many. I was ealled there, I think, in the fore-
noon ; I visited again about three o'clock, and again about seven o'clock, if I recollect
aright, and the head made no progress during all that time. That would probably
be for six or eight hours. There was no constitutional irritation, otherwise I would
have applied the instruments much earlier. The reason why I applied the forceps
at all was because the head was impacted in the pelvis. I did not apply the forceps
antero-posteriorly ; 1 applied them laterally. (@) As to Mrs Mair's case, do you

F consider it safe to rely upon the statement of a patient as to the state of her own
bladder? (A.)Ialways examine for myself. Iask the patient, and then exdmine
for myself. If there be such a quantity of water in the bladder as would render the
application of instruments dangerous, it can be detected by the hand. Tt is very seldom
I try the catheter unless I cannot detect it; and I very seldom find myeelf err in
that respect: I nevep found my diagnosis of that state of matters to be incorrect.
Mrs Mair's pelvis was contracted at the brim. It was not contracted ab the outlet, so

G far as I am aware. I ascertained its contraction by tactile examination—that ig, by
touch with the fingers ; after putting the person under chloroform, I can do it freely.
I put her always under chloroform when I am about to attempt to apply the forecps.
(5} Where was the child’s head when you performed craniotomy? (A.) The pelvis
of the mother was contracted antero-posteriorly to the extent of three inches, so far
as I could ascertain. I tried with pretty powerful traction to extract the body of
the child, but when it came to the head I found that the head was so much ossified

T that it stuck there at the brim of the pelvis, It yiclded so far, but not enough to allow
it to be extracted. It was at the brim it was detained. () How long had the head
been impacted at the brim? (A.) The midwife in attendance was such a person
‘that T could not depend upon her word for an instant, and therefore I could not say
positively. Immediately on arriving there I found the head impacted at the brim of
the pelvis, but how long it had been so previously I could not say. It musthave been
go for some considerable time, because there was very wnmfiem&fa constitutional

I irritation. What I mean by being much ossified is, that there is a much greater, a
much stronger deposition of osseous matter in the bones of the eranium of the child
than usual. When a bone is very strongly ossified, it is very resisting to any instru-
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ment applied to break it. So much was it ossified here that it defied the point of the A
crotehet to take hold of it. T do not consider it good practice to bleed a patient at any
stage of labowr when she is much exhausted, I would consider it very bad practice to
take twenly ounces of bood from a woman in that stafe. ‘EEH- F, 67 D, E, 68 T, G,
66 B.] 1 remained albout a quarler of an hour or so in the house afier the delivery qf
Mrs Mair. I had used the forceps, craniotomy, and turning, and [ considered that it
was a very formidable case. (L) How long do you stay with a patient when it is not a
ormidable case? (A.) I probably stay five or ten minutes, or sometimes an hour. Tha

ngth of time I stay depends upon the circumstances of the case, If I see anything T
threatening, I remain till the danger iz over. Before the child was extracted I
formed a diagnosis that it was dead. ((1) Suppose there were blue echymosed spots
on the child's body after it was born, would you consider that these could have been
caused previous to the child's death? (A.) Generally, indeed very often, when a
child dies, echymosed spots are over the body, proceeding from what cause I will not
say, because I do not know. (().) Suppose there was an echymosed mark upon two
particular parts of the body, and that these marks could be accounted for by foree (g
used to the child, would you then say that these marks could have been inflicted
before the child was dead, if there was no echymosis on the rest of the body?

A.) There were no such marks upon that child. I saw the body of the child, and
there were no echymosed spots on 1t that I saw.

Cross-examined—The compressing force of the forceps which I used in Mrs
Geddes' case was very weak ; how much it was I could not say, for I never proved
it. I did not take twenty ounces from Mrs Mair when she was in a weak condition. D
In that case, I first employed the forceps, then turning, and then craniotomy. I never
heard until yesterday of pieces of flesh having been torn from the person of Mrs
Longmore, and of these having been seen lying about. (€.) May there have been
some clotted blood which might have had that appearance ? (4.) Well, it assumes
an organised appearance when left for a time. (¢.) But was there clotted blood ?
(d.) There was some blood which came from the person at the time. (Q.) And do

you suppose these women mistook that for pieces of flesh ? (4.) It must have been E
mistaken for picees of flegh,

Mrs HELEN SPENCE or GEDDES.

I am the wifo of John Geddes, vintner, Portknockie. I was confined on the 16th
of April, 1841, My labour commenced on Tuesday, the 14th. It was progressing F
favourably. Dr Sharp was ealled in, and he first came about five o'clock on Thurs.
day morning. He remained for about an hour. He returned at three o'elock in the
alternoon. I was feeling worse then. Dr Sharp did not stay. My mother wished
him to stay, but he would not. He said he was going to a tea-party at Cairnficld
which is stz miles from the place where I live. He said if I was not batter by six or
seven o'clock, to send for him, He was sent for, and came back—I suppose about
nine o'clock. He was then in a great passion, and swore. T don’t know wlat he 3
Wwas in a passion about. I was lying on a bed on the floor, and he lifted me up and
put me into the bed. XHe shook me very hard. I don't know why he did that. On
the first occasion when he called he feit me about the stomach, and took me up in
his arms and shook me back and forward. I do not recollect if he examined me
when he called about three u’alnf:fc. On the last occasion he used the forceps to me.
Ie fixed it, but it slipped. It slipped siz times before Dr Carmichael was ealled. The
midwife assisted Dr Sharp when he was using the forceps. I suppose he kept work= IT
ing at me with the forceps for two or three howrs. After that he went away to Cullen,
and said it was for a change of instruments. He used the forceps once after he camo
back ; it slipped again. I did not hear Dr Sharp say anything to Dr Carmichael
about the state of the child. I heard him say to my mother, and to the midwife
taat one of the child's eyes was blown out. He also said the child was dead. Mjl'
father asked him if the child was alive, He eaid, No; and that it must be destroyed
bfore it came into the world, My father objected to this, and said he would not allow I
1t to be done uniil ke got more skill, ~ Dr sharp said, “ You may bring five hundred, if



G2 TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW,

A Y they be medical gentlemsm, Lnt T wasfirst called, and T will doliver i -
“ golf.” Dr Carmichael came. After ho cume, Dr Sharp tried the famgll::. ?!:;E ?gd
it sfipped both times. e said he gaveme up. Dr Carmichael then applied his fn:lr::cps.
It never slipped, and ho delivered me of a fomale child. She is still alive, T Al BUYG
that no labour pains intervened between the time when Dy Sharp tried his forceps
and when Dr Carmichael tried his. The child’s head was very much swelled. Thero
were injuries upon it—on the back of the head, and on the left eye, on the side of the

Bnose. There wag a ent there. The wound gave forth matter for seven weeks after
the birth of the child. Mrs Duff and Mrs Lobban were in the house,

Cross-examined—DMy husband keeps a public-house. I have seen Dr Wilson in
it. Ho has been in it lately. He has spoken very little to me about this case, Ha
has not gone over the whole thing with me, so far as I reeollect. He has taken
refreshments in our house, but not frequently. It is twenty-six years now since the
confinement took place of which I have spoken. I don’t think I will forget what

Ctook place then 50 long as I have my senses. Perhaps I have told the story of it to
Dr Wilson when he was in our house. If I have done so, it was the same thing as
I have stated to-day. When Dr Sharp returned he was in @ passion. I don’t know
what reason he had for being so. He “damned me to hold my peace; what was 1
“ erying out for?” He lifted me up in his arms, and shook me Im‘.i and forward, He
did not take me by the hands, but lifted me up in his arms. That was my first
child. I have had five children. That was the most painful Iabour I ever had, I

Ddid not need the forceps at any confinement except that. He wrought with the
forceps for about three hours, but;, of course, he was not working with it all that
time. He was three ‘hours in the house before he went to Cullen. Dr Carmichael
was not long in coming after he was sent for; I suppose about an hour. T think he
was there by four o'clock in the morning. I could not say that I felt the child
moving at the time Dr Sharp said it was dead. I could not say whether there wers
any labour pains going on then. I had my senses about me all the time. I was

L suffering great pain. My father and mother are both dead. I did not lose my
senses ab any fime before the delivery of the child. I recollect everything quite
distinetly. I don't think my memory has been aided by going over the story lately.
Dr Wilson did not come to ask me about the story, nor did I go to tell him, T hap-
pened to meet him at another woman’s confinement about eight years ago, and the thing was
mentioned in the course of conversation. I am quite sure that when I was ill, and when
Dx Sharp's forceps were slipping, he did not propose to send for assistance. T could

F not say what kind of dress he had on. He had lis coat off when e was trying the

Joreeps.
Mrs ANN BADENOCH or DUFF.

I am the wife of John Duff, Portknoekie. I was present at Mrs Geddes’ confine-
ment in 1841. I saw Dr Sharp there. He was not there when I went; he came in
G towards eight or nine o'clock at night. Mrs Geddes was then lying on a bed on the
floor, and he ordered her to be put into a bed.  When he was putting her into the bed,
he gave her what I thought a very unbecoming shake. After he had been there somo
time, he went away, saying he would be back in a quarter of an hour. He went to
Cullen. He did not stop longer than he said he would, When he came back, lia
examined her. He did not shake her again. He did not touch her except with the
instrument. e swore at ler when she cried out.  He * damned her to hold her tongue ;
I “ the women would be thinking he was killing her.” T saw Dr Sharp use his forceps
on this oceasion; it always lost its hold. I was there when Dr {}:Ermmhuel‘ came.
He delivered the woman in a very short time. I saw the child after it was delivered,
It was in a very ugly state. The back of the head and the forehead were marked. I
did not hear Dr Sharp say anything about the child being alive or dend ‘t_mft_:nru it was
born ; but I saw him speaking to Mrs Gaﬂﬂeaj father when I was in the inside of the
bed, although I did not hear what he was saying. : ]
1 Oross-examined—I have been at many confinements hesides this one. I h,?r{t
heard the doctor tell a woman in labour to hold her noise, but not * damn t'I?um to
doit. Mrs Geddes was erying o good deal. There were a good many neighbour
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women in the room. The skin was broken on two parts of the child’s head when A
it was delivered, [52 I, I, 53 B.]

JANE GEDDES.

hter of Mrs Helen Spence or Geddes. T have a mark on the back
of Li;rmhis gﬂgm near the right eye. (Witness being asked to show these,_uxh.xh:tﬂﬂ
her head to the medical gentlemen present.) T do not recollect when I received these I
marks: £ have had them all my life. T was twenty-six years of age on the 16th April
]M{?rws—nxnminud, and heing asked by Mr Fraser to put her finger on tho spot in
the front part of her bead, indicates a point in the corner of the right eye.

Mprs ANN BRUCE or WOOD. a.

midwife in Portknockie, and have been so for eighteen years. I have a
cﬂliiiéifn?a of qualification from Dr Christie, Aberdeen, dated 1849. I have had
upwards of seven hundred midwifery cases under my care. I recollect the case of
Mrs Catherine Mair, wife of George Mair, Bobbin, who lived at Portknockie. Her
confinement was on 19tk December, 1856. She was in common labour when I came
to attend her, The symptoms were the usual symptoms of natural labour. I made D
an examination of her person, and the size of the mouth of the womb. The labour
was progressing slowly, but naturally and favourably, This state of matters con-
tinued over Thursday and through Thuraday night, till Friday through the day.
There was nothing peculiar about the labour but its slowness. I sent for Dr Sharp
about six o'clock on Saturday morning, and /e came about eight, in the n'uwn_n the
morning; the lights were not out. 1 told him how long Mrs Mair had been ill. I
gent for the doctor becansa the labour was slow, and I thought that any doctor B
would relieve the woman when he came, becanse everything was natural. I was not
frightened at the case in the least. I anticipated that he might use instruments.
Mrs Mair was quite sensible when Dr Sharp came. She put up her hands and said,
1 will never rise off this bed.” She appeared to be a little alarmed and frightened
at the doctor. She said, * That man will do for me.” The pains got a little weaker
at that time, but the patient herself was quite strong., The labour was P?'Ef?’ Jar on.
The waters had escaped.  The womb, as vegarded the vagina, was quite natural, and the It
head was resting on the perinewn. T'he womb and the vagina formed one. The head had
not vested on the perinewm long before D Sharp came.  The presentation was one of the
cranium; I put in my hand and felt the haiv on ihe child’s head. Mrs Mair, senior, was
present.  As she had been with some women in confinement before, and as she
might think I was stating the wrong thing, I asked her to examine for herself. She
aaid she thought there was no use for a doctor, as the child wonld be here soon ; but
I took her hand, and made her make the same examination as I had done. There G
was no tumonr in the vaging or regions of the womb, so far as I could ascertain. To
my tonch the pelvis appeared to be of the ordinary size. I had no difficulty in
making my examinations. Mys Mair had no fever or convulsions at this time, nor
was there any flooding, Things were still going on naturally when Dr Shax
came, The mother-in-law asked if there was any danger. He said, “ No; T will
deliver her in five minutes, granny.” I thought he was quite in earnest when
he said that. He used the forceps after that. T suggested that he shounld take I
off the water before he used the forceps. I saw him go into the bed, as if to
use the cathoter, but I do not know if anything came. I did not give him
any vessel to hold the water. 1 had given the woman an injection before
ho came. He did not say that he was to use the forceps before taking off the
water. He had it in warm water; that is what is always done immediately before
using it. Mrs John Mair, the mother-in-law of Mrs George Mair, and her daughters,
Ann and Helen, were in the room besides myself. The forceps were never locked I
by Dr Sharp. I tried to tie it several times with a picce of tape, but it was never
locked, so fav as I knew. [le tried to force it (o lock by grasping it closely, while £
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A tied it firmly, but it would not lock, Ho did not say why ho wanted it tied, but he
always wanted me to tie it firmly, because it would not lock. T have seen a forceps
locked since, but I never saw it tied. He tried the forceps several times, but it
always slilzpcd. It was when the woman was in puins that the forceps was introduced;
I have no doult of that. During the intervals of these pains Ly Sharp sat down and
rested himself. He gave no reason for the forceps slipping. He was a little out of
temper at the time, and occasionally used an oath. It was when ho was trying to

B extract the child that the forceps slipped. After he had used the forceps he went
away for a little time; he would be away for about an hour. When he came back
he said he would have to break up the child. e head of the child was still pre-
senting when he said that, and the woman had still slow labour pains, but she was
under chloroform. I suggested that another doctor should be called jn, Dr Sharp
said there was no doctor to be got. T said there were two in Cullen; and he replied
that there were nome of them better than old wives. I said we could get Dr Mae-

C grogor from Cullen. I do not know what remark he made about that. It was also
proposed that Dr Carmichael should be sent for; but he refused to send for him,
He did not give any reason to me for refusing. He then said he would send a boy
to Cullen for his dead irons ; and the boy went, and brought back these instruments.
(Shown No. 53, a common Portknockie poker.) I smw Dr Sharp use a piece of pointed
iron like that, with « knob at the end. I cannot say that that is the same article which
be used, but it was exactly like that. The thing he used was not like seissors; it had

D only one biade, and there was a small knob at the end. I have seen what is called a
perforator ; Dr Sharp did not use any instrument like a perforator.  When he used
the instrument like that now produced, he took hold of it with both his hands, placed his
left foot against the bed, and used it as if he were stabbing the child. He did that several
times. He used great force. He injured the private parts of the woman while doing
this. I made an examination to find out whether the child was alive or dead before
this operation commenced. While the doctor was out, I put my hand on the woman's

E abdomen, and felt the child moving. Dy Sharp said the child was alive, but he would
be obliged to destroy it in order to save the mother. Mrs Mair, sen., and her two
dnughters, were also looking on while the child was being stabbed in the way I have
described. The stabbing broke up a large picce of the erown of the child's head,
ubout the size of a teacup, and the brain came out. I gathered this up and put it
into a small basin. Dr Sharp then sent Helen Mair to William Wood, the shoemaler,
Jor a pair of his best pincers, and began to pick off pieces of the brain with the

F pincers. Ajter doing this he bled the woman on the arm with his lencet, and took off two
soup platefuls of blood from her. I held the first plate. The arm was bound up again
after the blood was taken off. It was after using the perforator that he took off the
blood. He then went out for some time, and after that he sent to Portsoy for Dr
Gardiner to come and turn the child. Word was sent back that Dr Gardiner was
not coming, and Dr Sharp then said that he would be obliged to do the work him-
self. I moticed that the woman's perinenm was very much mangled, and that small

G pieces of her private parts had been forn away. When Dr Sharp bled her, T asked
him what was his reason for taking off blood. He said she was too strong, and he
required to do so. I said I had never seen it done in such a case ; but he said she
was too strong. She was pretty unruly under the chloroform—tossing about very
much, and crying out. She was not weak ; the doctor would not have taken off the
blood if she had been weak. It was before another doctor was sent for from Portsoy
that I observed the rupture of the perineum and the lnceration of the private parts,

H becaunse the woman herself wanted me to examine her at the time Dr Sharp was out.
for she was very ill. Dr Gardiner did not eome. Dr Sharp afterwards turned the
child. There were two women in the bed to assist him—Elizabeth Mair, who is now
dead, and one of the sisters-in-law. Dr Sharp took off his coat and rolled up his
gleaves before he turned the child. When he bmqght down the feet of the chxll}, he
asked for a piece of cord or line, and attached a piece to each foot; he then tt:ustujlf
the two strings round his hand, and put his foot against the bed, and drew wttﬁhﬂ

I kis might. I am sure he pulled by the string, and not by the leg. T could not say wh?gn er
he had the two legs fastened in one loop, as [ was standing at his back. Pr S hrp
only stayed so long in the house after the child was extracted as to get his clothes
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on; he stayed perhaps between ten and fifteen minutes. I saw the child after it was A
extractod. Il;-iﬁ:nfptim natural size. I saw marks on its head, and there was a pretly
Jirm mark round one of the wrists, as if it had &a@nﬁvn.{z&fasgmwdiyamrd. t was
not much cut. I ponted that out to Helen Mair, dfld stster and her mother. I
saw some bits of flesh, which I gathered up and put into a basin. After the woman
died, I saw places about her private parts from which flesh had been torn. From
my experience in seven hundred midwifery cases, I consider that Dr Sharp did not
treat this woman well or skilfully. Zhe child was extracted between nine and ten B
dclock on the Saturday night and the woman died about one o'clock on the Monda
When I first came to the house, Dr Sharp was not there. I did not loo
into the woman's private parts, but I felt them with my hands. From what I felt,
I am sure that, @f}lﬁnad looked in, I could have seen the head of the child easily. The
placenta was not displaced ; everything was right. There was no flooding and no
convulsions.

Cross-examined—T kept a public-house in Portknockie for twenty years down to O
the last term. Dr Wilson was often in my house; but Dr Sharp has been in it oftener
than Dr Wilson. I never spoke to Dr Sharp in my house about this case, nor to
Dr Wilson. (§).) You never said a word to him on the subject? (4.) Never further
than as it was the news of the country-side. I said to Mr Colville, the agent for the
pursuer in this case, that I had nothing to say to him further than I had told the
other agent before that, and I thought it was not proper that I should tell them both.
The other agent to whom I had told it was Mr Forbes, Portsoy. I knew a MrsD
Robert Forbes; I attended her as midwife. Dr Bidie was the medical man who
attended her. He happened to be away from home when she died, and Dr Sharp
was called in. I do not recollect the date of this case; it is some years ago. Dr
Sharp did not ineline to interfere. The woman died soon after he came; she lived
more than a few minutes after he came. She would not allow him to come to the
bed. He said he would not harm her; that she need not be afraid of him; but she
said she was afraid. Iasked the doctor why she was afraid; and he said he supposed B
some person had been saying he wounld do her harm. I said I did not think so. She
got excited. (Q.) Did you wish the doctor to deliver her then and there? (d.) Of
course I left it to himself. Bhe died in the time of her delivery. Dr Sharp did not
rebuke me for the manner in which the woman had been treated. He abused Dr
Bidie, but he did not abuse me. I had nothing to do with the case at all; T had given
it up to Dr Bidie for some days before that. (f).) Did you look on Dr Sharp with
the same friendly feeling after that? (A.) Well, there was not much difference. F
Dr Sharp may have looked down upon me for it; but it made no difference to me.

I have seen Dr Sharp use the forceps in gome cases that were very easily done, and
in some that were not. He sometimes used it successfully, but in the generality of
cases he used it unsuccessfully. ().) What were these cases? Mention them.
(4.) One of these cases was that of Widow Tait, Portknockie. The child was taken
out with a rope. The woman was delivered in one way or other, and she Gved, but
the child was dead-born. In the case of Margaret Mair, Portknockie, the child died G
a little after it was born. The bone f{ﬂtﬁe eye was broken with the forceps. The
mother survived. The father of that child was George Bridie, Portknockie. This
case hnﬂ:enaﬂ some time ago. I cannot say how long. (@) Tell us of a third
case. ) 1 have not had many cases of that kind. ((.) Then these two are all
that you recollect of? (A.) I was not in many cases with Dr Sharp. I never had
many cases that required the forceps; I was able to manage the most of my cases
myself. T would not say that I could have managed Mrs Mair’s case myself; but T H
think if the case had been well managed, the delivery could have been easily effected.
Dr Sharp was not sent for at first in that case. It was tho patient's wish that she
should haye Dr Macgregor or Dr Wilson, who were both in Cullen at the time, but
they could not be got, and then Dr Sharp was brought. Mrs Mair, sen., said she
thought there was no use for a doctor, but the doctor had been sent for by that time.
When Dr Sharp used the forceps, the bedclothes were thrown off, and I stood beside
him when I tried to tie it. " Some doctors always throw off the clothes when they I
use the forceps, but some don’t. T know what a crotehet is ; it is an instruoment for
pulling away the head when there is anything broken off from the brain, (Shown

E
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A No. 68.) It wns an instrument like that which Dr Sharp nsed; it was not a eroteh
Dr Sharp went in his gig for the instruments. T did :EE gee him bring a box or u:;
with him when he returned. He had his forceps with him when he eame; he did
not send for it. The woman was under chloroform from the time when Dr Sharp
first began to use the foreeps until night; but she was never quite under it. Sha
spoke all the time, and scremmed out. It was after he broke up the child that Dr
Sharp took blood from the woman. He said she was too strong, She was under

B chloroform at that time. (Q.) Do you swear, upon your solemn oath, that you saw Dr
Sharp take blood from that woman? ~(A.) Yes, f do, Mrs Mair, I think, was about
twenty-one or twenty-two years of age. This was her first confinement. I have
had one fatal case among the seven hundred which have been under my charge. Of
course when the doctor is ealled in, T do not consider that the case is in my hand;
but in the cases in which I have acted alone I have only had one case where the
woman died. Whenever I see anything serious I always send for a doctor.

O Re-examined—In the case of Mrs Taif, where I have said that a ropo was nsed,
I was called about six o'elock in the morning. Dr Sharp came, I think, about ten
o'clock in the forenoon. KEverything was apparently going on very well. 1 had the
woman lying on a mattress on the floor, but the doctor caused her to be lifted into
bed, and examined her. The presentation was one of the cranium. He unsed the
forceps. Then he turned the child, and got a piece of small packing-rope, which he
fastened round both ankles, enclosing both in one loop. He keld the line firmly in

D his hand, and pulled lzm it, and extracted the child in that way. The child was dead.
The woman lost much blood at the time of the delivery. U%y; course the doetor was
covered with blood.

Mrs ANN WOOD or MAITR.

E I am the wifo of John Mair of Portknockie. I remember the confinement of my
daughter-in-law Catherine, in December, ten years ago. I went to the house in the
morning, after twelve o’clock, but I do not recollect the exnct time. Mra Wood, the
midwife, was then with my daughter-in-law; there was no one ¢lse there at that
time. The labour had commenced, and was going on quite naturally, but slow.
The head of the child was in the right place; I felt it with my hand. A medical
man was sent for, I think about six o'clock. It was Dr Wilson who was_sent for,

F but he was not at home, and then Dr Sharp was bronght. He came during the
morning, but I do not recollect the exact hour. He warmed his hands at the fire
when he came; and after he had examined her, I asked him what he thought of her
condition. He said, * Everything is perfectly regular; she will be delivered very
soon.” I saw Dr Sharp use a forceps, but it slipped. After remaining in the house
a ghort time he went away, and I think he did hot come back till he was sent for.
Aftor he had used the forceps, he sent away for more instruments, and what he

G called his dead irons were brought. He said he would have to break up the child’s
head in order to save the woman's life. Affer he had broken up the head he
gaid that it was mortified, but T EWbw that it was not. I wanted more medical
assistance to be sent for, and I said to Dr Sharp that I would send for Dr Wilson,
and the other doctor who was in Cullen at that time, but he said that he wonld have
none of them, and that we might as well send for old wives. I also wished Dr Car-
michael of Buckie to be sent for. Dr Sharp said he would not have him, becanse he

H had charged £2 for a case he had been called to before. Dr Sharp wanted another
doctor from Portsoy; and a man was sent for him, but he did not come. Dr
then went out; and when he came in again, T met him in the passage, and aske
him to go in to the woman and deliver her. Ho asked mo if I thought that his arms
were made of stone or marble. He then went in, and took off his coat, and in about
nalf an hour he delivered the woman. I went out of the house when he began to

¢ take out the child. I was not in when he bled my aqughter-in-law, but when Ireturned
%o tne room I saw two platefuls of blovd standing on the table beside the bed. [36 C.
I saw the child after it was extracted. When I went tolook atit, Dr Sharp ordere
mo away, for it was n child that ought not o be seen. J examined tt: I saw




TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW. 67

- o
round the shackle-lone and the fough (the wrist and the ankle) [36B.] T

mﬁaﬂ tu;ﬁhﬂr in one loop. The child’s body was then lying on the table near
the bed. I unloosed the cord, and took it off the child, and threw it down on the
floor. The child was as pretty a child as ever was born. The body was quite soft,
and there was nothing wrong with it. The rope was round one wrist and one leg;
I am quite sure of that. I saw the woman's privato parts. There was more blood
ing from them than there should have been. J saw a bandage on her arm where

m been bled. My deamghter, Helen Mair, took the garter off her leg, and put it en B
Jora I first saw the bandage when Dr Sharp was trying the forceps. Thero
wore o many people who called to see Mrs on the Sunday, but the room

was not erowded. She was fur from well that day.

HELEN MAIR or SLATER. C

I e wife of George Slater, Portknockie. T recollect the confinemeng of my
mﬂnt_hhw: Gnmminarﬁlfﬁr, which led to her death. I was in the bed with her
before Dr Sharp eame. He used instruments, but they did no good. The forceps
slipped very often. [He wuttered oaths when 1t slipped, and appeared to be in
passion. He sent to Cullen for more instruments. He also sent me for a pair of
shoemaker’s pincers. He was very rough with his patient; he shook her very much. I}
He broke down the child with what we would call an old poker. (Shown No. 53.) It
was with an instrument just like that. It was not with an instrument like seissors,
It was just a singls kit of iron, sharp at one end, and with a knob at the other. He
took hold of it with both hands, and used it with much forco, He gave very strong
blows with it, just like stabs. Dr Sharp bled Mrs Mair, and I gave Lim my garter to
bind round her arm after he had done so. ~ I saw him take two platefuls of blood from her
arm with the lancet. " I could not say at what time of night it was he bled her; butit
was after he had used all his instroments. Tt was after he had used the poker, and
after I had gone for the shoemaker’s pincers. Tt was after ho had bled her that ho
turned the child. He said he must turn the child in order to save the mother.
I saw the child's body a fow minutes after it was extracted, There was o cord about
its legs. My mother loosed the cord. The fead of the child was fo be seen when
D S]l]lﬂ; used the poker. I did not seo it. There was no appearance of the fcet of
the child at that time; the head was still presenting. There was o great deal of T
blood eoming from Mrs Mair's private parts.

Cross-examined—My husband is a fisherman at Portknockie. We have soven
children. T don't recollect when we wers married, T know Mrs Waood, the midwife.

I have not spoken to her about this matter farther than as it came up in conversa-
tion. Thave not been speaking to her about it since we came to Edinburgh, I
thought Dr Sharp was in a passion becauso his instruments slipped so often. I did
not thinlk that it was because there wero so many women in the room that he was
angry. Ithink it was the right arm from which he took the blood: but I can't bo
gure. The woman was not under the clothes when he turnod tho child. 7The card
that was on the child was round one of the wrists and one of the ankles, I could not say
whether it was one pieco of cord that was round both, or two pieces of cord, ono
round each. Dr Sharp tied it. Mrs Mair was always moving a little; she was
never quite under the chloroform, although she got a good deal of it; she never lost
her consciousness, but was always sensible of what was going on. I was in the house H
on the Sunday morning. There were not many people there.. I do not know
whether thera Were a great many people seeing her that day. She was not going on
well when I smw hér; she was Iyeﬂijagr weaker. Sho was sensible enough, although
she was not speaking much. I do not recollect when I first spoke to any one about
Dr Sharp baving bled the woman; but I have spoken about it often. I have gpoken
very little to Dr Wilson about this ease. T have not spoken to him abont it within
tho last week. Dr Wilson was tho last doctor I had, but I have had several doctors, I
Mrs Wood delivered me at my last confincment,

Re-examined—It was when Dr Wilson's agont spoke t0 me that I first began to

-
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A talk about this case, within the last year or two. Dr Wilson called o
3 2 - n
with his agent. _That was the first time I spoke to him about it, or he tﬁl amzl'ungi
have been speaking to my neighbours, of course, about the case,

Mrs ANN MAIR.

B_Iam the wife of John Mair, Fisherman, Portknockie, and have eight children.
I recollect the confinement of my brother's wife, Catherine Mair, on 19th December,
about ten years ago. I was called to her on the Thursday morning when she grew
ill. I"was the first. Mrs Wood came after me. She remained a short time, and
then went home. She was called back afterwards, and I remained for a considerable
time. She did not send for assistance till next day. She then sent for Dr Wilson,
or another doctor, but th;{ were not at home, and Dr Sharp was brought. He

O came just as the day was dawning on &.turdg morning, about eight or wine o'clock,
He warmed his hands at the fire, and then looked at the woman, My mother asked
what he thought of her, and he said he would deliver her in Jive minutes. He did
nothing to her for a few minutes, but then he commenced with his instruments.
He wrought with them for more than an hour, and then went away for about an
hour. My sister was obliged to go for him, because Mrs Mair was in such a state.
When he came back he used the forceps, but it always slipped. He went away

D again after this to a house at the head of the town, which we call George Wood's,
and John Mair went for him there. My sister Helen and my mother were also in
the house at this time. Margaret, Catherine’s sister, was also going in and out.
Dr Sharp, when he came back, sent to Cullen for what we call the dead irons, Ho
Baid the child was alive, but that he would be obliged to break itup in order to save
the mother. T said he should save her. T was in the bed at that time, keeping on
the chloroform with one hand, and keeping down the child with the other. I felt

E the child move. I saw him begin to break up the child. (Shown No. 53.) He
used an instrument just like that., I could only compare it to the thing that a butcher
sh his knives with. He did not use anything ke scissors. When he was breaking
E‘ the child, he held this instrument with both hands, setting his foot against the bed, and

it with great force. When he made the drive, the force drove the child up the
woman's breast, and I cried to him to let me out of the bed. After he had used
that instrument, he sent Mrs Slater for a pair of shoemaker’s mippers, and these

F were brought. My mother and I ordered him to send to Cullen for more assistance,
but he said the doetors there were as good as old wives. I wanted him to send for
Dr Carmichael, of Buckie, but he would not have him, He then bade my husband
‘go to Portsoy. My husband asked for his gig in which to go to Cullen. Dr Sharp
was not willing to give it, but my husband took it and went to Cullen. [ smo Dy
Sharp bleed the woman after he had used all these tnstruments. He then turned the
child, and then tied what we call a ‘line back,’ or piece of strong cord like this

G (producing cord) round the thigh and round the wrist. [t was just a piece of

ck fine. e dragged out the child by this cord, and delivered the woman. I
could not say whether both the leg and the arm were tied in one loop, but the cord
was round them both. After the child was extracted I got out of the bed; and when
I was looking for a bandage, my mother took off the string and laid it on the, table.
I took it up and put it into my pocket, to let them see it at home. It was a little
coloured. Dr Sharp did not get the line from any of us; J don't know where he got

Hit. He put the chloroform on a towel, and I kept it on the woman. When he was
breaking the child, I wanted to get out of the bed, for fear it would do me harm.
He said she was-too strong, and that was the reason he bled her. He kept her
down with chloroform ; but it did not keep her down sufficiently. He applied two
bottles of chloroform before the child was turned. When I wanted to get out of the
bed, he swore at me to stop there, and I had to stop. Mrs Mair was not sensible af
that time. When Mrs Wood was dressing the body of the child, she showed me the

I mark of a cord round the wrist, and blue marks on tho thighs, Mrs Mair, before
she died, asked me to examine her, and I saw that there were pieces out of her private
parts, caused by the strokes the doctor had given her in breaking down the child.  She
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askod me if T had ever seen any one in that state before. She did not say anything A
o canse of her death. 1
nb[f.}urﬁ:ah-emminaﬂ—I have been attended by Dr Wilson, Dr Sharp, and Dr
Carmichael. It was Dr Wilson who attended me last. He has been our doctor for
about twelve months, When Dr Sharp left, after working with Mrs Mair for an
hour, he went to George Wood's. Wood is a fisherman. 1 do not know what Dr
Sharp went there for. He did not tell me he was going there. Wood was not ill.
Dr Sharp remained about an hour away. We sent through the town for him, and B
found him there. Mrs Mair was in labour when he went away. He just said, as
he was going out, that if she grew worse he would deliver her. I did not see him
send for any instruments. He had his instruments with him in gray paper, with a
ket-handkerchief rolled round them. I think it was the right arm which he

opened when bleeding the woman. The wound was tied up with my sister Hl}l:an"ﬂ
garter. The woman lay quieter after the bleeding; she was not so stroug. The
turning of the child was the very last thing he did before pulling it out with the O
rope. There was only one string attached to the ankle and the wrist. I am sure
he swore at me when I wanted to get out of the bed. My assistance was necessary ;
and T wanted to go away. J{ heard him swear at times when the irons slipped; but
1 was paying little attention to that. The ankle on which there were marks was on
the same side of the child as the wrist on which there were marks. [ was in the
. house on the Sunday. There were very few people there. Mrs Mair was kept quite quiet
that day. She did not seem to be doing well that day; she was just dymg. I could D
not say whether the cord was attached to the wrist and the ankle cn the same side
of the child, but it was attached to a wrist and an ankle.

Re-examined—It was the forceps which Dr Sharp had with him wrapped up in a
paper parcel. He sent a boy to Cullen for a bottle of ehloroform, and for what we
call the dead irons.

B
Mgrs CATHERINE SINCLAIR or WILSON.

I am the wife of John Wilson, eooper, formerly of Seatown of Cullen, but now of
Glasgow. 1 was first confined on 17th March, 1860. Dr Sharp was then my
medical attendant. I felt him begin to use instruments. T was put under
chloroform, and I don’t know how long he continued to nse instruments. I could
not say whether he treated me roughly or not. There was a rupture. I don’t know F
whether it took place before or after the child was born. I came to Edinburgh to
have it treated. Before I left Cullen, Dr Sharp took me by the hands, and asked me
not to tell any person where I was going, or !ﬁar.ag had given me a letter, or the nature of
the injury to the parts—not even my own stster.

Dr CHARLES BELL. G

I am a physician and M.D. of the University of Glasgow, a Member of the Royal
Collega of Physicians, Edinburgh, and Vice-President of the Obstetrical Society. I
have had a considerable, but not very extensive, practice in obstetrics. I have
heard all the evidence which has been led in this case, on the part both of the
pursuer and of the defender. Before stating the opinion whioh I have formed with
regard to the individual casos brought under the consideration of the Court, I may H
be allowed to remark, that I feel a little delicacy in expressing my opinion on this
oceasion ; and I must sny that T think it would have been better for all concerned
if it had never come before the Court. It is, however, a very important case:; and 1
think its importance goes beyond the individuals more particularly concerned in it;
for it is of great moment that the correct prineiples of practice should be laid down
on this oceasion. I shall be very sorry if anything I have to say is contrary to what
Sir James Simpson or Dr Keiller would have said in the circumstances. I look I
upon them as men of high talent and great oxporience, and both of them most
successful toachers—perhaps more so than any others in the present day. Thero-
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A fﬂr:‘ 1[{: have gtrmi hasittal;im E T«tpﬁaaning my opinion where it differs from theirs ;
18 quite clear 10 me that their opinion was given u a hypotheti .
wtogether, and that hypothesis seems fo me to have Evasg:: WEF::&E{ in a mn:::;
 Wils sogaril 4o Sve T
1th regard to Mrs Longmore's case, I think there was malpractice. Thora w
not due care taken when Dr Sharp first saw the patient. He gid not make hiamﬁ
fully aware of the nature of her labour. Ho did not fully examine her on the first
D oceasion. He then left her; and we have no evidence, so far as I have heard—but [
shall bo glad to be corrected—that when he returned he examined her 4 second
time. Heo then, I think, committed an error in practice in proposing to apply the
forceps in what he said was a cross birth. He ﬁum’ a want of skill tn not delivering
the child after having applied the forceps. He appeared to me to commit a great error and
a malpractice in delivering the child by drawing at the eord which he had tied round its
legs, 1n place of adopting the more usual course of using traction gently upon the limbs
C themselves. 1 think there was a great want of skill displayed in tearing the parts of
the mother. I think it showed a want of skill in the application of the forceps, that
the blood should have flowed when he introduced the instruments. £ think he
showed a want of knowledge, according to our present ideas on the subject, when he said
that to ascertain the posifion of the child's head- was of no tmportance. It is of the
utmost immportance; and I hold that no man can apply the forceps, or any instruments
whatever, withont making himself fully acquainted with the position of the child;
D because it enables him to know in what direction to turn the head in making
traction. 1 think that he committed an error in practice in not ascertaining for
himself that the bowels were free, and that there was no aceumulation there, and
also that the bladder was not distended; and the only certain way of making that
known is by applying the catheter. It is nsual—I may almost say invariable—that
the acconchenr who uses the foreeps shall nse the catheter first, so that there shall bo
no chance of accumnulation in the bladder. If there is accumulation in the bladder,
E it will render the delivery more difficult and more dangerous to the mother; there-
fore I consider that he was wrong in trusting to the hearsay of the midwife on that
occasion. In making my remarks, I beg it to be distinctly understood that I have
no personal feeling whatever. J think that this case will not be confined to this narrow
locality, but it will be known in other parts of the country, and upon the prineiples which
are now eslablished may depend the lives of many im!iuijuaﬁu l?’hwfbm it is imporiant
that the proper practice—not my individual ideas of practice, but the proper principles of
r pmﬂice—s?om’ be fuirly explained. Then, further, I think it was an error to apply
the forceps, or to propose to apply the forceps, before the first stage of labour was
completed, unless—which does mot appear in his evidence—the parts were easily
dilatable, and could be readily distended by his hand—I mean the os uteri, I think
it was an error of practice—and it is contrary to the usnal prineiples laid down by
our best authorities—to apply the forceps before ascertaining that Nature was not
able to do her own work, It was formerly supposed absolutely necessary that the
@ head should rest for a certain number of hours, and that the pains should have con-
tinued regularly to return, before instruments were used. Now, that is not so
imperative; and many people say that you are to be gnided by ascertaining that the
head is actually locked or impacted in the pelvis and that the pains have had mo
effect for some time in advancing the head. It does not appear to me that on this
occasion Dr Sharp took the prc-phar means of ascertaining that. It is nsual, wh:cm a
medical man is going to apply the forceps, that he should sit down by the patient,
H watch- the pains, and apply his finger to the head of the child; and if he has an
accurate sense of touch he will be able to know if the head advances the twentieth
part of an inch. If the head is advancing ever so little, you are not justified in
applying the foreeps, because it is quite possible that Nature would be quite able to
finish the labour. It never does to interfere with Nature. We are only there to
assist Nature ; and where we go beyond mere assistance, we do wrong.
Next, with regard to the ease of Mrs Helen Spence or Geddes, I think it is unne-
I cessary to go over it in the same detail as the case of Mrs Longmore, beeause there
peemed to mo to bo there also the same want of attention on the part of Dr Sharp,
in order to make himself fully aequainted with the position of the child, and to pre-
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o woman for the operation befors he proceeded to operate, I think he showed A
E:ﬂrgttilmn’s of skill in sﬁnr:l:king the patient. Tho effect of that was to m ha?n :g
interrupt the regnlar return of the pains, and to change a simple case o urared
o fedions one. That appeared to me to be the natural resnlt. Then there appe
to me to have been great want of skill in applying the forceps. I never heard of any
one applying the foreeps, and it slipping eight times. I mnever heard of any one—
and I certainly think it is malpractice—persevering in applying the forceps for
two hours. 1 beg it to be distinotly understood, however, that in saying that g
I disapprove of instruments being used for two hours, I mean the repeated intro-
duction of the instrnments and their slipping, and the introduction of them
again. I do mot refer to the fact that the forecps may be introduced, and the
accoucheur wait for a pain to come before he uses traction. If there is no other
reason than merely to save time —if the woman is going on satisfactorily, if
there is no fever, no flooding, no excitement, no appearance of the child suffering
by the duration of the labour, no harm might arise from the forceps being left g
in the uterus for two hours, and traction being used on them from time to
time when the pains came on; but that is a totally different thing from repeated
application of the foreeps. If, ns has been represented, the forceps was wealk,
any man who had any regard for himself, or regard for his patient, would have
applied another forceps. He wonld have scen at once if it was too weak by its yield-
ing, and it is wrong to re-introduce a forceps when you find that it yields—unless,
indeed, there was some necessity, which, however, does not appear from the evidence py
given by Dr Sharp, for hurrying delivery. But even in that case, if he had not
another forceps with him or at home, he could have applied to some of his profes-
sional brethren: and I have such perfect confidence in the generons feeling of medical
men generally, that whatever were his feelings with regard to these men, or what-
aver was-the state of their friendship, I am sure that no ono would have refused to
supply him with his own forceps. Therefore I consider there was undue haste on
this oceasion. In this case also he stated—and I think it was an error, and shows
that there was a want of skill—that it was a first position of the child, and that the
Jface of the child was in the lollow of the saerwn.  In thoe first position the head of the
child is in the right sacro iliac synchondrosis, i is not in the hollow of the sacrum;
and the great object of ascertaining the position of the child early, is that you may
gently turn the head into the hollow of the sacrum, and thereby facilitate labour.
But he treats a Enowledyge of the position as of no tmportance; and it appears to me
that he has n?].eiﬁlpmfmt knowledge of the positions, otherwise he never would have p
said that the in the first position was in the hollow of the sacrnm. When the
face is in the hollow of the sacrum, it is nearly the last stage before the head is
delivered; and he might just as well say that the face in the second position was in
the hollow of the sacrum. The second position makes a more diffioult case. It adds
very much to the duration of labour, and the difficulty of natural delivery. But T
merely refer to the second position now for the purpose ofpointing out this, that yon
turn the head from left fo right in nsing the short foreeps. Therefore it was 3
important to know what position it was in. I think there was a want ef skill in
applying the instrunments in the long dinmeter of the child’s head, and not in the
{ransverse. By go doing, however powerful the instruments he had might have been,
they would have s:'t}:n}nﬁ. The forceps cannot be applied in that direction with suf-
ficient seeurity to enable 13'01: to withdraw the head, particularly with the shore
Jorceps. The long forceps is different, but the short forceps must always, if it is
aki]fu]llf applied, be applied in the short diameter of the head and over the ears. Had
he applied it over the cars, as seemed to have been the case in Dr Carmichael’s appli-
cation of the forceps, you wounld have had no injury on the forehead, parﬁcuﬁlg
not in the inner angle of the r:'%ﬁf eye. I do not care a bit abont the secar; it is of no
importance. It wonld have been a fearful scar, indead, if it were still perceptible
after twenty-six years, or whatever the time may be. Thera may have been a dee
cut, and still the sear may not bo very perceptible now. Indeed, eandidly, in look-
ing at tho woman's face, and feeling her head, nnless the bone had been injured as 1
woll as the skin, T do not think there would fi any great trace of the injury now.
But there was sufficiont evidence to show that the forcops was wrong applied.
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A There is no other explanation given inj :
could have beon dunluj, except l%y thei{mi;;ﬂ%m ﬂw;ﬁ“ t and tho foreliead
tumataahnwumntqf&i O apEhe S tept:, It Appoarod
nirfum,atumuﬁﬂ. 1d's head undor the
g0 next to the case of Mrs Cathoeri i i i
119::3, rﬁl: ;ﬁ!ﬂl neglect of preparing t.’t;-l;:!?;?;:q mdwﬁt;i:;:uﬂ; iq::'l pamthﬂ'cm o
cition belore nsing the forceps, just the same asin the S
B the same ground again, as L tiﬂink that a & : el oL ;’naeﬂ Lpranovar
cnse 08 to the two _rol'z;:lm-—-particuim-ly tﬁ‘;:%:u S“]?ar ufdtih;i“ oo fpy o W
acquainted with the woman's state before proposi E alte n?t{i mnku*hlmwlf oy
o great want of skill displayed in not being able to lggk the f T tlv:nk Slote s
forceps was applied at all and properly, he should h: b: e e i
did not and could not lock it, he shnllg.ild have madaw' Tl elok and_:f 2
with the reason why he could not do so. [ think ish::,n-c::ﬁ::j tﬁﬂﬁy EEE,T:}‘&
C disregard of all precedent in introducing the blades of the ﬁ:ﬂ dliri g o Of
course, I have the sanme objection to make with regard to hirﬁi3 1 e ﬁihpm‘n' tro
ments too hastily in this case, and that he has not hrniahe:ippu.sw':r%th HUEB i :.‘:-
reasons for having had reconrse to instrumental interference. He alac? hom:&.
great want of skill in breaking up the head of the child with a pak:e:- I do n:t I

whether it was with an old or a new poker; such an instrument was never mcnru
/ : ; of
in such eirenmstances before. Then, with regard to the next point, I am sorry to
Dgo glilpm-ently In opposition to Sir James Simpson, but T think there are some rr';frnt
which he overlooked when he looked at these pincers. He very properl ahnwalflﬂ m:

the picture of an instrument in a book which was somewhat sim.ilnrpi&n gut]jnu anjij;h
one side to the shoemaker’s pincers, but he overlooked the fact that in additio 5
there was a square shoulder on the other side with sharp edges. No doubt the mst-rt?’-
ment vepresented in the book was approved of by Sir James Simpson, although
even in regard to it there is no recorded experience. I do not prutend’ to doubt,
E however, that it may be a very useful instrument as represented in that book: but
it is very different jrom shoemakers' pincers. Theso pincers are so formed 88 to
have ¢ shoulder, as it were. Now, the natural consequence of introducing that
instrument into the vagina or private parts of the woman, and laying hold of
the child’s head, would be, that when it came down to the narrow passage it would
hook upon the private parts of the woman; and I think it may very well be supposed
to be the cause of the tearing of the flesh which was spoken of. Then, I think, thers
F was an error and a malpractice in having performed so important an npamﬁun as
eraniotomy without the proper instruments. That is one of the most serious operations
in midwifery. It is certain death to the fmetus, and may cause serious injury to the
woman. Itis an operation which seldom calls for haste; in short, it is a case in
which it is necessary to have a consultation. That was not done here, Perhaps that
may be looked upon as a moral error; but it was a decided and practical error not
to have had the proper instruments by him when he entered upon that operation.
G When he broke up the head he had no means hbeside him to extract it; and the
consequence was, that he simply broke up the head, and could do nothing mora
until he got the friendly aid of the cobbler’s forceps. In his evidence Dr Sharp
named over the instruments, and, if I am not very much mistaken, he implied that
he had them in his pocket. If so, why did he not nse them ? What was his reason
for adopting such an instrument as I see lying on the table (the old poker) in
preference to the admirably-adapted instrmment which he named himself, the
H eraniotomy perforator? Then if he had—as he named, in going over the list of
instruments required on that oceasion—the craniotomy forceps, why did he not use
it, which he could have done, without the least chance of injuring the patient’s
private parts? I think there was great want of skill in perforating the head with
any instrument whatever without guarding the woman's private parts with his hand.
It is the duty of an accoucheur on all oceasions, and there can be no departure from
it without malpractice, that in applying instruments, whether the forceps, which are
1 the smallest, or the perforator, which is the most serious, he should guard the
woman's parts by passing it along his hand, and, of course, with a certain amount
of force, but gently inserting it throngh the cranium. The idea of using the per-

il to propose breaking up the
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orator as a bayonet, and stabbing the head, is unprecedented. 1 am mot surprised A
{l.mf., in attempting to perform thrﬁ operation in that way, he might asoften stab the
woman's private parts as the child’s head. Then he mentioned that there was con-
siderable ossification of the head. If the head was strongly ossified, it would offer a
greater resistance to an instrument such as that, which has not a very sharp point;
but even although it had a sharp point; it would not go at once into the gkull, but
would glide off i, and go into the private parts of the woman. Therefore, I say, it
showed a great want of skill even to use that instrument (pointing to No. 53 of B
process.) It is possible that the mere circumstance of puncturing the head might
be done by it very easily, but not scientifically or safely; becaunse, if you will look
at that instroment you will see that it will make a small opening, and you will
require to repeat the blows, while you cannot be sure of hitting at the child’s head,
or that yon will put the instrument into the same hole, or even in the neighbour-
hood of it. Therefore, in nsing such an instrument as that, the inevitable conse-
quence was, that the patient must be injured; and I consequently think that it
showed a want of skill to attempt to perform thia very dangerous operation with
such an instrument, and without having a proper instrumént with which to perform
it. 'We are told, further, that it was absolutely necessary, to enable the child to be
delivered, that the woman should be bled, and that she was bled to the extent of
two soup platefuls. It is not stated that it was a small soup plate; and when you
consider that it was in the house of a person in the humbler ranks of society,

_ you may reasonably suppose that it was a big soup or broth plate—that, even of a D
medium size, is nsually capable of containing fifteen ounces; therefore, if he took,_
two soup ;la.bafu]s from this patient, he must have taken close upon thirty ounces of
bloed.  That was a decided malpractice under the circumstances. I think that
as it is unprecedented in the history of medical cases to bleed the patient after the
head of the child is perforated — I may be wrong, but I never met with a case
of the kind—so I question if there is any case on record where thirty ounces of
blood were taken from a woman ??er she had been so long in labour as to justify B
craniotomy, unless there was high vascular action, fever, swelling -:{ the parts, a
dread of comvulsions, or something else of that ki That was the only justi-
fication for bleeding, but we have none of these circumstances mentioned in
this ease. I think it was malpractice also—and I am going upon the evidence—
under the cirenmstances ¢o turn the child. I am quite aware that in many cases
where there is limited room in the pelvis, we are able to deliver the child by means
of turning, but that is done at an early stage of the Iabour. I don’t know that it is P
& common practice—it certainly never has come under my observation—to turn a
child after opening the head, becanse it generally happens that when the head is
opened you are able to deliver by other means, such as by eraniotomy foreeps, or
by the crotchet. I think it was malpractice—and certainly, go far as I know, quite
unprecedented—to tie an arm and a leg of the child, and then to drag at the cord in
order to deliver tho child. I think, under such circnmstances, it was impossible to
deliver the patient without great injury to her private parts, because you were (3
dragging through, by means of great force, which has been stated to have been
adopted on this occasion, a larger body than conld easily pass through the parts.
The forceps is never used where thers is a chance of injuring the soft parts
of the mother. We always, where the forceps is necessary, endeavour to pre-
pare the soft parts of the system of the mother for such an operation, (@) Is
1t malpractice for laceration or injury to the soft parts of the mother to ocenr
while craniotomy is being performed? (A.) A certain amount of bruising, a {
very slight abrasion, might take place; but I think the sort of injury that is more
generally done to the soft parts of the mother is bruising, and not tearing so as to
draw blood. () If the perinenm were Incerated, and if the wounds of the nature:
you have described took place either during tho time the forceps was being used,
or during the time the craniotomy instruments wore being used, would it matter
In your opinion, at what period the injury was inflicted ? DSA.) With regard to the
rupture of the perinenm, that might take ]?]ﬂm in very good practice, and it is very I
l;pt to take place even in the best operator's hands in certain circumstances, but it
8 ot very common to the extent of passing through the sphincter ani. Rupture of
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A the perinenm generally takes place at the moment of the extraction i
-In this cnse I think it could very easily be explained by the fact that gn ?ﬁﬁh;l“ﬂ;
doubled up, and delivered by means of the arm and leg being tied tegether ; and as
there must have been a certain amount of swelling after the manner in wﬂi@h tha
parts had been heated, the passage of a larger b throngh them must have
roquired a considerable amount of foree to bring the body throngh the passage
the mother. (Q.) Does it make any alteration, in your opinion, when I remind
B ipm: that the rupture of the sphincter ani occurred in tia case of Mrs Wilson and not
n the ease to which you are now speaking? (A.) It is true that in this case we have
no evidenco to show that there was any very cxtensive tearing of the perinenm ; but
we have decided evidence that there was great injury done to the external parts of
the mother by stabbing with the poker. 2.) Yon caleulated that there must have
bean about thirty ounces of blood taken Mrs Catherine Mair, would you still
be of opinion that it wns malpractice if a less quantity had been taken ? (4) I
C th}nk b :iiy xﬁt EE would ﬁﬁ een malpractice.

t is my decided opinion that the cases of Mrs Longmore, Mrs Helen Spence or
Geddes, and Mrs ]!rf[ﬁ:, were all treated unskilfully by Dr Sh.;.rp. Of murﬁaPaI have
given my own opinion; and I have laid down the general principles of practice.

Cross-examined—((J.) Do you think that the treatment by Dr Sharp in every
particular of these cases was wrong? (4.) Ido. (@) There was no part of his
treatment that was correct? (A.) There may have been some parts. Certainly it

D would have been a most extraordinary circumstance if he had committed an error
in every instance; but I say that his general practice in these cases was wrong, and
contrary to the usual Elg:bﬂm at the present day, or at any time during the last fifty
or a hundred years, 1 heard Sir James Simpson’s evidence, and I agree with his
opinions to a certain extent. I think, however, that he gave an opinion with regard
to the bleeding, when he was not aware of the eircumstances of the patient when she
was bled; and I am quite satisfied that had he been here now he would have given
E the same opinion as I have done. (@) Is there any other particular in which yon
differ from Sir James Simpson’s evidence? {113‘ I think the purport of my exami-
‘nation answers that question most clearly and distinetly, becanse I have gone over
the individual instances in which I consider there was ractice; and if Sir James
had heard all the evidence, I have no doubt he would have agreed with me. I
cannot particularise any points of difference just now, for I forget the l}mrhuulnr
things he said. T think the thing he approved of most was the shoemalker's pincers,
T but he approved of them without having properly examined them. (@) Did he not
take the pincers in his hands? (A4.) I don't . (@) You saw him? (4.) He
may have had them in hishands. (€.) What makes youn think he did not properly
examine them? (A.) Because I am safisfied that neither Sir James Simpson nor
any other man who understands the proper practice of midwifery wounld recommend
such an instrument to be introduced into the private parts of a woman. (@Q.) S
se he had no Detter instrument to use at the time? (A.) There was no necessity for
G huwrrying.  (€.) I am putting a hypothetical question—Sn am‘f he had no better
instrument to use than that, was he not justified in using 16?7 (4.) I don't think he
was, ([%} How soon could he have got a better instrument? (4.) He could have
grot one by sending to Cullen ; and, more than that, he said he had the instruments
in his pocket—at least he led me to believe so in giving his evidence. (1) Sup-
pose he had not the proper instruments in his pocket, and required to have sent to
Cullen for the proper instrument, when could he have got it? (4.) I don't know,
H for I never was at Cullen. (¢).) Then why do you say it was improper for him to
use the pincers when you don't know when he could have u;:;ifmp&r instrument?
(A.) He ought not to have ventured upon the gperation at he had tﬁw
instruments. (@Q.) Then you think he should have left the woman undelivered until
he had gone to Cullen for the proper instruments? (A.) Decidedly. (@Q.) Suppose
that in his opinion he could not have left her undelivered, what was he to do then?
(A.) I don’t know exactly the purport of this question, because he loft other patients
I undelivered in very similar eircumstances, () How do you know? (4.) Becauso
he stated that in the evidence. I am only going upon t!.m- evidence. (@Q.) What
other case was similar to Mrs Longmore's? (4.) I ﬁmk it was very similar to the
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oasp of the person whom he first attended. He left her repeatedly when she was in A
ns urgent F condition as Mrs Longmore. (@.) Then you think these fwo cases
were the eame? (4.) They were not the same certainly in point of presentation
and condition of the ehild, but they were the same in this, that no medjeal man
would have left Mrs Longmore under the circumstances that he represented her to
be in, in the way he did. Iam ;’lecidﬁy of opinion that nufpmm_m m::junt(lgo;i ]:1':;.
ing mpon an ation without proper means o orming 1. (Q
mfﬂﬂmﬁ' auglﬂn;.nj{;tﬂmy fu]_-cepu with Fﬂu? 4 f:dl.} ﬂmﬂy not; neither do B
I carry a foreeps, nor do I approve of any one o.a.rrgnng a forceps, because they may
be led to use it needlessly in order to save time. Suppose you were away oub
in the comntry, and could not deliver without your forceps, or had to perform the
operation of eraniotomy, and had nof your eraniotomy forceps, and it would require
an hour or two hours to send for them, would you not use the pmﬂerg? {A.E No, I
would not; I would rather have waited for one or two honrs, which, r the
circumstances, would have been of no consequence. (@.) But take a case where O
you could not wait ? (A4.) We must take the case we have in hand. (¢.) But take
f case where there was a necessity for immediate action, wounld you have used the
pincers? (4.) I don't think I would have done so. .
By the Lord Ordinary— Would you in any case whatseever have used the pincers
(Aé) In no case whatsoever would 1 have used these pincers,
ross-examination continned—I have never a case which has been under my
care from the beginning, which has ended fatally. Ihave been called in to such cases, I)
but I have never had one in my own practice. Sometimes the child has been dead-horn,
and sometimes it has died soon afterwards, but I have never had a fatal instrumental
‘case in my practice. I have used the forceps in about the same proportion of cases
a8 other medical men do; but where a case is well conducted by an experienced
~ medieal man from beginning to end, it is very rarely that you require to use the
forceps. I understand ome of the witnesses to say that the forceps had been used
eight times in ome case; but suppose it were not eight times, but only six or five B
times, that would make no difference in my opinion. I still disapprove of the
repeatad ?pl.iuut.iun of & forceps which was proved to be a useless instrument.
(f.{; Would you sanction two trials? (4.) Certainly. (@Q.) Or three? (4.) Not
if I had ascertained—which I would have done by the first application of the instru-
ment—that it was & weak and useless instrument. [t is contrary fo er rules
of practice to introduce the forceps into the uterus during a pain. (Q.) Is it con-
] to_practice to introduce it into the vagina? (A.) ﬁi:re is no olject for B
introducing it into the vagina. It is contrary to the usual rules of ice to intro-
duce it either into the uterus or the vagina during a pain. (().) Suppose the pain
comes on when you are using the forceps—what do you do then? (4.) Retract
it at once. %Q. How often would you apply it in that case? (4.) It would
depend entirely upon how the pains were. I would wait for an interval of the pain,
and if T found that the pains were frequent, I wounld wait until they were less fro-
quent, and I had the npportun.i‘lg of applying the forceps with safety to the mother, G
as as to the child. (Q.) ould you have applied the fo eight times in
that case? (A.) No; I don't think I should. (Q.) Six ﬁm_ﬂﬂg {j} No. (@)
Three times? (4.) No. {Qﬁ Twice? (A.) Certainly; I would have applied the
forceps a second time if I failed the first time in consequence of the pains being
resent; but I would take very good eare not to introduce the forceps again, except
ediately after a pain, when, generally speaking, I would have plenty of time to
apply the foreeps before another came on. (6L} May a child come doubled up, H
arm and leg, through any pelvis? (4.) Yes; but certainly no experienced medical
man would draw it throngh doubled u%‘ arm and leg, unless sometimes when the child
has been a long time in the birth. There have been instances of laying hold of it
and it coming down in that way. It is made to come down by the force of the
uterus, which is called natural evolution or spontaneous evolution, or by the spon-
taneous expulsion of the uterns. (Q.mhat do you mean by spontaneous expnl-
sion? (A.) It is the delivery of the child by the natural contractions of the nterus, I
unaided by external forco. _({;l.% What is the difference between spontaneous expnl-
sion and spontaneous evolution (4.) You may have spontaneous expulsion of the
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A child in the natural position; but in a eross birth, when the labonr has been tedious
you may have what is called spontaneous evolution. The child turns upon itsolf
doubled up by the powers of the uterus, and is expelled. (Q.) Is it assisted by the
medical sman? g..{l.) It may be, and properly too. (Q.) Does the medical man
assist in a case of spontaneons axpu]niml:‘i’w («4.) That is a case which very rarely
occurs. It does oceur where people are delivered without being aware of it, and
there are instances of children being born after death. (().) By spontaneous expul-

B sion? (4.) By contraction of the nterns. ((.) By spontancous expulsion without
medical assistance? (A.) Yes. (Q.) In what position was the child, unless it was
in the first position when its face was in the hollow of the sacrum? (A.) It was in
another of the positions. There are only four positions recognised by the prac-
titioners of this country. If you were to take Baundeloque's arrangement that would
be the fifth or the sixth presentation; but we do not recognise that position here,
I think he makes out six presentations. (@.) Do doctors differ as to how many

C positions the child may be in? (A4.) Not in this country. (@.) Do the doctors in
this country differ from doctors in foreign countries? (4.) To a certain extent.
We do not admit the position of the child being turned either into the sacrum or into
the os pubis, except as the child is passing through the pelvis, when the face natu-
rally is twrned into the hollow of the sacrum. But that is not the first position.
(@.) In what position was the child unless it was in the first position when its face
was towards the hollow of the sacrum? (A.) That is a very natural position when

D labour is far advanced. {Q.; Which position was it—the firat, second, third, or fourth?

A.) It was in neither of these positions if its face was in the hollow of the sacrum.

@.) How can a medical man who is called in to a woman in labour satisfy himself as
to the length of time she has been in labour except from information given to him
by others? (A.) I do not think he can do so, except from hearsay evidence. (@
You allow hearsay evidence, then, in certain cases? (4.) Certainly. How shoul
you know a woman was in labour at all—how should you know that labour had

E actually commenced—nunless you trusted to a woman saying, ‘I have got pains?’
That is all hearsay evidence. (().) And in examining into the comdition of a
woman to whom you have been ealled, do you not sometimes trust to the statements
of her friends as to her position? (A.) No. DBefore operating, I would satisfy my-
self as to her condition. I would trust neither to the nurse nor to the patient to
tell me that the bladder was empty. I dom’t think it is a safe practice, because
there is mothing more common than for a patient to say, *Oh, sir, I have been

F making a great deal of water,” when not a drop has been passing. The water is
gimply the lignor amnii passing off during a pain; while the bladder is being
distended with urine, and yon only ascertain that by carefnl examination, and
subsequently by introducing the catheter. ((J.) Would not binding a child by the
arm and leg be a more difficult operation than extracting it by the head. (4.) I
should think so; but that is a thing I have never had any experience of, and
I trust never may. ms.l% If a child could not be delivered by means of the forceps,

G is it likely that it ¢ dragged through a contracted pelvis by the arm and tho
leg in a doubled-up position? (A4.) Perfectly. (€.) Quite easily, I suppose?

,E,:] Yes; but in such a case as this you must take the evidence along with you.
this case the head was resting on the perineum, showing that the head had

d through the pelvis. The head is not represented as being larger than
natural ; it had passed through the ‘Eelvis, which was said to be 1:111:|1;1,;r three inches,
and had rested on the perineum. (@) Of what case are you speaking? (_;d.} Of

H that case in which it was doubled up.  (€).) Was it not a contracted brim? (4.)
Tt is not proved so on the evidence, and for this simple reason, that had it been a
narrow, contracted brim, the head of a full-grown child not have pnm,d
through it; but you have distinet evidence to show you that the full-grown child's
head was resting upon the dpm'ﬂeum. Under these circumstances, I think it is
possible to deliver a child doubled up, without great injury to the mother, bug only
by the exertion of very great force.
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Dr JAMES PATERSON.

of a physician’s degree and a surgeon’s diploma, and I lacturad A
furI ﬁnﬁaﬁﬂm Eﬁ};:uiﬂwifury in the Andersonian University, Glasgow. My
principal practice is in midwifery cases, but I have a very good general practice. I
have heard the evidence now given by Dr Bell, and I coneur in it to a great extent.

I think that, as a whole, Dr Bell has given a most talented and fair description
of what any ordinary medical man would have done under the eircnmstances which
have been explained to us. I rather differ from him on one ]icmt, with regard to
the child being brought through so easily when doubled up. I cannot comprehend B
that, because in this ease, more especially, we were told by Dr Sharp that he
‘examined and found the brim of the pelvis only three inches in the antero-posterior
dinmeter. Now, I cannot comprehend how a child could be brought through that
space at the full time, with the head fully ossified. That, I may say, is the omly
point on which I differ particularly from Dr Bell; with the description that he has
given, I am perfectly satisfied. But I would take a different view of Mrs Long-
more’s case with regard fo my objections to the practice followed. The evidence, O
more especially the medical evidence, was exceedingly conflicting. Dr Sharp swears
distinetly that when he applied the first blade of his foreeps the head of the child
receded, and he infers from that, very naturally, that the unterus was ruptured. It
is precisely what I wounld have expected on using the forceps in such eircumstances,
becanse, if the nterus was ruptured, then there can be no doubt whatever that the
child would recede when the forceps was applied to the head, especially when he
commenced to lock it, and the resistance was encountered. In saying that, Iam D
following Dr Sharp's own evidence, because I am guided in my medical opinion
golely by his statements, taking them for granted. But I cannot help saying that
I dispute their truth, as I shall prove by the evidence of Dr Carmichael, and of other
witnesses who appeared in the case.

With regard to Mra Longmore's ease, we have it satisfactorily ascertained, at all
events, that there could be no pelvic deformity, for she had given birth previously
to several children, naturally, eafely, and well. Now, I am not aware, from the his- B
tory of the case as given in the evidence, that there were any symptoms of rupture
of the uterns previons to the infroduction of the blade of the forceps. Dr Eh&.rp
declared that the pains were gone, or all but gone. The patient was almost mori-
bund, or in articulo moréis. If that was the case, then extensive rupture must have
taken place before he entered the house. Dr Sharp, even after the inspection of the
body, says that the head of the child was out of the uterine cavity and into the
abdominal. Now, I agree most thoroughly with the remarks of Professor Sir James F
Stmpson with regard to the causes of rupture of the uterus. He explained them most
satisfactorily and most scientifically; but when I take into consideration that Sir James
Simpson said any man making the post mortem examination could not fail to observe this

ture of the uterus, I agree most thoroughly with that declaration. Now, granting that

this been the case, the patient was in the last stage of exhaustion, according to
Dr Sharp’s own declaration; and I cannot see what principle of practice or
propriety he had recourse to the operation of turning under such circumstances. The G
woman was exhausted almost to the point of death; and I should have considered it
much better, and far more like the practice he should have ﬂr&d on this occasion, to
have seated fimself calmly by the bedside, and to have watched the patient sink by the
hand of Nature, and not to have been himself’ the instrument o lurrying her to her long
home.  Now, to depart from that, I will talse Dr Carmichael’s view of the case. Ho
came within twenty minutes of the decease of the individual. He saw that the case
was utterly and perfectly hopeless, and he most judiciously refused to interfore. I H
se¢ no step for him but the one he adopted. Well, he proposes—although I must
confess that T do not see upon what principle—to perform the Caesarian section with
the view of saving the child. With that we have nothing to do, for it was impos-
sible to save the woman in the circumstances. But he tells us distinctly that in
gpening the cavity of the abdomen, he found that the child was not out of the uterina
cavity, and was not in the abdominal cavity. Now, I cannot, as o medical man, and as

1
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Aan obstetrician who has devoted considerable attention to tho subject, reconcile
these two things. Iam bound, however, to believe Dr Carmichael, for I must BaY
it is dmpossible I can take the statements of Dr Sharp. The ones was obliged almost
to form that theory in order to bear out his views, He had before that sed
an opinion that the uterus was ruptured ; and he eays, ‘You will find that the
uterus is ruptured if you make your inspection.’ Dr Carmichael makes tho
inspection, and finds no such thing. 1 am therefore bound to believe that the uterns

B was not ruptured ; and in these circnmstances I think it was guite within Dr
:Eh.u;p’a power to have delivered the woman by the natural passnges g the aid of
the forceps. Thantamnnutbaingmpmmﬂ—aaitcnn]dmtha,u aa.g;

must have seen it—it was pm.]ly impossible for the child’s head to
escape out of the ulerine cavity into the inal; and when he applied his forceps,
he would have found no di ulty whatever, provided he applied dt praperly, in
securing the head in the right manner, by carrying the blades over the sides of the

Ohead, as described by Dr Bell, and if he got it properly introduced and ¥
locked—and he had no right to try to extract with it until it was properly locked—
the head of the child would then be dovetailed within the blades of the instrument,
and it eould not by almost any possibility have slipped, if the instrument was any-
thing like the thing at all. I agree very much with Dr Bell in his remarks upen
the fact that the forceps slipped so frequently. It strikes me that Dr Sharp said
his forceps was toe weak, or afall events it not sufficient resisting power. I

‘D think with Dr Bell that he was quite entitled to try it a second time; but beyond
that T cannot see how he was at all entitled to persist with the same foreeps which
he had found to be perfectly imuiegawa to accomplish the delivery.

With regard to the case of Mrs Geddes, that is a very singular case indeed. The
presentation is natural. Eyerything is going on just as well as we could naturally
expect it. The midwife says there is no danger. She is perfectly satisfied with
the history and the progress of the case, only it was slow. Every medical man of

E experience must have met with hundreds of cases where the labour turns out slow,
in consequence of the wealkness of the pains, the deficiency of what we call proper
uterine action. This may occur without any hazard to the patient. Itisa very
common circumstance ; I belipve there is hardly anything that annoys us more as
medical practitioners than the lingering nature of labour, arising from n deficiency
of uterine action. At the same time, that does not imply that there is any
imminent danger to the mother. It only requires pationce and trust in the natural

¥ powers; and 1 will go upon this, which may be laid down as an axiom in mid-
wifery, that natural delivery is both hetter and safer than artificial deliver r, how-
ever well or skilfully that artificial delivery may be performed. Now, I think the

in this case was quite uncalled for; and, indeed, I am almost of opinion, in the
first case, that of Mrs Longmore, that ha®l it been left wholly to old Dame Nature—
one of our best and most experienced accoucheurs—the case might have terminated
well and satisfactorily. T feel very much my high responsibility when I yenture

G that opinion against a professional brother; but, under all the circumstances of the
ease, with the evidence so clearly brought out and so well established, I cannot help
wriving at the conclusion—that if he had simply left Nature alone ehe would have
done the work wisely and well. With regard to the application of the foreeps to the
child in the different positions, this, to a certain extent, is professional quibbling.
At the same time, I perfectly agree with Dr Bell that before you are warranted in
using instrumental means to accomplish delivery, you are bound to make yourself

H thoroughly acquainted with the nature of the sentation; and I must confess it
struck me as very astonishing indeed, when to-day Dr Sharp said it was a matter ¢
Bittle moment what the presentation was. God forbid that any practitioner following
obstetric part of our profession should cherish such an tdeal .

With regard to the management of that unfortunate ease of Mrs Mair, I dare
scarcely trust myself to advert to it. I have no hesitation in saying, that a grosser
case of mismanagement never came to my knowledge. T have been nearly thirty-five

I yoars in tice. I have delivered, I believe, nearly 5000 women, and
althongh I am sorry to say I have not been so successful as my friend Dr Bell in
avoiding deaths, yet the fatal cases in my practice bave been very few, compara-
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tively speaking—1I think about one in a thousand; buf after all the experienco LA
hn?ﬁyhm], and judging fairly and honestly of the various evidence I have listened to
gince yesterday morning, I must arrive at the conclusion that there was vast
aniount of malpractice, and euch as, I think, no well-informed medical man

tolorate. In making these very strong remarks, I am quite aware that they may ba
taken as militating to a certain extent against the very profound and judicious
remarks of Sir James Simpson; but I am of opinion that if Sir James had not been .
put into the witness-box until he had heard evidence which has heen disclosed B
to-day, his judgment would have been a very different one indeed; and I believe in
my heart and soul, that if, after having heard that evidence, the question had been
put to him, #Sir James, would you consider that, under these clmumstamaja, &
practitioner wonld have acted wisely and well, who did as Dr Sharp has done?” he
would have answered én the negative. : :

As to the case of Mrs Wilson, T am perfectly willing to admit, as Sir James
Simpson admitted, that laceration of the perineum is not an infrequent ocourrence o
even under tho best management. At the same time I must say that in all my

ience, with the exception of one case, I never met with such an extensive
Inceration as is stated to have ocourred here. The case to which I have reforred as
the only exception happened in the delivery of & woman by & very bungling
operator in New York, The woman came to this country to get advice, and she
consulted me. 1 found the perineum lacerated in precisely the way ns was described
here. She underwent a suitable operation, and left this country perfectly cured.D
That is the only case of extonsive laceration that has ever come under my notico.
I admit that even under the best management, and with the greatest care, there
may be a partial laceration of the perineum, but nothing like such an extensive
destruction or lesion of parts as we heard deseribed here.

These are all'the remarks that ccenr to me on the varions eases ; and I have only
further to say, as Sir James Simpson said, that it was exceedingly against my will
that I have appeared in this Court to give evidence against a professional brother. I

_Cross-examined—( () What were the additional facts that Sir James Simpson
did not hear? (A.) The whole evidence of malpractice was only brought out
to-day. (Q.) But what are the important facts that yon found upen? (d.) The
too hasty resort to instrumental aid, the unskilful use of the instruments, and tho
unskilful management of the cases generally. (EQ.) What are the particolar facts
which you think would have altered Sir James Simpson’s opinion if he had heard
them ? {A.g I think I may condescend upon two—first, the abstraction of two soup-I
ﬁgﬂfsy“ m Mrs Mair, with respect to whom Dr Sharp swore that he never

her at all. The second fact 1s the application of a piece of cord round the ley and
arin of the child for the purpose of effecting delivery. 1 am satisfied Bir James
w have said that that was improper conduct, I might specify more, but these are
the most important facts that I think would have alteved Sir James's opinion, I
heard Dr Keiller describe Mrs Wilson's case. (§).) Do yon differ from him? (4.)
Dr Keiller did not hear how the accident arose. (@) But do you differ from himn G
in anything he said? (A.) No, I do not particularly. (@.) Are yon the Dr
Paterson who gave evidence here in Dr Pritchard’s trinl? (4.) Unfortunately
I am. ‘l:@'-} Is the speech you have made to ns to-day a part of any lecture yon
have givon at the Andersonian University ? (4.) I do not recollect of having ever
bad to lecture on such a subject at the Andersonian University.

Re-examined—(Q.) Was not the fact qumdﬂw he had used the craniotonmy
orceps another point wﬁm’t&zﬁu think would have d S Janes .Sfmp,gm’; opinion? H
(A.) Yes; but I thought the two sufficient. (Q.) Are not all tho pointa relied upon
by Dr Bell points that would have influenced Siv James in altering his opinion ?
(4:1.)1'1[_:11:1 sure thoy would have altered his opinion? (().) Theso are the points
on which you rely ¢ (4.) They are some of the most prominent,
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Dr JOHN CHRISTIE,

A Tama Member of the Royal College of Surgeons of a Fellow of
of Surgeons of Edinburgh, and a Gr&ﬂ':i%ﬁ of Maﬂilzﬁnhi?lﬂ}shu Un:iwrm‘t;lﬁ
n. Idonot possess any special midwifery diploma. I have been in prac-
tice in Aberdeen since 1839, and have had a large practice in midwifery during that
time. I devoted myself specially to that department when I commenced practice,
I have heard the evidence of Dr Bell and Dr Paterson, and coneur in the remarks
they have made. There are just one or two points on which I would like to express
Bmy opinion. With reference to Mrs Longmore's case, Dr Sharp, on being asked with
regard to the positions, seemed to treat a knowledge of the position of the child presenti
as trifling matter. He did the very same thing with reference to Mys s
case. tmpression from that is, that the man who holds a ledge of the position
of the child at the moment that he is to use the instruments for the purpose of delivering
to be of no moment, carries in his hand an instrument which is more likely to end in injury
to both mother and child than in any bensficial result. I merely say that in corroboration
ﬂ%ﬂee opinions stated by Dr Bell and Dr Paterson. Then, as to Mrs Mair's case,
Sharp stated to that when he arrived there he found the head impacted at the
brim of !ﬁa’fefvis. ow, if the head at the time he arrived was so impacted, the mﬁ’v
operation which he ought to have attempted in the first instance was craniotomy. He
ought to have taken to that at once. There was nothing but mischief, nothing but death
could have resulted from the attempt to apply the forceps, as it was brought out by the
witnesses to-day; but I must say that I cannot Mwm evidence of Dr Sharp in this
D case. We have undoubted evidence that the head was already resting on the perineum;
and we have undoubted evidence that after failing in his attempts with the , with
the head at the lower part of the pelvis, he then perforated the head by this cylindrical
snstrument, and had recourse to the shoemaker's pincers; whereas Dr Sharp stated yester-
that he turned the child first before pmceacim? to perforate, and that he perforated
ind the ear, if I recollect rightly. Now this cylindrical instrument is a very rude and
a very tmproper one, if he used anything like it. Stifl I could conceive it possible to per-
E forate the head with 1t in the hands of a skilful man without any other instrument, and in
some extraordinary exigency which I could imagine; but to imagine him getting
anto the head with such an instrument, and to apply the pincers for any practical pwpgm
1 hold to be utterly impossible. In Dy Sharp's evidence to-day, he said the head remai
above the brim of fhgfw!mb. He does not succeed in bringing the head #hrough the con-
tracted part of the pelvis, but he has turned the clild; the head lies above the brim of the
pelvis, the of the child is occupying the ﬂme space of the pelvis, and this instrument,
F which I measured yesterday—the one which Dr Sharp Ramself specially approved of—had
a breadth of between two and a half and three inches. If you are to add that to the
mass of the child's body in the cavity of the pelvis, there is nothing but violence of the most
extraordinary description which could have thrust it there; and after having got it into
the pelvis, it was utterly impossible to seize the head by that instrument. I am there
bound to believe, according to the evidence to-day, that Dr S&ﬁf perforated the head
whilst it was low down, before turning, and not in the situation where he represents that
G he did it. Such an instrument carried deep into the body of the mother, alongside the
mass of the elild, must have been attended with wolence of the extremest description, and
of the most dangerous character to the woman. If words of mine could add any intensity
to the fecling expressed by the other gentlemen, with regard to the nature of the majprac-
tice, I most assurediy would use them. I think that the annals of midwifery contain few
grosser cases of malpractice.
Counsel for deferder puts in No. 53 of process.
Defender's case closed.
Certified. ~ W. PENNEY.
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-A.EERJJEEN, DANFF, AND KINCARDINE PEOPLES JOURNAL.

[Saturday, June 1st, 1867.]

A DISPUTE BETWEEN DOCTOLRS.

y “doctors differ” Las been strikingly illustrated during the past
waflliuhirwj. E:LEE in the Cowrt of Session. The actien is for £1000 damages for
lefamation—the pursner being Dr Hugh Sharp, and the defender Mr James Wilson,
both medical practitioners at Cullen, in Aberdecnshire. It seems that, in 1864, a
‘woman in that district was taken suddenly ill, and Ler usual m&dmu.l_ attendant (Dr
Greig, of Portsoy) being indisposed, Dr Ehnz[: was .cffl'ifsd to her assistance, ter
an illness of ten days, she was aafely delivered of a child. FBut- nl'tu:l: this cconrrenco
Dir Wilson wrote to Dr Greig, at Portsoy, a letter, expressing astonishment that Dr
Sharp should have ever been engaged as his substitute on the occasion, and reflect-
ing on the professional qualifications of Dr Sharp. In particular, he stated, in
reference to a certain operation, that he (Dr 5,) “had no more idea of how to do it
than a child ; ® and, as if fo give weight to the asscrtion, he mentioned in the letter
certain other eases in which he said the patients had been wrongly treated. This
reached the ears of the pursuer (Dr 8.), who immediately raised the action,
alleging that that was only part and parcel of a long series of persecutions which he
had experienced at the hands of Dr\W. ever since he came to the p:m-lsh. Amongst
the witnesses for the pursucr are Professor Sir J. Y. Simpson, tho highest authbrity
in Scotland ; Dr Keiller, and others, who justify the practice adopted by the pursuer ;
while, on the defender's side, there were Dr Paterson, who figured so conspicuously
in eonnection with the Pritchand case; Dr Bell, Edinburgh, and Dr Christie, of
Aberdeen, &e, who condemn the pursuer's practice in strong terms. The case
seemed to have its origin in a professional -jealousy between two competing practi-
tioners in the same parish, but it involves a point, the decision on which is looked
forward to with no little curiosity by members of both the legal and the medical
profession.—Edinburgh Correspondent of Tnvernees Advertiser,

SHARP VERSUS WILSON.

o the Editor of the People’s Journal.

Sity—I obsorved, in your last week's Jowrnal, o paragraph, headed A Disputa

botween Doctoss,” and quoted from the Edinburgh correspondent of the Jnverness
Advertiser. Now, as the Tnverness Advertiser is not civeulated in this district, and
o8 the People's Journal is rend at almost every fireside in the county, I think I may
bo justy allowed a space in it to express my ideas regarding the paragraph just
refesred to, it being, on the whele, caleulated to convey to the minds of your readers
A most erroneous idea of certain facts. The paragraph professes to give a brief
account of an action of damages, in which I am defender, which has been ¥aised in
the Court of Bession by another practitioner: and I deem it my imperative duty to
contradiot certain statements made in the paragraph, and to offer a few remarks of
'ax&a‘!unnbion as to the leading features of the case.
- The Edinburgh correspondent of the Jnverness Advertiser, in his bungling and
ineorrect paragraph, says that “amongst the witnesses for the pursuer are Professox
Sir James Y. Simpson, the highest authority in Scotland; Dr Keiller, and others,
who justify the practice adopted by the pursner ; while on the defender’s side there
were Dr Paterson, who figured so conspicnously in the Pritchard case: Dr Bel,
Edinburgh ; and Dr Christie, of Aberdeen, &c., who condemn the pursuer's practico
in strong terms.” Now, it is only proper to state, for the information of all who may
have seen this paragraph, that *Sir J. Y. Simpson, Dr Keiller, and others,” never
lnew or heard of the practice adopled by the pursuer, as sworn to in the Court of
ession, before Lord Kinloch, on Friday, 17th May last.

The Edinburgh correspondent of the Znverness Advertiser further gays that “the
‘case ecems to bave had its ovginin a professionnl jenlonsy between two competing
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practitioners in the same pavish." This may be true ; bub if that jealonsy has been
aroused by my success in obtaining private practice and roceiving parochial appoin:-
ments formerly enjoyed by another, I cannot be held in any way blameable for it.
i never asked any one to employ me, and turn the eold shoulder on other praeti-
1GNera.

~ As to the case itself, the publie will soon be able to judge who is right and who
is wrong, as I believe a full veport of the evidence is to be published in the form of
o pamphlet. The case was of so extraovdinary a character, that I feel proud of
having written the letter npon which the action of damages has been founded, as by
s0 doing I have been instrumental in bringing to light what I considered most dan-
gerous medical practice.—I am, yours, &c.,

*  James Wsoy, LF.PSG,
Parochial Medical Officer and Public Vaceinator to
the Parishea of Cullen and Desklord,
Cullen, 3d June, 1867,

CucrLex, 194 June, 1867.

My Dear Sir,—As I know you enjoy a good laugh, I send you an exact copy of a
very singular announcement, the production of my learned friend, the pursuer,
which appeared in two shop windows in Cullen during part of the day on Tuesday
lastes Mr Strachan, saddler, and My James Grant, shopkeeper, were tho exhibitors
of this talented effusion I now send yon. What a pity I have not the criginal—the
handwriting is quite a treat of itself. I write il as regards capitals and punctuation
exactly us the original appeaved.

- (Copy.)

Dy Charles Bell of Edinburgh

Dr James Paterson of Glasgow (of Pritchard case famo)

Dr John Christie of Aberdeen

Ao to be tried by the Medical professicn for

having given false evidence on oath!!!

Before Lord Kinloch on May 17th 1367. :
(Signed) Hugh Shap AMMRCS E

Cullen June 18th 1867

Surely the man’s head must have been in a very strange position when he wrote this
announcement. Hoping to hear from yon soon,

I am,
My dear Sir,
Yours truly,
Dr Paterson, 6 Windsor Place, Glasgow. James WiLSON.
¢ 6 Winpson PLACE,

Grascow, 21st June, 1867.

My Dear 8it,—I am in receipt of your favour of the 19th inst,, containing the very
gilly and foolish production of your talented friend, Sharp, who, in addition to his
‘other degrees, ought, by all means, to have the lotters 1{.P. annexed to his name,
- which would indicate Knight of the Pincers or Poker. It is 50 yery contemptible,
and proceeds from such a source, that it is really not worth minding. At the same
time, thera can be no doubt that it is strictly libellous and, moreover, every shop-
keeper who had the bad taste to display it can be brought in for an equal share of
the crime and its consequences. It is well that Dr Bell, Dr Christie, aud I can quite
afford to smile at the insignificant, though venomous and wicked, effusion of this
downright and characteristic blockhead ; and I am sure they will agree with me in
saying that Sharp is a man, or rather a fool, not worth spending powder upon.
‘am both astonished and disappointed you have not yet got a verdict in your favour
before this date. I do most sincerely sympathise with you in all the circumstances
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THE LANCET;
A JOURNAL OF BRITIEH AND FOREIGN MEDICINE, PHYSIOLOGY, SURGERY,
CrnearistrY, CRITIOISM, LITERATURE AND NEWS,

[Loxnox, Saturdaey, August 8d, 1867.]

Smane v, Winsox.

Our Edinburgh eorvespondent has sent us a detailed aceount of the trial in the
case of Sharp v, Wilson, which was noticed in the Lancet of June 22d as having
croated a good deal of excitement in Edinburgh. The demand upoen our space for-
hids our giving this week more than the result of the trial before the Lord Ordinary
Kinloch, who decided that the defender had failed to establish that the pursuer was
guilty of malpractice, and had libelled the pursuer in such terms as to render him
liable in damages, which were fixed at £50, with court expenses. This decision has
given general satisfaction to the profession in Edinburgh.

Sane v, Wingow.
To the Iditor of the Lancet,

Sir,—Will you allow me, through your columns, to ask of the Edinburgh corres-
pondent his authority for stating that the decision in our Court of Session case, as
ronounced by Lord Kinloch, had given general satisinction to the profession in
Cdinburgh ?
I am,
S,
Yours, &ec.,
Janmes Winsoy, LLEP.S.G, & L.AL, Defender.,
Cullen, N.B,, 7th Sipt., 1867.

CuoriexN, 12th July, 1867,

My Dear Sir,—The famous pincers newly introduced into the catalogue of mid-
wifery instruments by a practitioner from the far North, and approved of by some of
the savans of the modern Athens, was unfortunately lost for some time. I employed
a4 man a whole day to visit every shoemaker’s shop, also all the pawnbroker’s offices,
both in the High Street and Cannongate, in the hopes of getting a pincers similar to
the one brought from Portnockie, and used by the pursuer as a craniotomy forceps,
but T was unsuecessful. These pincers ave numbered. In Edinburgh I find num-
bers 3 and 4 most in use, which are much smaller, and less formidable-loocking
weapons than number 5. After a good deal of trouble, however, I am happy to
state the identical pineers, number 5, which belongs to Robert Forbes, at one fime
journeyman shoemaker to William Wood, shoemaker, Portknockie, was found in
Adair’s Hotel, High Street, Edinburgh, and which I have now the pleasure of send-
ing you along with an ordinary Portnockie poker and picce of line back. As you
expressed a wish that you would like to exhibit such ap}mmtus to the Obstetrical
Society, and also find for them a place in the Museum, hm'u.mnc:h pleasure in
now forwarding them, making bold to say that they will stand unrivalled. 1.531. James
in his evidence very sagely remarked that “ when one 1s driven to his wit's ends, ho
is very glad to get anything.” Had I been in the pursuer’s place, and driven to my
wit's ends, I would have immediately used a tongs, which is always to be found at
the fiveside of the poorest man. By introducinga common kitchen or parlonr tongs,
the oval-shaped blades guided along the groove between the index and middle
fingers into the uterus, little harm could be produced to the soft parts, and as much
tractive power might be exercised on the child’s head as could possibly be effected

by the pincers.I now gond yon. As, no doubf, yon are aware n pincers is used for
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Ya purpose of strotehing: the square shoulder is made to rest on the Eust, which
i';:nis tI[:u fulerum, the uai;per ]e;lngher is then seized by the blades of the pincers, and
strotehed as desired. The pincers is not used for pulling out nails or m?ks, as somo
suppose ; in fact, the pincers cannot be used for any practical or mac_hamcul purpose
whatsoever, unless a fulerum can be obtained. The pincers which the pursuer
ghowed in court was & number 2 pincers. The paker is one of the ordinary kind,
soen at the fiveside of every fisherman here; and the line back is made of strong
hemp, and quite capable of suspending a weight of 10 or 12 stones. I hope I havo
been sufficiently explicit in my description of the apparatus forwarded, which I am
to have lithographed for the benefit of aspiring accoucheuvs.

Iam,
My Dear Sir,
Yours traly,
Janes WiLsod,
T Chavles Bell,
28 Northumberland Street, Edinburgl,

28 NORTHUMBERLAND STREET,
EpixsuraH, 15th July, 1867.

My Doar Sirv,—I beg leave to acknowledge the receipt of your letter, and to
thank you for sending me the pincers, poker, and cord, which came in time to enabla
me to exhibit thom to the Obstetric Society. Iregret, however, that the subject of your
case was not discussed in the style I expected, for, in place of entering on the ob-
stetric view, the time of the meeting, after I read my paper, was oceupied with
reading the Lovd Ordinary's decision, and criticising the eredibility of your witnesses
which was entirely dishbelieved, in consequence of a letter which had been received
from the pursuer, who represents that all of them have denied the truth of their
evidence given before the Court. Is this the case? Not supposing for a moment
that such a statement was likely to be made, and far less that the people were so
unprineipled to act in this manner, I was a good deal surprised, more especially as I
had formed a very favonrable opinion of them. Mrs Wood, your principal witnessin
the case of Mrs Mair, seemed a most intelligent woman, and gave an excellent evi-
dence, and, as she was able to resist the attempt of Mr Fraser to overturn her evi-
dence in cross-examination, the statement, that she had repudiated all that she lad
said, does appear very remarkable to me. I should, thorefore, like to hear if there is
any foundation for this report. My opinion very much, however, is that your case
ought to have been tried before a jury. There cannot be a doubt that the decision
given by the Lord Ordinary is contrary to common sense, evidence, and justice. Ha
does not aceuse your witnesses of falsehood, yet he does not put the slightest belief in
their statements. There is surely great inconsisteney in this, more especinlly, when
he belicves every word said in favour of the pursuer. What is the reply given to Dr
Christie ; and bas Dr Paterson taken any notice of the advertisement published by
Dr Sharp? Really, after the decision given in your case, one is scarcely safe to go
to Court. For my own part, I would not eave for having my name associated mors
with Sharp. Nothing that he could have done could tend to throw more distrust on
all that hosaid before the Court than this advertisement, which, he must be perfectly
nware, has no foundation in truth. There is not an item of my opinion given before
the Court which is not founded on written evidence. I have been again looking over
the interlocutor of the judge, and it would be difficult to imagine anything more
pitiable than it is in many parts, and there never was a document which deserves to
be more severely criticised for the gross ignorance it displays. I sincerely regretthe
verdiet of the judge in your case, not only on your account, but also from the effect
it will have on tho profession in general. Nothing but the height of imbecility
could have induced any judge to give such a decision. If the evidenes, such as you
produced, is to be ignored becanse it is marvellous in the opinion of the judge,
although he cannot say if is untrue, no crime, howover glaring, can be punished. I
sincorely hope the judges of the Inner House will show mors talent in their decision
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than the Lord Ordinary has done. Whatever ma b : ni
the Lo 7 has : y bo the result, I g
sharp's mu’lw:fuw practice will not be very extensive in futuve, "r"n’ij.a]':tir:h;L ﬂyﬂi :JJEIIT:
guceess, and hoping to hear from You soon, believe me, '
My Dear ;&‘_hir,
Lours very foi
Dr James Wilson, Cullen, i Iﬂlthmlgl BeLL,

Curres, 17th July, 1867.
My Dear Mvs Wood,—I send You a copy of a letter just received from ]"Zir Bell, of

Edinburgh. I wonder what this man, Sha will tr . 3 :
of Catherine Mair. Pl l%xﬁlﬁﬂf,ﬂwmﬂ thebloeding

Mrs Wood, Seafield Cottage, Portnockie, James WiLsox.

. BEAFIELD COTTAGE,’
. PORTENOURIE, 17th July, 1867.

My Dear Sir,—I roturn you the copy of Dr Bell's letter. This conduct of Dr
Sharp does not at all surprise me after his evidence in Court, and after putting such
advertisements in the shop windows of Cullen. Tell Doctor Bell that I, and your
other witnesses, are ready and willing to go a second time, if required, to Edinburgh,
and tell the judge the same story. When Dr Sharp swore that he did not bleed
Catherine Mair, I wonder he was not afraid that she would have risen from the
graye and confronted him. You may recollect the night on which Catherine Mair
was delivered, when you and Dr MGregor were in my house, I said that the caso
would yet be brought to light, it would not hide, and my words bave come true.

In my evidence I see I used the word “brain” instead of “skull” I said “ho
began to pick off pieces of the brain.” I meant skull, Dr Sharp ealled the pincers
a turcus. Anne Mair, in her evidence, says she does not know where Sharp got tha
line. If you ask George Wood %[jem-ge} I think he will be able to give yon some in-
formation on this point, Lord Kinloch did not believe us about the poker. What
a pity that old Katie Mair is dead ; but I suppose that although the Apostle Paul had
risen from the dead and been put into the witness-box to have given evidence on
a subject, the judge would have believed only what cvidence sunited himself, He
would have said that exaggeration would account for the evidence. Iam just as
sure as I am alive that it was during a labour pain, and not in the interval between
the pains, that he attempted to introduce the forceps. The bedclothes were thrown
off, and I had the nuse of my eyes and ears. Sharp says in his evidence that the reason
why he could not introduce the forceps was because there was no room. If there was
no room, why did he persist for hours in attempting to introdnce them ? This wonld
sgurely injure the woman; a person might as well persist in attempting to force a

key that was too large into a lock—the lock would be surely damaged by such a pro- -

ceeding, Sharp, in his evidence about the pincers, makes quite a mess of it, and I
think his own evidence is far more against him than even ours.

The head was in the vagina when he used the poker and the pincers ; and I have
known you lift the head out of the vagina with the foreeps as easily as yon eould Iift
an egg from an egg cup. If the woman had had half a dozen good strong bearing-
down pains she would have been delivered without the forceps, or anything else.
She was frightened when the Doctor made his appearance, because she expected
either you or M‘Gregor. Sharp had on a big ugly hairy cap, and was newly out of
the typhus fever, the time he came to attend Catherine Mair. She had moderate pains
at that time, but she had not one good labour pain after Sharp made his appearance.
I send you a certificate I got from Doctor Henderson, which, I hope, you will be so
kind as to send to Dr Bell, that he may judge for himeself whether we are telling tho
truth or not. L :

What a pity you did not bring up the ecase of Alexander M‘Haftie's first wife ; but
Lord Kinloeh would not have believed 1-Iu11- witnesses.

, am,
My Dear Sir,
Yours truly,
. Dr Wilson, Cullen. AXNE Woon.
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ANN LOBBAN OR PATERSON [56 C.]

| _ - Free CHurcr Maxsg, ¢ N.
These cerlify that Thave been for many years well acquainted with J{.nnuiﬁwhnn
or Paterson, wife of Alexander Paterson, Bauds of Cullen, that she is a woman of
much respectability, and excellent moral character ; and that she is 2 member in full
communion with the Free Church of Seotland,
Given this 14th Day of May, 1867 Years,
By Joux MKy, Minister of Free Church at Cullen,

HELEN SPENCE OR GEDDES [61 T.]

Mrs Geddes, Portknockie, wife of John Geddes, there, has been known to me for
upwards of twenty years, and has always borne an irreproachable character.

Wi, CrappertoN, Catholic Cler an, Buckie.
Buckie, 13¢h May, 1867. : ey

ANN BADENOCK OR DUFF [62 G.]

For many years I have been well acquainted with Mrs Ann Badenock, wife of John
Duff, a native of this parish, in which she has resided all hier lifetime. As amember
of *society and of the church she has uniformly and deservedly maintained an un-
blemished character, and I have ever regarded her as a most worthy parishioner, on
whose truthfulness and integrity I can place the fullest reliance.

- Geonce lIexpersoN, LL.D., Minister of Cullen,

Manse of Cullen, 11th May, 1867.

ANN BRUCE OR WOOD [63 C.]

Mys Ann Bruee or Wood, widow, residing at Seafield Cottage, in this parish, has
Leen long and favourably known to me. She is a person of respeetable family, of
steady integrity, of circumspect behaviour, of thorough veracity; and the community
have the fullest confidence in her professional (midwifery) qualifications, which I have
resson to know are of superior order.

GeorcE HexpersgoN, LL.D., Minister of Cullen.

Cullen, 13th May, 1867.

ANN WOOD OR MAIR [66 £

Mrs Ann Wood, wife of John Mair, fisherman, Portknockie, in this parish, has
been personally known to me for upwards of thirty-eight years, during which she
has borne a respectable character. '

She belongs to a family or tribe (Bobbin), which has been long noted for a good
name among the fishing population ; and I feel confident in bearing my strong testi-
mony in her behalf as a decent, honest, trustworthy, and reliable person.

Georce Hespersow, LL.D., Minister of Cullen.

Cullen, 13tk May, 1867.

HNELEN MAIR OR SLATER [67 C.]

These eertify that I have for many years been acquainted with Mrs Helen Mair or
Slater, wife of George Slater, fisherman, Portknockie ; that she is a member of the
¥ree Chureh ; and, so far as known to me, of unblemished moral character, and that
I helieve her to be honeat and truthful, and very unlikely to give any evidence in a
Court of Law contrary to her convietions,

Given at the I. C. Manse, Cullen, this 14th day of May, 1867 Years,
By Joux Mackay, Minister of Froe Church at Cullen.

L

ANN MAIR [68 B]

Thesa cortify that Mrs Ann Mair, wife of John Mair (Duncan), Portknockie, has
been long known to me as a member of my church; that she is a woman of good
moral character, and of much respectability in her station, and that I have every










TO PRACTITIONERS AND STUDENTS

o

MIDWIFERY,.

GENTLEMEN,

Not being by any means satisfied with the
finding of the Lord Ovdinary Kinloch, I appealed to the
Lords of the First Division of the Inner House in hopes that
their Lordships might put matters on something like a proper
footing.

Theg Lord Ordinary attributed exaggeration, to a great
extent, on the part of my witnesses, to account for the
blood-curdling depositions made by them, assuming very gra-
tuitously that the minds of the witnesses must have been in
a very excited state when the pursuer was operating on the
deceased Mrs Mair, and that their imagination must have been
naturally led to believe that the pursuer actually used a poker,
(The same as represented by Fig. D.) The fact of some of
my witnesses being distant relations of the deceased seemed
to have a wondertul effect on his Lordship’s mind; and his
mnferences, considering the calm, clear, and consistent evidence
they gave, are anything but what might have been expected
from a Judge of his standing and experience. .

Mrs Anne Bruce or Wood, the principle witness in the case
of Mrs Mair, was no relation to the deceased ; and from the
manner she has given her evidence and stood her cross-exa-’
mination, I think she is a most unlikely person to have been
excited to such an extent as to believe that an ordinary.
scissor’s-shaped perforator was a poker! It is most singulay,

=
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and quite unprecedented, that three or four individuals could
have been excited to such an extraordinary extent, as his
]'Jo_rds]np, in the face of the evidence, seems to think, and all
to imagine precisely the same chain of events to have existed.
One would naturally think the chain would have lost some of
its links, or would have contained links not fitting very exactly
into each other. This theory of excitement, imagination,
and exaggeration will scarcely be swallowed by a ¢ discerning
public,” even although pronounced by a learned J udge. The
cases of Mrs Longmore and Mrs Geddes seem to be totally
incomprehensible to his Lordship.

I may here mention that Fig. D is a fair representation of
the pokers usually seen at the firesides of fishermen along
the Moray Firth; that the term “rope” is a provincialism for
any cord, just as in some parts of America the word “rock”
1s often used to signify a pebble, :

I append copy of the Interlocutor of the J udges of the First
Division.

For your convenience I have drawn up the following

. ANALYSIS OF EVIDENCE.

The evidence given by the defender’s witnesses was not
heard b{y Sir James Y. Simpson, Dr Keiller, and Dr Thatcher,
the professional witnesses of the pursuer. The evidence on
both sides was heard by Drs Bell, Paterson, and Christie,
the professional witnesses of the defender. Sir James Y.
Simpson, at page 41, letter A, states that he gives his opinion
upon the case “as presented by the pursuer.” At page 41
D, Sir James says, “But it is mainly on Dr Sharp’s evidence
that I have founded my opinion.” .

Dr Thatcher, at page 43 E, says, * Of course, my opinion is
formed on the evi£ance I have heard,” &e. (viz., that of the
pursuer). :

Dr Bell, at page 69 G, says, “I have heard all the evidence
which has been led in this case, on the part both of the pur-
suer and of the defender.”

In speaking of the opinions of Sir James, &e., Dr Bell, at
page T0 A, says, “ But it is quite clear to me, that their opinion
was given upon a hypothetical case altogether, and that hypo-
thesis seems to me to have been overturned in a great many
instances.” _ :

Dr Paterson, at page 77 D, in speaking of the statements
made by Dr Sharp, the pursuer, says, “ I dispute their truth.

L




TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW. 07

At page 78 A, Dr Paterson says, “It is impossible I can
take the statements of Dr Sharp.”

Dr Christie, at page 80 C, says, “But I must say that I
cannot believe the evidence of Dr Sharp in this case.”

By the following analysis of the statements made by the
pursuer, and the evidence given by the defender’s witnesses,
1t will be geen whether or not Drs Bell, Paterson, and Christie,
had sufficient ground for calling into question the veracity of
the statements made by the pursuer; and it will, at the same
time, show the amount of importance that can be attached
to the opinions of Sir James Y. Simpson, Drs Keiller and
Thatcher:—

CASE OF MRS LONGMORE—[32 C.]

Pupsuer’s Statements, heard by  Evidence of Defender’s witnesses
Sir J. Simpson, Drs Keiller not heard by Sir J. Simpson,
and Thatcher, or Drs Keiller and Thatcher.

r Mrs Janet Kemp or Long-

more says, at page 55 C, I

thought Mrs Longmore had

pains after Dr Sharp began
to use the forceps.”

| Mrs Ann Lobban or Pater-

' son, at page 56 D, E, to the

query, “Did the labour pains

go on after Dr Sharp arrived?”
replies, “Yes, she had pains.

Yes, these pains continued

after Dr Sharp came.”

[
i
I

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, at
Eage 32 D, says, “She (Mrs
ongmore) had no uterine

pains—that is, pains of labour 3
—for a great many hours be-
fore I was called.”

Mrs Eliza Cowie or Geddes
(a witness of the pursuer), at
page 87 G, says, “Dr Sharp
came between four and five
o'clock in the afternoon . . .
the pains by that time were
getting very weak.”

Mys Margaret Flett or Simy-
son (a witness of the pursuer),
at page 46 A, says, “Mrs
Longmore had some labour
pains after the pursuer turned
L the child in the womb.”

(i
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Pursuer’s Statements, heard by  Evidence of Defender’s witnesses
Sir J. Y. Simpson, &e. not heard by Sir J. Y, Simp-
80N, &e.

r Mrs Janet Kemp or Long-
more, at page 55 B, says, ©1
tied a cord round the child’s.

| ankle, by Dr Sharp’s divec-
| tions. 1t was not tape or rib-
band. After the cord was tied
 round the ankle, the doctor
| tried to bring forward the
child. He pulled very hard,
as I thought, to do so0.”

Mrs Ann Lobban or Pater-
. son, at page 56 G, says, *“ After
- the cord was tied, Dr Sharp
| pulled by it. I am sure he
| pulled by the cord, and not by
the leg. The cord was like a

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, at | piece of thick twine; it was
page 36 H, says, “I did not, | not tape.” :

i that case, by traction on the%' Dr Duncan Carmichael, at

cord, which had been placed ) page 57 G, says, “ There was

round the ankle, attempt to | a string or something tied
deliver the child.” E}?ﬁg one of the legs of the

Mrs Eliza Cowie or Geddes
(one of the pursuer’s wit-
nesses), at page 37 G, says,
“There was a cord attached
to the foot of the child.” 38
B, I think Dr Sharp got it
out of his pocket.”

Mus Margaret Flett or Simp-
son (one of the pursuer’s wit-
nesses), at page 44 H, says,
«“ He then attached a cord to
the foot of the child, and

| attempted to draw 1t down,
| which I have seen him do be-
| fore.”

What was the cause of death ?

Mrs Longmore was the patient of the pursuer.
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Mrs Longmore was not the patient of Dr Carmichael.
Before death the pursuer had expressed his opinion openly,
that a rupture of the uterus had taken place.
Dr Sharp, the pursuer, swears upon oath that there was
rupture of the uterus which caused death.
r Carmichael performs the Cesarian section after death,
and swears upon oath that no rupture and no tfrace of a

1'11]3‘1';111'3 existed.

Sir James Simpson, in answer to the

query—*Is it quite

easy, in a post mortem examination to determine whether
there has been rupture ?” says, Yes; it is quite impogsible

to fail in detérmining that.”

What must be inferred from the following declarations on
oath made by Drs Sharp and Carmichael ?—

Pursuers Statements, heard by
Sir J. Y. Simpson, &e.

The pursuer, at page 32 G,
says, “ I could not understand
-what was retaining the child
in utero, and I introduced my
hand to examine it, and found
that the head was through a
rupture of the uterus.,” At
age 33 A, he says, “He (Dr
sarmichael)accordingly made
the examination, and as soon
as the external walls of the ab-

domen were opened, the head <

of the child appeared.” At
page 33 B, he says, “ The rup-
ture was on the left side at the
upper third of the fundus.”
At page 37 A, he says, “ The
rupture of the womb was
visible at once. When the
walls of the abdomen were
opened, the head of the child
appeared instantly.”

Fvidence of Defender’s witnesses
not heard by Sir J, Y. Simp-
son, d&e.

¢ Dr Duoncan Carmichael, at
page 57 D, says, ¢ After death
I performed the Casarian sec-
tion to extract the child. The
child was in the uterns. I
saw no rupture in the uterus,
and no trace of one.” 57 E,I,
“The head of the foetus was
entirely within the uterus, It
was not thrust through an

rupture of the uterus,” 58 I,
G, “The inner coats of the
uterus might have been rup-
tured, but it was not ruptured
through and through. Tf that
had been the ecase, I would
have known it, because the
child would have protruded
through, It would have been
m the cavity of the abdomen,
and there would have been

blood there. Now, there was
L no blood there.”

Dr Bell, at page 70 B, says, with regard to the treatment
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of Mrs Longmore by the pursuer, “He showed a want of skill
in not delivering the child after having applied the forceps.
He appe_ared to me to commit a great error and a mal-
Eractme in delivering the child by drawing at the cord which
e had tied round its legs, instead of adopting the more usual
course of using traction gently upon the]i}imbﬂ themselves.”

Dr Bell, at page 74 E, says, “If Sir James had heard
all the evidence, I have no doubt he would have agreed
with me.”

Dr Paterson, at page 78 A, says, “I am bound, however, to
believe Dr Carmichael, for I must say it is impossible I can
take the statements of Dr Sharp. The one was obliged
almost to form that theory in order to bear out his views.”
78 B, “In these circumstances I think it was quite within
Dr Sharp’s power to have delivered the woman by the
natural passages by the aid of the forceps.”

Dr Paterson, at page 79 A, B, says, * But I am of opinion
that if Sir James had not been put into the witness-hox until
he had heard the evidence which has been disclosed, his
judgment would have been a very different one indeed.”

Sir James Y. Simpson, at page 41 H, says, with regard to
the case of Mrs Longmore, *“ I think those that do [fix a eord
to the ankle of the child] are always in the habit of saying
that they do not pull the foot by pulling upon the cord. 1
do not use a cord.”

From the above analysis of evidence, it is reasonable to
infer that Mrs Longmore ought to have been delivered by the
forceps, and that no cord ought to have been used for extract-
ing the child by pulling on the cord. Granting that a rup-
ture of the uterus in reality existed, Dr Paterson, at page 77,
F, G, H, condemns the practice adopted by the pursuer, Viz.,
the attempt to turn, owing to the exhausted state of the
woman. The pursuer, in the opinion of Dr Paterson, by
attempting to turn, was instrumental in hurrying his patient
to her “long home!”
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Pursuer's Statements, heard by
Sir J. Y. Simpson, §e.

r

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, 36 G,
“] am mnot aware that the
child was injured in any way
Ly my use of the forceps. I+
saw the child after it was born.
There was no injury upon it,
so far as I recollect.’

L

-

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, 36
¥, ¢TI do not recollect of say-
ing that the child was dea.c'l.”*i

TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW.

Evidence of Defender’s witnesses
not heard by Sir J, Y, Simp-
son, &e.

The pursuer swore at me, and
threatened to kick me out at

L the window.”

Mrs Geddes, 62 A, B, “ The
child’s head was very much
swelled; there were injuries
upon it—on the back of the
head, on the left eye, and on
the side of the nose. There
was a cut there. The wound
gave forth matter for seven
weeks after the birth of the
child.”

Mrs Duff, 62 H, “It (child)
was in a very ugly state. The
back of the head and forehead
were marlked.” ;

Mrs Janet Donald or Wil-
son (a witness of the pursuer),
53 U, “The back of its head
and brow were cut.”

Dr Dunean Carmichael, 58
C, “ There were some marks
of injuries on the back of the
child’s head, and also ‘on the
cheek.”

Jane Geddes, 63 A, B (the
child), “I have a mark on the
back of my head, and one near
the right eye. . ... Ihave
had them all my life.”

Mrs Geddes, at page 61 H,
“I heard him (the pursuer)
say to my mother, and to the
midwife, that one of the
child’s. eyes was blown out.
He also said the child was
dead, and that it (child) must
be destroyed before it came
into the world.”
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Pursuer's Statements, heard by

Sir J. Y. Simpson, &e.

36 H, “I never said that the
eye of the child was blown
out.” 36 G, “I did not pro-
pose to Dr Carmichael to
break up that child before he
delivered it.”

103

Evidence of Defender’s witnesses
not heard by Sir J. Y. Sinp-
son, §c.

Dy Carmichael, 58 B, ¢« He
(pursuer) suggested some
other mode of operation; I
cannot say decidedly just
now whether it was cranio-
tomy, or what it was; but I
objected to if, because I
thought it would be danger-

| ous or fatal to the child.”

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, at
page 33 H, ]I, says, “On apply-
mng my midwifery forceps I
found 1t was too weak. ....
It slipped many times. I
made the remark to the
people, that if my foreceps?
went on slipping there was
only one alternative, and that
was to break down the child.”
60 B, “I mean by that, it
slipped many times.”

.

Mrs Wilson (pursuer’s wit-
ness), 52 E, * He (pursuer)
did not manage to deliver
her.,” 52 F, “Dr Carmichael
succeeded at first in extract-
ing the child.” 53 B, “ After
Dr Carmichael came the pur-

gner tried to deliver Mrs

Geddes.”

Mrs Geddes, 61 G, H, “1It
(forceps) slipped six times
before Dr %)‘a,rmichael was
called. . I suppose
he kept working at me with
the forceps for two or three
hours. . . . . He used the
forceps once after he came
back; it slipped again.” 62
A, ¢ After he (Dr Carmichael)
came, Dr Sharp tried the
forceps twice; it slipped both
times. He said he gave me
uF Dr Carmichael then ap-
plied his forceps; it never
slipped, and he delivered me
of a female child. She is still
alive.”

Mrs Duff, 62 H, “1 gaw
Dr Sharp use his forceps on
this occasion ; it always lost
its hold. I was there when
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Pm*au.m"e: Statements, heard by
Sir J. Y. Simpson, §e.

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, 34
A, “They sent for Dr Car-

TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW.

Lvidence of Defender’s witnesses

not heard by Sir J. Y. St~
son, &c.
Dy Carmichael came. He de-

livered the woman in a very
\short time.”
( Dr Carmichael says, at page
58 B, “After I amived, Dr

michael of Buckie, who came | Sharp again tried the forceps
and used his own forceps. It | in my presence, but was still

did not slip more than once,
but I rather think it did slip
once.”

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, 34
A, “Dr Carmichael’s forceps
wags different from mine—it
was stronger and straight.
Mine was what is called

Hamilton’s forceps, double
curve.”

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, 60
E, “I did not apply the for-
ceps antero-posteriorly, I ap-
phied them laterally.”

Dr Shmg, the pursuer, at

of Mrs Ge

des, I did not use the catheter . .

unsuceessful. . ... I suc-
ceeded at the first attempt I
made.”

Dy Carmichael, 58 D, “I
have still in my possession
the forceps which I then used.
It was a forceps with a literal
curve, and I think Dr Sharp’s
was what is called the straight

~forceps.” -

Dr Carmichael, at page 58
C, D, I applied the forceps
. « « » laterally towards the
side of the head. My usnal
practice is to take a hold of
the head by the side ; I there-
fore think that as my first
attempt was successful that I
could not have injured the
front nor the back part of the
child’s head. If I had in-
flicted any injury the mark of
it would have been on the

«side.”

page 60 A, B, says, “ In the case

. . I could feel

externally if there was any guantity requiring the application
of the catheter.” On being asked the position of the child’s
head, he replied, 66 C, “I really could not say what was the
position of the child’s head. . . . . It is a very trifling mat-
ter.” 60 C, D, The pursuer states that the head of the child
was in the first position. In answer to the guery, *In what
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liameter of the cavity of the pelvis did the long diameter of
the head lis3” He g;:ates thgt “The face wasgn the hollow
of the sacrum!” 3

Dr Bell says, at page 71 A, ¢TI think he (the pursuer) showed
a great want of skill in shaking the patient, &e. There
appeared to me to have been a great want of skill in apply-
ing the forceps. I never heard of any one applying the for-
ceps and it slipping eight times . . . . and 1 certainly think
it 1s malpractice persevering in applying the forceps for two
hours,” 71 C, «If, as has been represented, the forceps was
weals, any man who had any regard for himself, or regard for
his patient, would have applied another forceps.” 71 D, “If
he had not another forceps with him, or at home, he could
have applied to some of his professional brethren,” &e. 71 G,
] think there was a want of skill in applying the mstruments
in the long diameter of the child’s head, and not in the trans-
verse. By so doing, however powerful the instruments’ he
had might have been they would have slipped.” 71 H, “ Had
he applied it over the ears, as seemed to have been the case
in Dr Carmichael’s application of the forceps, you would have
had no injury on the forehead, particular I}—I not in the inner
angle of the right eye.” 711, 72 A, “There was sufficient
evidence to show that the forceps was wrong applied. There
18 no other explanation given of how the injury to the occiput
and the forehead could have been done, except by the im-
proper application of the fﬁrcell:a. It appeared to me to
show a want of skill to propose breaking up the child’s head
under the circumstances.”

Dr Bell, at page 71 D, E, says, © I consider there was undue
haste on this occasion. In this case also he stated—and I
think it was an error, and shows that there was a want of
skill—that it was a first position of the child, and that the
face of the child was in the hollow of the sacrum; . . . . but
he treats a knowledge of the position as of no importance.”
71 G, “ It was important to know what position it was in.”

Dr Paterson, at page 78 F, says, “ Now, I think the forceps
n this case was quite uncalled for.” 78 G, “I perfectly agree
‘with Dr Bell that before you are warranted in using instru-
mental means to accomplish delivery, you are bound to make
yourself thoroughly acquainted with the nature of the pre-
sentation, and must confess it struek me as very astonishin
indeed, when to-day Dr Sharp said it was a matter of little
moment whut the predentation was. God forbid that any
practifioner following the obstetric part of our profession
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should cherish such an idea!” 78 €, D, “ It strikes me that
Dy Sharp said that his forceps was too weak; I think with
Dr Bell that he was quite entitled to try it a second time; but
beyond that I cannot see how he was at all entitled to persist
with the same forceps which he had found to be perfectly
inadequate to accomplish delivery.” '

Dr Christie, at page 80 B, says, “ Dr Sharp, on being asked
with regard to the positions, seemed to treat a knowledge of
the position of the child presenting as a very trifling matter.
- + « . My impression from that is, that the man who holds
a knowledge of the position of the child at the moment that
he is to use instruments for the purpose of delivering to be
of no moment, carries in his hand an instrument which is
more likely to end in injury to both mother and child than in
any beneficial result. I merely say that in corroboration of
the opinions stated by Dr Bell and Dr Paterson.”

Sir James Y. Simpson, at page 39 E, says, “1 have seen a
forceps slip because it was too weak and yielding.” Sir
James Simpson was not aware, however, that wounds which
gave forth matter for six weeks after the birth of the child
existed on the forehead and oceciput; proving that the short
foreceps had been placed on the long, and not on the short
diameter of the child’s head.

From the above analysis, it is reasonable to infer that the
pursuer ought to have delivered Mrs Geddes by the forceps;
that the slipping of the instrument was not owing to its weal-
ness, but to its improper application. He ought not to have
ghaken his patient.

CASE OF MRS MAIR—[63 C.]

Pursuer's Statements, heard by  Evidence of Defender’s witnesses
Sir J. Y. Simpson, §e. not heard by Sir J. Y, Simp-
son, de. ] _

Mrs Ann Bruce or Wood, at

| page 63 D, says, “He (pur-

suer) came about eight in the

The pursuer, Dr Sharp, at | dawn of the morning. The
page 34 B, says, ¢ Ireally for- | lights were not out.”
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Pursuer's Statements, heard by
Sir J. Y. Simpson, §e.

pacted at the brim of the pel-
vis, but how long it had been
80 previously, I could not say.
It must have been so for some
considerable time, because
there was very considerable
constitutional irritation.” 85
(5, “ The forceps never slipped
in the course of this birth . ..
I suppose I had been engaged
several hours in attempting
to use the forceps.”

i

-
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Evidence of Defender's witnesses
not heard by Sir J, Y, Simp-
son, d&e.

tions. . . . The mother-in-
law (Mrs Mair, senior) asked
if there was any danger. He
said, ‘No; I will deliver her
in five minutes, granny.’” 64
A, “He tried the forceps se-
veral times, but it always

sliEEeﬂ."
Irs Ann Wood or Mair, at
page 66 E, F, says, “The head
of the child was in the right
place. I felt it with my hand.
. « « . After he (pursuer) had
examined her, 1 asked him
what he thought of her con-
dition. He said, ‘Everything
is perfectly regular; she will
e delivered very soon.” Isaw
Dr Sharp use a forceps, but it
slipped.”

rs Ann Mair, at aﬁe
68 C, in speaking of the
condition of Mrs Mair at the
time of Dr Sharp’s arival
to attend Mrs Mair, says,
“ My mother asked what
he (pursuer) thought of
her; and he said he would
deliver her in five minutes.
He did nothing to her for
a few minutes, but then
he commenced with his in-
struments. = He wrought
with them for more than an
hour.”

Mrs Helen Mair or Slater,
at page 67 C, says, “ He (pur-
guer) used instruments, but
they did no good. The for-
ceps slipped very often.”
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Pursuer’s Statements, heard E;y
Sir J. Y. Simpson, §c.

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, at
page 85 G, says, “ 1 attempted
several times to use the for-
ceps, but failed. I cannot say
how many times I attempted
it. I really forget now t 1686 )
trifling things. . . . I did not
tie the forceps. It was not
applied, and consequently 1t
was never tied,”

Dx Sharp, the pursuer, at
page 36 E, says, “I did not<
swear at her.”

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, at
page 34 C, D, “ Seeing, then,
that the case demanded im-
mediate interference, I com-
menced myself. I turned the
child, but found that, after
all, without the cerebrum and
cerebellum being evacuated,
and the cranium collapsing, T
could not get her delivered.”

L
[
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Bidence of Defender’s witnesses
not heard by Sir J. Y. Simp-
son, &,

Mrs Ann Bruce or Wood,
at pages 63 I, 64 A, B, says,
“Theforcepswas never locked
by Dr Sharp. I tried to tieit
several times with a piece of
tape, but it was never locked
so far as I knew. He tried to
force it to lock by grasping 1t
closely, while I tied it firmly,
but it would not lock
It was when he was trying to
extract the child that the for-
ceps slipped.” 65 H, “ When
Dr Sharp used the forceps, the
bedeclothes were thrown off.”

Mrs Wood, 64 A, ¢ He (pur-
suer) was a little out of temper
at the time, and occasionally
used an oath.”

Mrs Slater, 67 C, “He ut-
tered oaths when 1t (forceps)
slipped.”

Irs Ann Mair 69 C, “I am
sure he swore at me when I
wanted to get out of the bed.
. « + » 1 heard him swear at
times when the irons (forceps)
slipped.”

s Wood, 64,B,C,D, E, F,
““ After he had used the forceps
he went away for a little time;
he would be away for about an
hour. When he came back he
said he would have to break
111;;11:11& child. The head of the
childwas still presenting when
he said that, and the woman
had slow labour pains. . . . .

-

-----

]

(

60 G, H, “The pelvis of the

mother was contractedantero- 2

He then said he would send
his boy to Cullen for his dead
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Pursuer’s Statements heard by
Sir J. Y. Stmpson, &e.

posteriorly to the extent of
three inches, so far as T could
ascertain. I tried with pretty
powerful traction to extract
the body of the child, but
when it came to the head I
found that the head was so
much ossified that it stuck
there at the brim of the pelvis.
. . . It was at the brim it was
detained.” 34 G, H, “T found
it could not be extracted in
that way, and then took the
erforator, and perforated the
ead at the back of the ear to
evacuate the brain. The head
after that generally collapses,
and there is little trouble in
extracting the child; but in
this case so strongly was the
head of the child ossified that
it did not contract, and I could
not get my crotchet to take
hold of the bone. Then I re-
flected what I would do, and
I got these pincers (the shoe-
maler’s), and an excellent in-
strument it is!” (Fig. B.) 34
D, E, “I got a pair of pincers
from him (shoemaker), and
aﬁﬁlied it to the head of the
child, and it answered the
purpose wonderfully!” 61 D,
“In that case (Mrs Mair's), I
first employed the forceps,
then turning, and then eranio-
tomy” (see Diagrams, Fig. A.)
(Shown No. 53 process—a
poker.) “I did not use an
instrument like that in the

Y
-~
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Lividence of Defender's witnesses
not heard by Sir J. Y. Simyp-
son, &

irons; and the boy went and
brought back these instru-
ments.

(Shown No, 53, a com-
mon Portknockie poker,) I

saw Dr Shm‘p use a piecc of
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Pursuer’s Statements heard by
Sir J. Y. Simpson; §e.

operation nor anything at all J
regembling it.” |

111

Bvidence of Defender’s witnesses
not heard by Sir J. Y. Simp-

son, &e.

yointed iron like that, with a

ob at the end. [See sheet
of diagrams, Fig. D]. . . . .
.The thing he used was not

like gcissors; it had only one
blade, and there was a small
knob at the end. I have seen

36 C, I did not bleed the
woman (Mrs Mair.) ... I am
satisfied in my own mind that
I did not bleed her” 36 B,
“] did not tie the arm of the
child.”

what is called a perforator;
Dr Sharp did not use any in-
strument like a perforator.
When he used the instrument
like that now produced he
took hold of it with both his
‘hands, placed his left foot
against the bed, and used 1t
as if he were stabbing the
child. . . . Dr Sharp said the
child wag alive, but he would
be obliged to destroy it in
order to save the mother. . .
DriSharp then sent Helen Mair
to Willhlam Wood, the shoe-
maker, for a pair of his best
pincers—([see sheet of dia-
grams, Fig. B]—and began
Lto pick off pieces of the brain
( (skull) with the pincers. After
doing this he bled the woman
on the arm with the lancet,
and took off two soup plate-
fuls of blood from her, } held
the first plate. . . . It was
after using the perforator
that he took off the blood.”
66 B (Q.)*Do you swear upon
your solemn oath that youn saw
Dr Sharp take blood from the
woman?? (4.) “Yes, I do.”
64 H, I, ¢ Dr Sharp afterwards
turned the child. . . . When
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Pursuer's Statements heard by
Sir J. Y. Simpson, §e.

Dr Sharp, the pursuer, 34
H, “1I understood afterwards

that the room had been J

crowded with fisherwomen,
after the fashion there,” (On

Sunday.)

TRUTH: A LIBEL BY LAW.

Fvidence of Defender's witnesses

not heard by Sir J. Y. Simp-
son, de.

he brought down the feet of
the child he asked for a piece
of cord or line, and attached
a piece to each foot; he then
twisted the two strings round .
his hand, and put his foot
against the bed and drew with
all his might. I am sure he
}:ulled b]y the string and not

y the leg.” 65 A, “I saw
the child after it was ex-
tracted. . . . . There was a
pretty firm mark round one
of the wrists, as if it had been
firmly fastened by a cord. . .
I pointed that out to Helen
Mair and her sister, and her
mother.,” 65 B, “I did not
look into the woman’s pri-
vate parts, but I felt them
with my hands. From what
I felt T am sure that if I had
looked in I could have seen
the head of the child easily.”
(At the time the pursuer ar-
rived.)

Mrs Ann Mair, 67 B, “There
were a good many people who
called to see Mrs Mair on the
Sunday, but the room was not
crowded.”

Mrs Helen Slater, 67 H, «I
was in the house on the Sun-
day morning. There were
not many people there.”

Mirs Ann Mair, 69 C, I was
in the house on the Sunday.
There were very few people
there. Mrs Mair was kept

L quite quiet that day.”
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Pursuer’s Statements heard by —vidence of Defender’s witnesses
Sir J. Y. Simpson, §e. not heard by Sir J. Y. Simp-

son, &¢.

0 Mrs Ann Mair, 67 B, “ She

Mair) was far fr 1
Dr Sharp, the. pursuer, 34 i%l{;f dam.{.’) was far from we

E, “I called back on the Mrs Helen Slater, 67 H,
Sunday, about 12 o'clock, and | 0" (Myg Mair) was not

found the patient in,a most j o o o) " woll when I saw
satisfactory state, with an ex- %-er; E't';]:nua was getting weaker.”
cellent pulse, and complaining | ““3p "4y Mair, 69 D, « She
of nothing. . . She died that | 7, Mair) did ot seem to be
night, doing well that day. She

| was just dying.” A

Mrs Ann Wood or Mair, 66 F, “ After he had used his forceps
he sent away for more instruments ; and what we eall his dead
irons were brought. He said he would have to break up the
child’s head in order to save the woman.” 66 H, I, “1 was
not in when he bled my daughter-in-law, but when I returned
to the room I saw two platefuls of blood standing on the table.
. + « o I examined it (child). I saw a rope round the
shackle bone and the hough (the wrist and the ankle).”
67 A, B, “The rope was round one wrist and one leg, I am
quite sure of that. . . . . I saw a bandage on her arm
where she had been bled. My daughter, Helen, took the
garter off her leg and put it on for a bandage.”

Mirs Slater, at page 67 C, D, says, *“ After using his foreeps
Dr Sharp sent to Cullen for more instruments; he also sent
me for a pair of shoemaker’s pincers. . . . . He broke
down the child with what we would call an old poker (shown
No. 53). It was with an instryment just like that. It was
not with an instrument like scissofs. It was just a single bit of
iron, sharp at one end and with a knob at the other. . . . .
Dr Sharp bled Mrs Mair, and I gave him my garter to bind
round her arm after he had done so. I saw him take two
platefuls of blood from her arm with the lancet.” 67 G, I
think it was the right arm from which he took the blood.”
67 B, “It was after he had used the poker, and after I had

gone for the shoemaker’s pincers. It was after he had bled
her that he turned the child. . . . . Isaw the child’s

body a few minutes after it was extracted. . . . . The
head of the child was to be seen when Dr Sharp used the
3 H
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poker. I did not see it; there was no appearance of the feet
of the cliﬁ]d at that time; the head 15{133 still presenting.”
67 G, ““ The woman was not under the clothes when he turned
the child. The cord that was on the child was round one of
the wrists and one of the ankles.”

Mrs Ann Mair, 68 A, in speaking of Dr Sharp’s practice after
he had attempted delivery unsuccessfully, says, 68 D, E, F, G,
“Dr Sharp, when he came back, sent to Cullen for what we
call his dead irons. . . . . I wasin the bed at that time
keeping on the chloroform with one hand, and keeping down
the child with the other. I felt the child move. . . . .
(Shown No. 53). He used an instrument just like that. T
could only compare it to the thing that a butcher sharps his
knives with. He did not use anything like seissors. o
After he had used that instrument he sent Mrs Slater for a
%)&il‘ of shoemaker’s nippers, and these were brought. . . . .
I saw Dr Sharp bleed the woman after he had used all these
instruments. Ele then twrned the child, and then tied what
we call a line-back, or piece of strong cord like this, round
the thigh and round the wrist. It was just a piece of
haddock line. (See sheet of diagrams, Fig. E). He El'agged
out the child by this cord and delivered the woman.” 69
B, C, “I think it was the right arm he opened when
bleeding the woman. The wound was tied up with my
sister Helen’s garter. . . . The turning of the child
was the very last thing he did before pulling it out with the
rope.”

The evidence given in the cage of Mrs Mair is most pecu-
liar. Almost every statement made by the pursuer from first
to last is flatly contradicted by the witnesses of the defender.
The evidence given by the witnesses of the defender stands
uncontradicted, and may be regarded as the most unwavering,
substantial, and conclusive %a,t was ever led in a Court of Jus-
tice by several individuals on one and the same subject. Not
a single witness corroborates the statements of the pursuer.
The pursuer says he thinks he amived to attend Mrs Mair
about twelve o’clock (in the month of December). The wit-
nesses of the defender swear the pursuer arrived to attend
Mrs Mair between eight and nine o’clock in the morning—in
the dawn of the morning—¢the lights were not out.” On
the Sunday, when the pursuer visited Mrs Mair, he states that
she was in a mostseatisfactory state, with an excellent

pulse, &e. .
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The witnesses of the defender say that Mrs Mair was then

dying. : : ‘
y’ll‘l:i fact that Mrs Mair died on Sunday night gives a hx:jef

but telling explanation of how matters in reality stood. The

curtain fell, and the last act of the tragedy was ended!

By the statements made by the Fursuer himself, it is shown
that he was several hours engaged in attempting to lock the
forceps for the purpose of extracting the child ; that he was
engaged for Eev;r]a-ﬁ hours in his attempts to use the forceps ;
that he could not get them applied for want of room; that
very considerable constitutiona irritation existed ; that the
head was impacted at a contracted brim ; and that on the

ursuer’s arrival to attend his patient, he found her consider-
ably exhausted. \ 3h.4f

Regarding the practice now detailed, Dr Christie, at page
80 C, says, “Then, as to Mrs Mair’s case, Dr Sharp stated to-
day, that when he arrived there, he found the head impacted
at the brim of the pelvis. Now, if the head at the time he
arrived was go impacted, the only operation which he ought
to have attempted in the first instance was craniotomy. MHe
ought to have taken to that at once. There was nothing but
mischief—nothing but death could have resulted from the
attempt to apply the forceps.” The pursuer states that he
turned the c]%fd and attempted to extract it after turning ;
that the brim was contracted in its antero-posterior diameter
to three inches ; that the head remained above the contracted
brim —[See Fig. A]—that he then perforated the child’s head
at the back of the ear, and applied the pincers [Fig. B] to the
head of the child, and it answered the purpose wonderfully.
It will be here observed that two fingers must have been in-
troduced for the purpose of guarding the soft parts of the
mother. It therefore follows that the child’s neck, the two
fingers of the operator, and the pincers, all, and at the same
time, occupied a space of three inches; which space of three
inches was bounded on all sides by dense and unyieldin
bony structure. Dr Christie, at page 80 C, distinctly remarks
that he cannot take the statements of the pursuer regarding
the application of the pincers. 80 E, “To apply the pincers
for any practical purpose I hold to be utterly impossible.” Dr
Christie further remarks, 80 F, @&, “ There is nothing but vio-
lence of the most extraordinary description which could have
thrust it (the pincers) there ; and after having got it into the
pelvis, it was utterly impossible to seize the head by that in-
strument. . ... Buch an instrument caried deep into the
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body of the mother, alongside the mass of the child, must
]{ave been attended with violence of the extremest descrip-
tion, and of the most dangerous character to the woman. . .
I think that the annals of midwifery contain few grosser
cases of malpractice.”

At page 40 B, C, Sir James Y. Simpson seems to approve
of the pincers; but the attention of Sir James seems to
have been exclusively directed to the blades of the instru-
ment—[see Fig. B]—when he says *“It catches in the same
way.”

Dr Bell, at page 72 D, says, “I think there are some points
which he (Sir James) overlooked when he looked at these
pincers.’ -He very properly showed you the picture of an
nstrument in a book which was somewhat similar in outline
on the one side to the shoemaker's pincers, but he overlooked
the fact thatin addition there was a square shoulder on the
other gide with sharp edges.” At page 75 C, Dr Bell says,
“In no case whatsoever would I have used these pincers.”
72 E, F, “There was an error and a malpractice in having
performed so important an operation as craniotomy without
the proper instruments.”

Dr Christie does not believe the statements of the pursuer
regarding the application of the pincers, but believes, accord-
ing to the evidence of the defender’s witnesses, that craniotomy
was performed, and that the pincers was used by the pursuer
for the purpose of extracting portions of the head when the
head was low down before twrning, and not after turmng.
The pincers could have reached the head when the head was

resenting and resting on the perineum as sworn to by the

Befeuder’s witnesses. The pursuer, at page 36 D, seems to

forget his former declaration, when in his cross-examination

he says, “The head of the child was easily gotat with the
scissors (perforator) because it was so far down.” When the
head was resting on the perineum it was quite possible for the
ursuer to have applied the pincers for the purpose of extract-
ing portions of the skull, after it had been broken up with the
poker, as sworn to by the defender’s witnesses.

The use of a poker as a perforator is condemned by Dr Bell
at page 72 C:  He (pursuer) also showed great want of skill

in breaking up the head of the child with a poker.” =

Dr Christie, at page 80 D, says, * Now, this cylindrical in-
strument (the poker) is a very rude and a very Improper one,

“ if he used anything like il oy . _

The pursuer, at page 34 B, distinctly states that Mrs Mair
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T o of exhaustion when he arrived to attend her.
I:&Pu;gr; Eé%tﬁ, F, the pursuer admits that it would be bad
ractice to bleed a woman to the extent of twenty ounces of
Elﬂﬂd during any stage of labour, when she is in a state of
xhaustion. :
ﬁﬂIlf 1lm.s been most satisfactorily proved by the evidence of
four of the witnesses of the defender that the pursuer did
bleed Mrs Mair. : .

The bleeding of Mrs Mair by the pursuer is condemned b
Dr Bell at page 73 D. Dr Bell says—* Therefore, if he took
two soup platefuls of blood from this patient, he must have
taken close upon thirty ounces. That was a decided mal-
practice under the circumstances.” At page 79 F, Dr Paterson
also condemns the bleeding of Mrs Mawr by the pursuer.

At page 41 F, G, H, Sir James Y. Simpson says that Dr
Thatoher and Dr Hamilton used to bleed women in labour.
Sir James does not, however, assert that they bled women
when in a state of exhaustion ; and no one requires to be told
that to bleed a patient when in a state of exhaustion would be
gross malpractice. el

Sir James Y. Simpson also, at page 41 I, states that if Mrs
Mair had been then in Edinburgh she might have been bled.
Sir James here must mean to say that Mrs Mair might have
been bled in Edinburgh during an early stage of her labour,
when quite strong, for the purpose of relaking the parts; or
Sir James might have meant to say that Mrs Mair might have
been bled in Edinburgh, because, doubtless, there may be as
unskilful practice adopted in Edinburgh as there is adopted
even on the shores of the Moray Firth. It cannot possibly be
imagined that Sir James Y. Simpson, or any other m&n his
sane and sober senses, would allow a woman to be bled m any
stage of labour if in a state of exhaustion, unless wilfully to
run the chance of being found guilty of manslanghter !

The use of a cord is condemned by Dr Bell at page 73 F :
¢T think it was malpractice . . . . to tie an arm and a le
of the child, and then to drag at the cord to deliver the child.”

Dr Paterson, at page 79 F, also condemns the use of a cord :
“ The second fact is the application of a piece of cord round
the leg and arm of the child for the purpose of effecting
delivery. I am satisfied Sir James would have said that that
was improper conduct.”

Mrs Ann Bruce or Wood, one of the witnesses of the defen-
der, says, at page 64 A, “It was when the woman was in pains
that the forceps was introduced. I have no doubt of that.”
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At page 65 H, the same witness says, “ When Dy ; ;
the forceps the bedclothes were tlu'f;wn off.” e

From the following statements of the pursuer's own wit
nesses with regard to the introduction of the forceps by the
pursuer during a labour pain, it would appear that it has been
lui usnal mode of rocegure.

t page 48 D, Mys Margaret Gardiner or Hay, in speakin
of the case of Mrs F., says, “He introduced the f?‘.r;:.mﬁpsp during
a labour pain,”

At page 49 C, in speaking of the case of Mrs M., the same
1?1_1:.1]Eﬂ$ says, “The forceps were introduced during a labour
pain.

At paﬁe 49 E, the same witness says, in speaking of Mrs T.'s
case, “The pursuer introduced theforceps durin g a labour pain.”

Mrs Mary Smith or Davidson, another of the pursuer’s
witnesses, at page 50 G, in speaking of the case of A, L.s
dau(fhter, says, It was during a labour pain the forceps was
used.” At page 51 B, the same witness says, in speaking of
the case of I. M., # He introduced the forceps during a pain.

: » - The fixing of the forceps took place during a
labour pain.”

Myrs Margaret Mair or Reid, another of the pursuer’s
witnesses, at page 54 B, in speaking of the case of Mrs
M‘Donald, says, “ I think it was during a labour pain that the
pursuer introduced the forceps.”

Dr Bell, at page 72 B, C, says, “I think it was a great
want of skill and disregard of all precedent in introducing
the blades of the forceps during a labour pain.” Regarding
the cases condescended on in the counter-issue, Dr Bell, at
page 4 C, says, “It is my decided opinion that the cases of
Mrs Longmore, Mrs Helen Spence or Geddes, and Mrs Mair,
were all treated unskilfully by Dr Sharp.”

Dr Paterson, at page 78 H, says, “With regard to the
management of that unfortunate case of Mrs Mair, I dare
EG&.I‘E:E%}T trust myself to advert to it. I have no hesitation in
saying that a grosser case of mismanagement never came to
my knowledge.” 79 A, B, “I am of opinion that if Sir James
had not been put into the witness box until he had heard the
evidence which has been. disclosed to-day, his judgment
would have been a very different one indeed.”

Dr Christie, at page 80 G, says, “If words of mine could
add any intensity to the feeling expressed by the other gentle-
men, with regard to the nature of the malpractice, I most

assuredly would use them.”
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From the above analysis it is reasonable to infer that the
pursuer—if the patient was in reality in the state he himself
deseribes on his arrival—ought to have at once performed
craniotomy for the pnrpose of saving the mother, and not fo
have persisted for several hours in his mischievous and death-
dealing attempts to extract the child with the forceps; that
the pursuer ought not to have ventured upon such an opera-
tion without the proper instruments. It cannot be brought
forward as an excusc for his using a shoemalker’s pincers in
liew of a craniotomy forceps that emergency demanded such
a procedure, because it was after his hoy fetched from Cullen
 his eraniotomy instruments (his ¢ dead irons”) that the pursuer
had recourse to the shoemaker’s tool. The pursuer seems to
have been practising midwifery since 1832; no craniotomy
forceps was in his case, and the pincers was used ; the pincers,
according to the evidence of the defender’s professional wit-
nesses, ought under no circumstance whatsoever to have been
used ; that it could not have been employed as a eraniotomy
forceps by the pursuer when the head remained above the
contracted brim, as he himself states, without being attended
with violence of the extremest description and of the most
dangerous character to the mother. Sir James Y. Simpson
does not appear to have properly examined the pincers,
because neither Sir James nor any other man (as Dr Bell at
pa%'e 74 E, F, says) who understands the proper practice of
midwifery would recommend such an instrument to be intro-
duced into the private parts of a woman. Sir James, in fact,
does not seem to have realised the actual features of the case;
or, hardened in the school of “meddlesome midwifery,” to
which it is well known he belongs, he thinks no more of the
living and tender structures of the female pelvis, than of the

erforated iron plates through which, some years ago, he

agged a dead foetus—Dbuilding, on the success of his experi-
ment, doctrines in regard to delivery, by turning in contracted
pelvis, of the most dangerous kind. Looking to the whole
evidence in this case, can Sir James reconcile his opinions
with anything in the received doctrines of midwifery in the
present day? Is there anything more brutal in the listory of
midwifery malpractice, than the tale brought out in the evi-
dence for the defender—evidence not shaken in a single point
—and ¢an Sir James stand openly before the bar of profes-
sional opinion in defence of such practice, and claim, at the
same time, for the pursuer eredit for knowledge, skill, and
conscientious caye of his patient? He dare not! The avowal,

ay
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by Sir James, of a tolerance for such practice—hj ~
in the witness-box to support it—is I;, libel on t]?eallj;}ﬁ?é:s:ilgﬁ
to which he belongs, and most discreditable to the school of
which he is a distinguished ornament. If the practice he
approved in the witness-box be such as can be, in any sense,
founded on his teac-:hirllag, midwifery—so long taught wwith
pre-emment success in Edinburgh by his predecessors—is far
on the downward road to ruin in Modermn Athens, unless
rescued by some better and abler expounder of its doctrines,
The professional witnesses of the defender give no credence
to-the statements of the pursuer regarding the time he per-
tormed craniotomy, but believe the evidence of the defen-
der’s witnesses who were present at the confinement of Mrs
Mair, namely, that he, the pursuer, perforated’ the head with
the poker when it was low down resting on the perineum,
before, and not after turning, and that the pincers was then
used. By the evidence it is shown that the pursuer ought not
to have bled Mrs Mair with the lancet to the extent of twenty
or thirty ounces of blood when she was in a state of exhaus-
tion. It is also to be inferred that no cord ought to have
been used by the pursuer for the purpose of dragging awa
the infant from the mother. The evidence of Sir James Y.
Simpson appears to have been given upon a purely hypo-
thetical case, and must be regarded as altogether beside the
present case, and totally invalid. But even then his evidence is
not consistent with the best practice of the day, and exhibits
a looseness and unformed state of opinion one does not expect
. to meet with in a man of Sir James Y. SimEEnn’s preten-
sions in his special department of medicine. The evidence
of the defender's professional witnesses, Drs Bell, Paterson,
and Christie, who ]E'e&rd the proof both of the pursuer and of
the defender, cannot possibly be gainsaid.

The above, gentlemen, is what I consider to be a fair and
unprejudiced analysis of the evidence led in the case of “Sharp
v. Wilson.,” A Reclaiming Note was lodged by me. The
case, when carried into the Inner House, assumes the form of
“Wilson ». Sharp.” The evidence is re-debated by the counsel
both of the pursuer and of the defender. The following
Interlocutor, after heaiing debate on both sides, was formally
pronounced by the learned judges. It is for you, gentlemen,
to study and to weigh well the chief points of practice and of
logic contained in the undernoted Interlocutor, and to form
your judgment accordingly.
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RECLAIMING NOTE.
WILSON v SHARP.

FIRST DIVISION, Moxpay, March 80, 1868,

Lorp ArpMILLAN—This is an action of damages for slander, contained in #letter
addressed by the defender, a surgeon pracfizging in Cullen, to Dr Greig, Portsoy.
The letter get forth in this issue I need not read to your lordships. It is not dis-
puted that this letter is of and concerning the pursuer, who is also a surgeon in
Cullen ; and it is clear that it does represent him as incompetent and unskilful in
an important departmont of his profession—that of midwifery. There is no doubt
that the letter is slaaderous—that the charges have that effect; and further, the
letter was gratuitous and uncalled for, not written in answer to questions, but a
volunteered expression of opinion with regard to the ecapacity and conduct of the
pursuer, caleulated, and from its terms intended, to injure the pursuer's practice as
a medical man in the department I have referred to. I must say, however, that I
regret that Dr Greig, who received this letter in February, 1864, should, after keep-
ing it for eight months, have communicated it to the pursuer. He had far better
have put it in the fire. To meet the action of damages, the defender has taken the
position of justifying the letter by proving malpractice or unskilfulness in four cases
enumerated in the counter-issne. The defender must prove this issue in justifi-
cation in order to succeed; and the burden of proof is peculiarly heavy, when the
slander isgon the one hand, uncalled for, and, on the other hand, directly injurious
to the professional character and to the patrimonial interests of the person slandered.
The Lord Ordinary has found that the defender has failed to prove the specific
allegations of unskilfulness put in the issue, and has decerned for £50 of damages.
I have very carefully studied the whole case, and considered the ample argument
from the bar. With regard to one of the cases specified, namely, the case of Mrs
Geddes, a case where the mother recovered, and the child was safely brought into
the world, that was a case which occcurred in 1841, long before the defender com-
menced praetice in Cullen, so that when he wrote the letter, he could have no per-
sonal knowledge of the facts; and I agree with the Lord Ordinary that it is out of
the question to hold that charge of malpractice proved. In the case of Mrs John
Wilson, where also both the mother and child survived, I think the defender has
failed to prove his justification. The case of Mrs Longmore, in 1863, terminated
fatally both for mother and child. The pursuer says—and it is so stated in the cer-
tificate of registration—that death was cansed by rupture of thé uterus. - It is now
said that that was an ignorant and inaccurate opinion;:and that in any view Mrs
Longmore's death was cansed by the unskilfulness of the pursuer. . There is some
conflict, in this ease of Mrs Longmore, between the testimony of the pursuer and
that of Dr Carmichael, with regard to the existence of the rupture of the uterus.
It would be very difficult, on the evidence before us, to come to a conclusion on that
point; but Dr Carmichael nuses an expression which may be said to be consistent to
some extent with tho pursuer’s statement, and with the opinion of Sir James Y. Simp-
gon, in which Dr Keiller and Dr Thatcher coneur. I allude to what Dr Carmichael
says at page 58 of the proof, where he speaks of the possibility of the inner coat of
the uterns having been ruptured ; and Professor Sir James Simpson, in speaking of
the same subject, says, at page 39, that it is his impression—of course, he did not
see the person—* that the uterus was partially ruptured through all its conts,
perhaps, except the last, which lines tho womb externally, and that in the act
of turning the child got through.” That opinion of Sir James Y. Simpson does
derive some confirmation from the expression, to which I have adverted, used by
Dr Carmichael ; and Dr Keiller and Di Thateher concur in Sir James Simpson's
opinion. Certainly the ease is not satisfactorily explained, but I cannot see that
unskilfulness is clearly proved ; and therefore I cannot differ from the Lord Ordi-
nary on that ecase. There remains the case of Mrs Mair—a very serious case,
indeed, and one very difficult to decide. It occurred in 1856, the year in which
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the defender commenced practice in Cullen: and it is not snymie: .
On one point tI!a evidence is directly contrary, and that with regard to a mal 1:1
on which it is :111543:111!: to snppose a mistake. The pursuer says he did not ]:1:3.3.;1
this woman, I th:ul:l: it proved that he did hlne.dp her, and to a very consider-
able extent. Four witnesses—Mrs Wood, Mrs Slater, old Mrs Mair, and Mrs John
Mair—econcur in speaking distinetly and decidedly to this fact. and to the circnm-
stances agtnmllng’it.. I observe that the Liord Ordinary is of ui:ininn that the fact of
!Jlne:dmg is eata!:hahad, notwithstanding the pursuer’s denial ; and in this T think he
1s right.  Looking to the evidence of Sir James Y. Simpson—certainly the highest
authority on the subject—I cannot hold that bleeding in the course of the first
labour is necessarily malpractice, thongh it is not the most approved practice at the
present day; but the case occurred ten years ago, and it was once a practice recog-
nised nnu':l approved of by the faculty. Nor can I venture to say, in the face of Sir
Jumes Simpson’s testimony, that the facts proved here, with regard to the woman's
state, are such as to make the bleeding of her, in the position in which she was
clearly an improper or unskilful act. If, indeed, I might venture to cxpress an
opinion, I should say that, according to my humble judgment, the propriety of bleed-
ing Mrs Mair in the state of exhaustion in which she was, and after the survivance
of the child had been abandoned as hopeless, and after the head of the child had
been perforated, is, on the medical evidence before me, very questionable, Btill, in
the conflict of medical testimony, there is o doubt on the point; and, in a case of
glander, in an uncalled-for letter, the benefit of the doubt must be given to the per-
son who has been slandered. The defender must prove his justification; and, if he
has left a doubt, that is a defect in his proof. On the other points of pecusation
with regard to this case of Mrs Mair—such as the employment of unnecessary force,
the use of unsuitable instruments, and the introduetion of forceps at an improper
time, I bave only to observe that, while I cannot say that the case is satisfactorily
explained, I am unable to find sufficient grounds for differing from the Lord Ordinary.
The defender has referred to part of the evidence taken for the pursuer on commis-
sion in support of the allegation of the improper use of the forceps. It has been
suggested that the evidence taken on commission in Banfishire is incompetent, and
I incline to think that evidence of the treatment by the pursuer of particular patients
not alluded to in the issue, nor mentioned in the record, was not competent; but,
even thongh it were, I am not satisfied that it can receive the effect for which the
defender contends, as corroborating the evidence with regard to the time and manner
of the use of these forceps in the particular case of Mrs Mair. It rather appears to
me that there has been some misapprehension on this matter. Onthe whole, I hava
arrived, not withount difficulty, at the same conclusion as the Lord Ordinary, chiefly
because of the ultroneous and unealled-for character of this letter, and of the great
burden of proof which necessarily vested on the writer, I must express my regret
—first, that the letter was written; then, that it was not destroyed by the receiver;
then, that this action, giving greater publicity toit, was brought ; and lastly, because
of the plea of justification that has been taken.

Lorp CurrieriLL—That is my opinion also.

Lorp Presmext—That is my opinion also.

Lorp Deiss—I coneur in the resunlts stated by Lord Ardmillan,

Interlocutor of Lord Ordinary adhered to, with expenses.

Such, gentlemen, is the Interlocutor pronounced by the
Judges of the First Division of the Inner House of the Court
of Session, and which, in my humble opinion, is far from cast-
ing a halo of glory around our Scottish Bench. One would
naturally suppose that men who have risen to the office of
judge would show, at least, something like common sense;
but in the above, it cannot be gaid to appear. Lord Ardmillan
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shows something like tact, perhaps, in snatching at any little
bit of evidence in favour of the pursuer, and carefully avoid-
ing the damning points. In the case, for instance, of Mrs
Longmore, where he malkes a feeble attempt to show, by the
evidence of Sir James Y. Simpson, that death was caused from
rupture of the uterus, his logic and arguments are alike lame
and beside the case. His Lordship here shows an amount of
ignorance regarding a subject on which he has presumed to sit
on judgment quite appalling. Had the learned judges frankly
owned that the whole subject was totally incomprehensible
to them, and handed it over for decision to twelve men of
ordinary rational mtelligence, I would have been satisfied.

In the case of Mrs Geddes, where the pursuer failed to
deliver her after eight attempts with the forceps, and when
Dr Carmichael delivered her safely at the first attempt, his
Lordship can see no unskilful treatment, Sup[i;:nse his Lord-
ship to be suffering from a raging tooth, and a bungling ope-
rator make eight attempts to relieve him of the offender, and
fail, and another operator free him from torment at the first
trial, would his Lordship excuse the first operator, and say
no unskilfulness can be laid to his charge, if the first ope-
rator were to say, “ My failuwre to relieve Lord Ardmillan of
his diseased tooth was entirely due to the want of a forceps
of sufficient strength ? ¥ T think his Lordship would be apt
to say, “Why do you presume to practise dentistry with -
insufficient and useless mstruments, and so subject me to
unnecessary torment? You ought to be punished.”

I would willingly put the following question to their learned
Lordships :—

Had it not been for the timely interference o1 Dr Car-
michael, and if Dr Carmichael had not objected to the opera~
tion suggested by the pursuer, do their Lordships think it
very probable that Jane Geddes would have appeared in the
High Court of Justiciary, and exhibited her head to the medical
men, on the 17th of May, 1867? Or, in other words: Had
not Dr Carmichael interfered, would Jane Geddes ever have
been born alive? Their Lordships, I think, would have done
well to have considered more thoronghly the case of Mrs
Geddes before expressing their opinion in the manner they did
concerning 1t. One of my professional witnesses considers it
unskilful practice to shake a woman when in labour. I do not
myself believe that swearing at a woman and at the bystanders
would by any means improve the operation of shaking. Their
Lordships, however, think it out of the question to hold such
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treatment to be malpractice. If a learned judge, however,
were subjected to such treatment, it is my humble belief he
would alter his opinion, and immediately issue his dictum that
the medical man ought to be well shaken in return, Had the
pursuer, in fact, shown as much levity towards the Judge,
when before him, as he did in regard to the cases of the un-
fortunate women—the occasion of this action—when giving
his evidence, there cannot be a doubt but he would have, at
least, threatened to lock him up for contempt of Court. A
Judge, however, is sacred; my purse is not! Regarding the
case of Mrs Geddes, I have tlis much personal knowledge

,of it, that I have, “many a time and oft,” put the points
of two of my fingers into a mysterious indentation on the
occipital bone of the head of her daughter Jane, whom the
pursuer tried and failed eight times to bring into the world
with the short forceps, Lord Ardmillan is of opinion that
bleeding in the case of Mrs Mair, when in a state of exhaus-
tion, is * very questionable practice.” It is my humble opinion
there can be no question whatever about such practice. Had
the following question been put by an impudent and bullying
counsel to Sir James, what answer would have been returned
by Sir James ?—Would it be skilful or unskilful practice to
take twenty or thirty ounces of blood from the arm of a
woman in labour when in a state of exhaustion ?

My counsel would have never insulted Sir James Y. Simpson
by putting any such question; and Lord Ardmillan has grossly
misre presented this matter, professing, as he did, to see justice
administered between man and man. In the case of Catherine
Mair, with regard to the employment of unnecessary force, the
use of unsuitable instruments, and the introduction of the for-
ceps at the improper time, Lord Ardmillan agrees with Lord
Ordinary Kinloch. This mode of disposing of evidence given
by people in their sober senses, with the full enjoyment of the
faculty of sceing and hearing, is certainly the most novel and
convenient ever known in ancient or in modern times.

The pursuer thinks he arrived to attend Mrs Mair at twelve
o'clock. The sun would have at that hour of the day been shin-
ing. My witnesses swear it was in the dawn of the morning:
the lights were not out. Had there been anything of impoxrt-
ance connected with the time of the pursuer’s arrival, I have no
doubt the Judges would have attributed the statement made
by my witnesses as to whether the sun or the moon may have
been shining to a mere misapprehension on their part, and to
the excited state of their feeli)mgs. Or had the pursuer flatly
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denied that he had ever attended Mrs Mair at 9,11, or that he
had ever heard of her case, the evidence of my witnesses would
have been accounted for in the same mammer. Had I myself
been in the pursuer’s position, and had I made up my mind to
deny the bleeding, to have made a clean breast of the whole
matter, I would have made the short, but simple statement,
that I never either saw or heard of such a woman as Catherine
Mair ! x

Regarding the case of Mrs Wilson, nothing is proved. The
pursuer delivered her with the forceps; the perineum was
ruptured ; the pursuer asked her to keep the nature of the
injury received a dead secret, and every one is left to formn his
own conclusions !

You will observe, gentlemen, that no attempt has been
made to prove that the pursuer had been injured in his pro-
fessional capacity by the letter I sent regarding my opinion
of the pursuer as a practitioner in midwifery to Dr Greig. It
was always my opinion that it was necessary for one to prove
that he had actually sustained some loss, either directly or
indirectly, before damages could be awarded him. The letter
was a strictly private and privileged letter from one medical
man to another medical man, about a purely professional
matter, and cannot be reckoned actionable. The letter could
never have damaged the pursuer, because it is not shown that
a single individual—the geceaeed Dr Whyte excepted—ever
saw the letter which Dr Greig kept in his possession for eight
months. You will observe the pursuer was in the habit of
showing my letter to all his friends, and even read it at the
bedside of a patient immediately after he had succeeded in
delivering her with the forceps. %Vlmt the pursuer could have
meant by such a procedure, 1t is difficult to imagine. Let us
take a short and final review of the four cases named in the
counter issue.

In the case of Mrs Longmore, the pursuer was the attendant.
He attempted to deliver by the forceps, but failed. Dr Car-
michael arrived when the woman was “1in articulo mortis,” Dr
Carmichael did nothing. Mrs Longmore died undelivered.

In the case of Mrs geddes, the pursuer was the attendant;
he attempted to deliver by the forceps, but failed ; he proposed
to destroy the infant. Dr Ca,rmi{imel interfered, delivered
by the first attempt with the forceps. Both mother and child
are alive and welf

In the case of Mrs Mair, the pursuer was the atteiflant ;
he attempted to deliver by the forceps, but failed, Neithier Dr
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Carmichael or any other medical man, save the pursuer, was
mn attendance. The pursuer was allowed to do as he p]ehae:l.
Mrs Mair never rose off her bed after delivery, and she and
her mutilated infant sleep in the old churchyard of Cullen.

In the case of Mrs Wilson, the pursuer was the attendant ;
he succeeded in delivering with the forceps. The perineun
was ruptured, and she was treated in Bdinburgh for the rup-
ture, being duly cautioned by the pursuer to keep the nature
of the injury she had received a profound secret from her rela-
tives in Cullen.

_To the general non-professional, as well as to the profes-
sional reader, it may not be out of place to review, in a few
words, the finding of the Lords of Session. Without laying
my opinion open to the charge of personal ique or private
disappointment, I venture on the E)llﬂwmg Pbrlef critique of
their Lordships’ finding, in a style which cannot fail of being
understood by all who take the trouble of reading the evi-
dence. Their Lordships seem to have been of opinion that,
in a case where the evidence was conflicting, the judgment
should be in favour of the party who could bring forward
witnesses best known in the scientific world. The evidence
of  Sir James Y. Simpson would no doubt weigh in their
estimation against half-a-dozen others, although they might
be men whose reputation extended far beyond the ecircle
of their immediate practice. Dr Christie, of Aberdeen, Dr
Paterson, of Glasgow, and Dr Bell of Edinburgh, possess a
reputation beyond the towns in which they reside, yet their
evidence is entirely set aside by the Lords of Session the
same as although it had never been given; and the pur-
suer receives all the benefit that belongs to doubt, in a way
which it is impossible to account for by the ordinary rules
of judicial procedure. The pursuer, if he failed in proving
that he was a skilful practitioner, one would have thought
he would have failed in establishing a claim for damages;
but the collective wisdom of the Supreme Court has decided
otherwise. Dr Sharp, whose midwifery practice 1s at least
doubtful, is pronounced by the Lords of Session to be above
criticism. His practice may still deserve the condemnation
of men eminent n the profession, but still he has the powerful

rotection of law, Human life is of no account when weighed
in the balance against the reputation of a M.R.C.S.E. The

ursuer, notwithstanding the solemn responsibilities attached
to hi% profession, must not be m_jqred,l even although human
life hangs in the balance. Burke, in his celebrated speech on
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the impeachment of Warren Hastings, said  that death met
infancy in the gates of life and strangled it!” If this was
true in the case of a ruler of a mighty empire—and who will
say it was not?—what will be said of those professed dis-
ciples of science who lay themselves open to the accusation
ofP the great orator? It may be said—I trust that it is the
cage—that the Judges of the Supreme Court, in disposing of
this case, failed in discerning its import, from their ignorance
of a department of science not much studied by those engaged
in the administration of the law. Midwifery, as a science and
an art, may be a sealed book to the expounders of the law ;
and, dazzled by the reputation of one or two great names, the
Judges disposed of the case Sharp v Wilson in a manner
which they thought would give least offence to the profession.
In cases where the evidence is purely scientific or technical, it
cannot be expected that the.Judges should display the same
acumen that they do in cases which do not require excep-
tional knowledge; but I cannot help regretting that an
important bmnc% of the medical profession should have suf-
fered from this cause. In the interests of the profession, no
less than of humanity, I must protest against the judgment
of the Lords of Session, even at the risk of being considered
presumptive. The defender was surely as much entitled to
the benefit of the doubt in the judicial mind as the pur-
suer, more especially when it is recollected that the pursuer,
hg' the judiment, is not cleared of the imputation that was
thrown on his professional character. The decision reminds
one of the verdict given by a jury, where there was strong
presumptive evidence against the prisoner at the bar, although
there was not sufficient legal evigence to convict him—* My
Lord, we find the prisoner guilty, but the case not proven,”
was the finding of this sapient jury, and the decision in the
case, Sharp v Wilson, must strike every reader of the evi-
dence as bearing a strong resemblance to the verdict noticed
above. The pursuer has good reason to congratulate him-
gelf on a decisgion which saves his purse, and leaves his
reputation to a discerning public; but it is hard on the
defender, who has had to fight a costly battle in the interest
of science, with no other reward except the approval of a
good conscience.

The decision will have one effect, that, along with every
other member of the profession, I cannot but regret. Hence-
fm:th practitioners will be more wary in expressing their
opinions of the practice of any one they may think to be
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wrong. To be martyrs in the interests of science may be all
very good, but medical men are subject to the laws of our
common humanity, and therefore they cannot afford to throw
away their means in exposing the pretensions of the ignorant
or the bungling in the profession.” I bow to the decision as
every good citizenis bound to do—to the voice of recognised
authonty, but that does not prevent one from feeling the loss
and disappointment which the decision involves. The non-
professional; as well as the professional reader, will be able
after reading the evidence, to form his own opinion as to the
matter at issue, and I leave it to you and to an enlightened
public opinion to judge between my opponent and myself,
From the highest judicial authority I turn to free public
opinion, before whose breath the prestige of a great reputa-
* tion and the august decisions of our Courts of law are but
as the thistle-down wafted acrgss the autumn fields by the
breezes that sweep from the mountain side. In appealing to
public opinion, I appeal to a higher tribunal than the Roman
citizen of old, when he appealed from the subordinate Courts
of a governor or tributary king to imperial Ceesar, and with
this advantage, that the decision of public opinion is likely
to be more impartial than that of any who ever wore the
imperial purple.
entlemen, I have appealed to you as practitioners and

students of midwifery for your decision in the case of “Sh
v. Wilson.” Do you consider that I have hrought suflicient
proof to show that I was justifiéd in having written the letter
on which this action has been raised against me? or, in other
words, have I proved that the pursuer has been guilty of
malpractice as a practitioner of mdwifery ?

1$iahing those of you who have not yet commenced the
actual practice of midwifery much success in your future career,
hoping that those of you who are now busily engaged in prac-
tice, may enjoy many days to pursue your laborious avoca-
tions, and that the practice of no one of the profession may,
in future, be of such a kind as to be capable of being doubted
or called into question,

1 have the honour to be,
! (Gentlemen,

Your mo. ohdt. Servt,,

JAMES WILSON.
CutieN, N.B., 6th November, 1568

P.S—The following correspondence, if it will not convey
instruction, may, at least, afford amusement. J. W
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pounds of damages. Against this Judgment the defendoy appealed. but the Judges
of the First Division have affirmed the judgment, on the ground that the pursuer
was entitled to the doubt raised by evidence, In other words, the pursner has sue-
ceeded in obtaining a verdict of not proven, for that is what the judgment amounts
to. The Judges of the Supreme Court do not say that he was right in his practice,
but as the medical evidence was so conflicting they gave him the benefit of the
doubt, which we are afraid will not be very satisfactory to either party; at least, if
we were the pursuer, we would not thank the judges for a decision which left our
medical reputation in doubt. Instead of rushing into litigation to vindicate his
character, the pursuer in this case would have acted more prudently had he endea-
voured to wipe out the imputation by skilful practice. A legal whitewashing is
never very satisfactory, but it is eminently so when it is mixed up with doubts.
The case is one, however, that has a deeper interest than the local reputation of a
country practitioner, inasmuch as it raises the question whether a large part of
medical seience is not founded on hypothesis instead of logical induction. To the
unprofessional mind, that branch of medical science known as midwifery, seems to
be one that difference of opinion should be so minute as would scarcely give rise to
dispute, yet we have here men eminent in the profession enunciating quite opposite
opinions. After reading the evidence, one of course forms an opinion of his own as
to the real merits of the case, but when the great legal luminaries of Edinburgh
hesitate to give an opinion, it would be presumption on the part of a layman to
venture on one. Dr Wilson, we suspect, will be more discrest in the foture, what-
ever his opinions may be: and, as for his antagonist, we would opine that he will be
a little less thin skinned, as the judgment he has got is not one calculated to flatter
his professional vanity, and the fifty pounds of damages is but a poor equivalent for
all the trouble and annoyance he has been put to, while at the same time his repu-
tation as a surgeon is placed by the decision on such a footing that every one is left
to form his own conclusions. Had the case decided anything, the money would not
have been thrown away, but after all the trouble and expense nothing is decided, and
the parties in the action leave off where they eommenced, only, we should suppose,
their purses are considerably lighter, if no new light has been thrown on science.

(GLASGOW SENTINEL, April 25, 1868.
CASE OF SHARP ». WILSON.

To the Editor of the Glasgow Sentinel,

Sir,—I observed a very excellent leader in the Sentinel of 1lth April, relative to
the case of Sharp v. Wilson, lately decided by the Lords of the Inner House of the
Court of Session. Would you kindly allow me a small space in your journal for the
purpose of expressing my opinion regarding this extraordinary case, in which I am
the defender? According to the decision given by the Lords of the Supreme Court,
it appears that it is not legally requisite that a practitioner should be possessed of
proper instruments wherewith to perform the most serions uparatmna in mlﬁmfe:n:y
practice, but that when it is necessary to have recourse to instrumental aid he is
quite justified in sending to the nearest mechanic’s shop, and possessing himself of
any tool on which he can lay his hands. By this decision it is shown that, althongh
a medical man is satisfied in his own mind that certain individuals, one after another,
have been unfairly, unprofessionally, and most unskilfully treated by their medical
attendant, he is compelled to stand quietly by, and is not justified in expressing one
single word regarding his opinions in a private and confidential note to another pro-
fessional brother. If he is bold enough to state that he believes a person has not
had a fair chance for her life—although he can prove that the sick-room was con-
verted by her medical attendant into a Pandemonium—that _n;_:phn.ncﬂs and instru-
ments and means were used unheard of in the annals of medicine or surgery in any
Christian country—althongh he ean prove all this, and although he sces woman
after woman sink into the grave, he is not at liberty to say one single word to
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another professional friend regarding the extraordinary treatment received hy_rhmu ;
if an opinion is expressed, he is linble to be sued for damages in arcaurls of justice, (¥)
becanse, forsooth, his opinion was never asked. The defender in the present ease
was allowed to plead justification for calling the pursuer’s professional reputation
into doubt. Medical men, who heard only the pursuer’s own version of the case in
Court, said they could see nothing wrong in the practice of the pursuer; medical
men who heard the version both of the pursuer and of the defender condemned in
the strongest terms the treatment followed by the pursuer in several cases, Thus,
then, the medical men, in the eyes of the judges, seemed to differ in their opinions ;
the judges, being unable to comprehend those abstruse subjects connected w!th tha
practice of obstetrics, and with logical induction approaching to the meaningless
comments of imbeciles, said, as there was a doubt on the subject, and as thers was a
difference of opinion in the medical evidence, they must give the pursuer, the
accused party, the benefit of the doubt hanging on the propriety of the line of prac-
tice adopted by him in the treatment of certain patients, and give him a verdict of
not proven. The defender doubted the skilfulness of the pursuer's practice in a
private note before going into Court; and the Judges of the Supreme Court have
publicly affirmed his decided opinion by also doubting it—a decision the pursuer
could have obtained nearer home, at much less uxgnae, and by parties far better
qualified to judge than even the Lords of the Inner House. The pursuer went into
Court for the purpose of vindicating his professional reputation—for the purpose of
wiping off that foul stain of slander which had been thrown upon it by the opinion I
expressed regarding itto Dr Greig, and it is for you and the public to judge whether
or not his professional reputation, or his vanity as a skilful operator, has been imi-
proved or gratified by a long, wavering, and ruinously expensive litigation.

I, the defender, am of opinion I have made out my point at an immense saerifice,
but with a clear conscience, in bringing startling revelations in connection with the
practice of our profession before the faculty, which must arouse some from the
drowsy lethargy of ignorance to a sense of their highly responsible office ; and I
sincerely hope that the ease of Sharp v. Wilson will be known and discussed in every
quarter of the civilised globe, showing how “doctors differ,” and that much good
from their differences may yet accrue to the never-ceasing requirements of suffering
humanity.

I am, Sir, yours, &c.,
: James WiLsox, Surgeon, Defender.

Cullen, 200k April, 1868.

GLASGOW SENTINEL, May 9, 1868.

To the Editor of the Glasgow Sentinel. . e

SR, —TI have seen your excellent remarks under the head of “ How Doctors Differ,”
and also a WEI]-&KPI‘-BI.EIE-EIZI letter on the same subject hy Dr Wilson, and, in conse-
quence, I have been induced to resd again part of the evidence and of the decision
in the ease of Sharp ». Wilson, and it appears to me that it would have been more
correct to have referred to that unfortunate case as a remarkable instance of the
uncertainty of the law than as a specimen of how doctors differ, In that case the
doctors were placed very much in the same circumstances as the knights in the
fable of the gold and silver shield. Those who were examined on behalf of the
pursuer saw only f._h? silver side, while those for the defence saw both sides, nn{i
each gave their opinion aceording to their light. It is scarcely possible to imagine
that any one who knows his profession eould approve of the practice which was
eworn to on that trial; and certainly not one of thesn who gave their opinion in
favour of the pursuer, hq-i‘aru they heard the evidence for the defence, would adopt
the practice, under fany eireumstance, which was so justly condemned by the oppo-
site party. The peculiarity of this case, therefore, was not so much the difference
of opinion among the docters, as the remarkable disregard, which is shown in the
decisions, to justice and evidence, The witnesses brought forward on both sides
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were much upon a par in point of position; yet those for the prossenti
believed, while those for the defence were cum.ic{ure& unworthy of :sprnd‘tt ; ifls:llm‘:;ﬁ
in some of the most important parts of their evidence, they were fully ‘borne out by
the pursuer himself. The point in question was his unskilfulness in uging instru-
ments, and some of the witnesses swore he had failed to do so “eight times ” in the
same case, and he admitted that he had done so “ many times.” But the sage judge
"naserts “that this case cannot be set up as a case of malpractice,” Suppose the
learned judge, suffering from acute toothache, placed in the hands of a bunglin
dentisf, who, after allowing his forceps to slip “eight times,” or even * many i-.'umz.a,E
left him unrelieved, and that another came and removed his tooth at the first
attempt, to which would he give the palm of skill? The witnesses for the defence
were either trustworthy or they were not; and this should have been decided before
the doctors were allowed to give their opinion or their evidence. Had this been done
mucl;dt.ima might have been saved, and much unjust oblogquy would have been pre-
vented.
I am, Sir, yours, &c.,
30tk April, 1868, s C. B.

To the Editor of the Glasgow Sentinel.

SIR,—A very extraordinary letter, at the same time characteristic of its writer,
was only this day put into my hand, headed * How Doctors Differ: Case of Sharp v.
Wilson,” and addressed to the Editor of the Glusgow Sentinel, and recorded in your
paper of the 25th ult, page 4, column 6, subseribed by James Wilson, surgeon, and
dated Cullen, 20th April, 1868. The writer of that letter is notorious for his skill
in writing letters which not only speak for themselves, but, at the same time, are
unmistakable certificates of his own dear character as a man—a polite gentleman of
real principle and Christian feeling. The enclosed copy of a letter® was written and
subscribed by James Wilson, surgeon, Cullen, and personally handed to Mrs Simpson,
midwife in Fenarchty. The original (now in my possession) was given to me in
May last by Mrs Simpson ; it had the honour of being duly presented in Court before
the Lord Ordinary (Kinloch) in May last, and it was ruled that James Wilson, sur-
geon in Cullen, should not then and there be put in prison (as was the law) for
contempt of Court, for daring to interfere with any witnesses—she (Mrs Simps=on)
having been previously examined by Commission (James Gordon, Ksq., Sherifi-
Substitute of Banffshire, Commissioner.) Hoping, for the sake of truth, you will
oblige by giving these notes & place in your next impression,

I am, yonrs very truly,
Huen Spare, M.D., and M.R.C.S. of England, Pursuer.

Cullen, 4th May, 1868.

P

(GLASGOW SENTINEL, May 23, 1868.
SHARP v. WILSON.
To the fditor of the Glasgow Sentinel.

Simr,—I have read with pleasure your remarks on this celebrated case, which has
now become matter of public interest, and also the letters which have since appeared
in your columns on the same subject. I shall be obliged by your giving a corner
to the following remarks from a member of a different profession to that of the
litigants, as I believe L express fairly the opinion of that profession in reference to
this matter. The pursuer, in the letter which appeared in your columns last week,
attributes to Dr Wilson a notoriety for skill in letter-writing. That certainly is a
qualification that cannot be retorted upon him, fu= certainly a more ludicrous or

d we muet
- locument referred to is one that has no hearing on the merits of the cage, an
dﬂc!liﬁel;ait';g the medium of gross personalitics, which can serve no good purpose—ED. @ 8
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